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Company Profile and Positioning
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COMPANY PROFILE

China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CR Micro” or the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Island. The listing of the Company’s shares on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
commenced in August 2004 with the Stock Code 0597.

CR Micro, together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we”),
is a leading manufacturer in the development and operation of
semiconductor business in China. Its activities cover open foundry,
Integrated Circuits (“IC”) design, IC testing and packaging as well
as discrete device businesses. The Group has become a leading
supplier of analog ICs in China and positions itself as a leading analog
semiconductor company in China.

As one of the top five semiconductor producers in China, CR Micro
and its subsidiaries, namely CSMC Technologies Corporation, Wuxi
China Resources Semico Co., Ltd., Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech.
Ltd. and Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. are
renowned enterprises in the microelectronics industry.

The Group’s main businesses include:

Open Foundry Operation

CSMC Technologies Corporation (“CSMC”), one of the subsidiaries
of CR Micro, is currently the largest 6-inch open foundry operator in
mainland China which provides IC manufacturing services for fabless
design houses and Integrated Device Manufacturers (“IDMs”). The
total production capacity of 6-inch wafer of the Group has attained a
significant scale of 90,000 wafers per month with 0.35um capability,
offering worldwide customers a broad range of analog and power
process technologies including Mixed Signal, CMOS (Complementary
Metal-Oxide-Semiconductor) Logic, Planar and Trench DMOS (Double-
diffused Metal Oxide Semiconductor), BCDMOS (a complex technology
composed of Bipolar, CMOS and DMOS devices), BiCMOS (an
integration of bipolar and CMOS technology), and EEPROM (Electrically
Erasable Programmable Read-Only Memory).
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Starting from year 2008, CSMC is also able to provide 8-inch open
foundry services by forming a company (“Fab 2”) with China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“CRH”"), the Company’s substantial shareholder.
Fab2 has designed production capacity of 60,000 8-inch wafer per
month with 0.11um technology capability. CR Micro, through CSMC,
currently owns 19% equity interest in Fab 2. Fab 2 has started initial
volume production and is targeted for phase one production capacity
of 30,000 8-inch wafers per month in 2010.

IC Design Operation

The Group currently owns three IC design houses, namely Wuxi China
Resources Semico Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Semico”), CR PowTech (Shanghai)
Limited (“CR PowTech”) and China Resources Semiconductor
International Limited (“CR Semi”).

Wuxi Semico is one of the leading Chinese fabless design houses
in terms of technologies and scale, utilising state-of-the-art digital
and analog technologies to design and develop semiconductor IC
products such as MCU and audio and video processing SoC applied in
electronics such as LCD TV, Hi-Fi, portable digital electronic products,
green lightings, automobile, teaching instrument, etc.

CR PowTech is specializing in analog and mixed signal ICs with primary
focuses on power management and Light Emitting Diode (“LED”)
driving products. CR PowTech’s product lines are concentrated in DC-
DC boost and buck converters, AC-DC controllers, high-performance
LDO regulators, backlight WLED drivers, high-brightness LED drivers,
audio amplifiers, and battery management. Its ICs are widely used in
portable electronics, home appliances, communication devices, and
automotive electronics.

CR Semi principally engages in the design, R&D and sales of consumer
ICs and wafers. It has launched a series of products, including single-
chip radio circuit, audio amplifier, calculation amplifier, encoder/
decoder circuit, LCD, music voice, circuit for clock & watch, UPS and

MCU and photoelectric coupled receiver chip.
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IC Testing & Packaging Operation

The Group formed a joint venture named as Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb
Tech. Ltd., with STATS ChipPAC Ltd., a leading global IC assembly
and testing foundry operator. The joint venture, being one of the key
enterprises focused in IC testing and packaging foundry operations in
the mainland China, mainly engages in the provision of IC assembly and
testing foundry services for internationally well-known semiconductor
enterprises with its leading wire bond packaging testing technology
in the mainland China and a packaging capacity of over 3.4 billion
wires per month. The Company indirectly holds 75% equity interest
of the joint venture.

The Company also wholly owns a subsidiary named China Resources
Semicon Microelectronics (ShenZhen) Co. Ltd., focusing on providing
testing services to semiconductor enterprises in Asia.

Discrete Device Operation

Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. is a leader
in the development and manufacture of power semiconductor discrete
devices in the mainland China. With an annual manufacturing capacity
of 1.91 million 4-6-inch wafers for discrete devices, this company
is a major supplier of discrete device wafers and finished products
in mainland China. The aforementioned products developed by the
Company are applied in promising sectors including energy saving
lightings, home appliances, industrial control devices and personal
computers.

POSITIONING

The Group is positioned as a leading analog semiconductor company
in the mainland China. It has become a leading supplier of analog ICs
in the mainland China market by capitalizing on the eminent position
of China as the global manufacturing powerhouse and its burgeoning
domestic market, unique design and process technologies of the
Group as well as synergy from close cooperation among internal
industrial chain. The Group’s strategy is to maximize shareholders’
value by utilizing the cost advantages of Chinese manufacturing
platforms and leveraging on the technological edge accumulated year
by year during the Group’s development.
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Companies Ordinance
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Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Website Address

No. 14 Liangxi Road
Wuxi, Jiangsu
214061

China

Rm. 4003-4005, 40/F
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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2009 2008 Year-on-year
HK$’000 HK$’000 change
—EENF —TENF BEE
FE T FHT
Turnover WA 3,036,881 3,118,692 (2.6%)
Total earnings before interest R RIEBX ~ HiE -
expense, taxation, depreciation NERBHEAINERRELE
and amortisation (“EBITDA”) (TEBITDA) 389,101 200,208 94.3%
Net cash inflow from KR ELEN
operating activities e RAFE 648,660 466,600 39.0%
Depreciation and amortisation e K 8 (514,165) (473,592) 8.6%
Finance costs BhE AR (43,747) (92,293) (52.6%)
Loss before taxation BrR R ES 1B (168,811) (365,677) 53.8%
Taxation e (13,556) (17,242) (21.3%)
Loss for the year KEEEIE
(“Net loss”) ([ A5EE5E) (182,377) (382,919) 52.4%
Loss attributable to owners KATEFA
of the Company EihEE (172,206) (371,535) 53.7%
As at 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H
Total assets BERE 6,985,044 7,131,388 (2.1%)
Total equity M AR RE 3,320,873 3,083,818 7.7%
Bank balances and cash RITEHR NS 1,211,089 856,877 42.5%
Borrowings BE 2,102,535 2,429,481 (13.5%)
Loss per share BREE
Basic (HK cent) AR (B (2.35) (5.98) 60.7%
Diluted (HK cent) (Note 1) g OBIL) (BFEE1) (2.35) (5.98) 60.7%
Net assets per share (HK cent) BREEZE GBW)
(Note 2) CED) 36.78 50.99 (27.9%)
Ratios (Note 2) b= (FieE2)
Gross margin (%) FE (%) 17.73 18.64 (4.9%)
Net profit margin (%) HHF (%) (6.01) (12.28) 51.1%
Current ratio (times) mEEER () 1.39 1.31 6.1%
Quick ratio (times) REPLL R (£5) 1.10 0.90 22.2%
Net debt to equity (%) SHE B RS R (%) 26.54 51.00 (48.0%)
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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

Note 1:

No diluted loss per share for 2009 and 2008 has been presented as the
potential ordinary shares resulted from the Equity Incentive Plan and Share
Option Scheme are anti-dilutive.

Note 2:

Net assets per share

Shareholders’ equity/number of shares issued as at
the end of the accounting period

Gross profit margin

Gross profit/turnover x 100%

Net profit margin = Profit after tax/turnover x 100%

Current ratio = Current assets/current liabilities

Quick ratio = (Current assets — inventories)/current liabilities

Net debt to equity = (Total debts less bank balances and cash)/total

equity x 100%

B EET -

MR A A B B A B E AR B EEBRAR
REESERUE - B W EEZS —TRAFR -FTNFH
SREERHE

FiEE2 -

BREEFE = BRI RE
WEEITRMHEE

ERE = EF /KA X100%

A B = BRBUEER WA X 100%

MELL K = RBEE/ RBAE

B = (RPEE-FE)/ RBafE

FEBEHEZLE = (BEEAEREBRITESHK
RE),/ HEEEEE X 100%
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRETE

Dear Shareholders,

The Company’s business was back on track with the trend of
semiconductor market recovery from the financial crisis since the
second quarter of 2009. As 2009 came to a close, the Company saw
its operation and capacity utilization rates regain growth momentum,
which was mainly attributable to the Company’s implementation of the
analog strategy and business diversification and continued capturing
of opportunities arising from stable demand of the China market.
Consequently, EBITDA increased by 94.3% to HK$389.10 million in
year 2009 from HK$200.21 million in the previous year However, as a
result of a significant impairment loss occurred in the available-for-sale
investments amounted to HK$190 million, the Company recorded a net
loss of HK$182.38 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Facing the challenges brought along by the industrial cycle and the
worldwide financial turmoil in the year under review, the Group strived
to manage all resources to continue its analog strategy rollout with a
series of activities to innovate itself out of the downturn. We believe it
will distinguish ourselves from other industry players when the industry
returns to a positive growth:

e To enhance our position in analog IC market, the Group has
concentrated its resources and efforts in the research and
development capability in power management and green lighting
products in all segments within the Group. CR PowTech, a
fables IC design house of the Group, was awarded No. 34 in the
“Deloitte Technology Fast 500 Asia Pacific Ranking”, a global
platform for measuring, recognizing, and analyzing the growth of
the fastest-growing technology companies in the region.

e The Group has joined hands with several PRC institutions in
the development of internet of things (“IOT”) in China, which
has been highly regarded by the State government. IOT is a
technological revolution that connects objects in a sensory
and intelligent manner by equipping the objects with miniscule
identifying devices. Accordingly, the Group has signed a co-
operation framework agreement with several participants to
form Wuxi Sensor Research and Development Centre of Chinese
Academy of Sciences, for the development of commercial MEMS
(Micro-Electro-Mechanical-Systems) sensor and specialised IC
fabrication line;
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

e To capture the high growth of analog products in consumer and
communication application, the FAB 2, an 8-inch wafer foundry
facility in which the Company indirectly owns 19% equity, has
secured from IBM a license for the use of IBM’s proprietary of
0.18um Radio Frequency (“RF”) CMOS semiconductor technology
and a license to a portfolio of patents. The licensing enabled
the Group’s open foundry segment to capitalize its aggregate
capabilities in the analog technology offering to its customers and
enhanced its position as one of the key players in the world-wide
RF IC market;

The Group is committed to execute its analog strategy, with focuses on
power management products, to serve the massive application market
in consumer electronics, green lighting and automotive electronics.
With the continued prosperity of the Chinese economy and growing
spending in electronics and other consumer products in the domestic
market, we are confident in the performance of the semiconductor
sector, especially the analog segment, in the current and coming
years. In addition, China’s increasing environmental awareness has
given rise to sizeable demand for power-saving and low-carbon
emission products, which also contributes to the strong demand
of analog semiconductors. Given the Group’s proven expertise and
established facilities for green products, it is well-poised to capture
the emerging opportunities.

We believe our analog strategy would allow the Group to fully leverage
its cutting edges in the industry and to contribute in revitalizing the
national microelectronics industry. This in turn will help to maximise
our shareholders’ value in the long run.

Finally, on behalf of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity

to thank all of our shareholders, business partners and our employees
for your support and confidence in us.

~

Mr. SONG Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2010
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEEHPTERESE

Overview

The Company’s business was back on track with the trend of
semiconductor market recovery from the financial crisis since the
second quarter of 2009. For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the Company saw its operation and capacity utilisation rates regain
growth momentum, which was mainly attributable to the Company’s
implementation of the analog strategy and business diversification and
continued capturing of opportunities arising from stable demands of
the China market. However, as a result of a significant impairment
loss amounted to HK$190.00 million occurred in the available-for-sale
investments, i.e. the investment in CSMC Asia Limited (“CSMC Asia”)
in relation to the 8-inch wafer foundry facility, the Company recorded
a net loss of HK$182.38 million.

During the year under review, the consolidated turnover of the Group
decreased slightly by 2.6% to HK$3,036.88 million from HK$3,118.69
million in the previous year. However, the Group’s product focus in
power management contributed HK$413.00 million or 13.6% to the
consolidated turnover in 2009, which represented a 16.2% increase
over the previous year. Meanwhile, the turnover generated from
application of green lighting was HK$523.28 million, 17.2% to the
consolidated turnover of the Group.

Capitalising on the market recovery since the second quarter of
2009, the Group maintained it healthy liquidity position. EBITDA and
cashflow generated from operating activities increased by 94.3% and
39.0%, respectively to HK$389.10 million and HK$648.66 million,
respectively.

e

BELEEMBEE _SENFE_FTERED
CREHNEERRERRZ AQAMNEBE
EREH - HE_ZTENFT_A=+—H1
FE ARAMEERESLINAXERERSY
B OEEFERINARRIBEEEERE - FEB
ZTLERERTEHIEERBEMISOREES KA
EEREE - Rifn - ARAIELERE (B15Es
BT RERIHRENERLZE (M) BRAF
(MFEBEZE(TM]) HIRE) B KBREE
$83£190,000,000/8 7t + M AR A5 FE B A
182,380,000 7T °

OEFAN AEEBNGESLEEHEFD
3,118,690,000/% 7L 74 % 2.6% 2= 3,036,880,000/%
Lo AT AEEMNBEREZHEEGN_2ZZN
FH BN ¥ 58413,000,000/8 TLEk (bR & L %25
13.6% * BEFIENN16.2% B - Lk B FRAFJE
FEA /S ¥ 5 5523,280,0008 7T ' (EAEE
IREEEEIT.2% °

THRNEB_ETNEF_ZHOTIRER - £&
ERIFEBRATEE 2N - EBITDARK ETE
BEENR SN E D AL MN4.3%K%39.0% + A
7 B3 2 389,100,000/% 7T & 648,660,000/ 7T ©
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEEIATERESE

Geographical Business Review M [ £ 5 S

The Group maintains a healthy geographical business mix to balance AEBRIFEBEMMEERKES U FEMEHE
the market differentiation, growth potential as well as concentration £ - #BKEH N EFRRER -

risks.

The following table shows the geographical breakdown of the Group’s FR ML EOMAEEHE " ETTNEF+ =
turnover for the two years ended 31 December 2009: A=+ —HIMEFEMNEERE :

79.9%
HK$2,493,303,0007% 7T

10.0%
HK$311,331,0005% 7T
7.2%

HK$223,680,0007% 7T

74.8%
HK$2,272,481,0005% T

13.6%
HK$413,698,000& 7T

11.0%
HK$332,801,0005& 7T

2.9%
HK$90,378,0005 7T

0.6%
HK$17,901,0005% 7T

2009 2008
Europe [ United States Asia, other than the mainland China [l The mainland China,
R ESE and Hong Kong including Hong Kong
o B K B [ BB LA SO 3B M PEAR (BEEE)
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

B E ¥

wEEF

Technology Migration

The Group is dedicated to maintain its positioning as a leading
analog semiconductor company in China, by focusing to utilize its
accumulated technology in analog semiconductor.

The table below shows the Group’s turnover by process mix for the
two years ended 31 December 2009:

Total 485t
HK$3,036,881,000;8 7t 100%

Analog &
HK$1,876,693,0005& T 61.8%

Testing & Packaging j8l & £ 5
HK$571,478,00058 T 18.8%

Non-analog FEf& 4%
HK$434,722,0005& 7T 14.3%

Others E{th
HK$153,988,000i8 7t 5.1%

2009

Business Units Performance
The performance by each business segment of the Group is set out
as the following table.

Segment turnover 7 &4 258

Open foundry & [EHR T

B#HR
AEBEEANEBETNAEZENER G
Bl EEERBERELERFERARNM

fiL °
TREVNBE-_TTNF+-_A=+—HILMAE
FERTIBEEG T AEEZ X

Total 485t
HK$3,118,692,000i& 7T 100%

Analog &
HK$1,830,764,0005& 7T 58.7%

Testing & Packaging ;8 5 35
HK$599,719,000i% 7t 19.2%

Non-analog FE1& 1%
HK$426,507,0005& 7T 13.7%

Others E{f
HK$261,702,000i& 5t 8.4%

2008

EREURS
AEBEXRBOMORBFIN X -

Open foundry & [EHR T

HK$964,572.0035 7T
Discrete devices 937
HK$795,250.005% 7t

IC testing & packaging £k & #5854 M £ 5
HK$625,561.0058 7T

IC design 25X B &5t

HK$589,210.0058 7T

Supporting function 3z & iR %
HK$62,288.0058 7T

a1

2009
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HK$956,580.005% 7T

Discrete devices 47 2814
HK$808,067.0058 7t

IC design S4B FE R
HK$692,081. OO/§7E

IC testing & packaging ik & 28I 5 M £ 5
HK$599,719.0058 T

/ Supporting function 3z & iR %
HK$62,245.003 7T

2008
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEEIATERESE

Research and Development

The Group continuously invests in its research and development to
maintain its competitive power. During the year under review, the
Group’s research and development expenses increased by 8.2%
to HK$202.32 million, which represented 6.7% of our turnover. The
research and development efforts were primarily focused on the
mainstream consumer electronics market as well as the booming
energy-saving and green lighting markets. The IC design houses within
the Group successfully developed ICs for LED driver and lithium battery
control. High-voltage BCDMOS process technologies are also under
development in our open foundry facilities. The Group has commenced
the cooperation with several institutions for the development of
commercial Micro Electro Mechanical Systems (“MEMS”) sensor and
specialised |C fabrication line for the Internet of Things since November
2009. Seeing the opportunities while China became the biggest
automobile vehicle manufacturer in the world, the Group started its
research and development in automobile electronics products as well
as preparation in quality system build-up in our manufacturing facilities
in our open foundry and discrete devices business units.

T

AREBERFEBEETHBRENRBERFE N -
REBEFR - AE B ER X EMNS2%E
202,320,000/ 7T © 15 H 48 & Z 5 #6.7% B
BHEFEEFETRHEETMHUALEDE
BRREEREZCRATS c REBMEKRERR
AR I I E T A LEDSR B) K 68 B 4L
WEKERE - ARERE LRI ELMESE
BCOMOS& 2t - =TT hF+— A
AEECHBRHEE THESIERZEEAMKER
& ([MEMS ) EREE A R E AR EAMNICEE
o RBEREN AR EHEARNTERER - K
EEIEHE  EREMREAEEFERTYEHT
HRERNERBRO VS EBEUERE 8K
il o
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEHIT

wEEF

Investment in Fab 2

Fab 2 is currently under the stage of capacity ramping up and quality
system certification. Fab 2’s manufacturing capacity has reached
10,000 8-inch wafers per month in December 2009 and it has
obtained certificates of ISO 14000, OHSAS 18001, 1SO27001 and
TS16949, and set up reliable quality assurance and manufacturing
management system. Fab 2 also successfully secured from IBM a
license and has developed 0.18 micron process platform with fab yield
rate above 90% consistently. However, because of the financial crisis
since mid of 2008, Fab 2’s actual ramping-up plan and the production
plan was delayed approximately one year, which adversely effected
Fab 2’s financial performance. In this connection, the Board has
reviewed the estimated future cashflow of Fab 2, and an impairment
amounting to HK$190 million was provided to the carrying value of
the investment.

Employees

Employees are always the most valuable assets to the Group. As at
31 December 2009, the Group had 7,683 employees, of which 60%
hold college or graduate degrees. The Group has maintained a good
working relationship with its employees over the year.

Despite the severe business environment in the semiconductor industry
caused by the global economic tsunami in year 2009, the Group has
adopted effective measures to enhance the organizational structure
and consolidate the manpower. As a result, the overall organizational
efficiency has been improved. To support its strategic development in
energy saving and environmental protection application markets, the
Group continues to invest in technologies research and development
by launching intensive talents recruitment campaigns in year 2009.
The Group maintains a highly professional and devoted team and is
ready to grasp the business opportunities arising from the economic
recovery.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 8 & + B IR A

il 3 0 F =
“HEMEERAECRRELERS - N2
ThFETZA ZHMEFDERS A10,000
Fret <F & B B B H 131SO 14000 * OHSAS
18001 * 1SO27001 . TS16949% :5E - W HllET
AENEEREFRJEEERE - B2 KY
S IBMAY S 5 AR B F FRE0.18HUK T
FEE  ITHMREEFERBEIONBA L - A -
HRZZEZENFFPURCECRIEROBRES
L RN ERERIRAEESN —F - e
Ho_BOPBRBERNTREE - Al EFE
KEH OGS RARRESRER - WIRERA
EEH R B #5190,000,000 7T -

]

EREENEE - BE_ZTTNF
—B A&EHEEEE7683%  HF
B0%MEB A RNEHIA LB - FRAREEE
BE—ERFERIEAE -

RIZZNFRI2HSMEROTE
TERERH  AEERMABCABERE
ABRBIEHMIER - Bt iﬂ%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%xﬁl%‘:
BARRR - RECE L ENRE RIRIRIE B T35 80 5K S
Iﬂk‘):' AEBR T NFEERENRIMSH
% EEBARATRELRD AKEARFE X
Tﬁﬁﬂm/umﬁﬁﬁlﬁ% I B EFH PR E

ﬂﬁ&rﬁ*
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEEIATERESE

Employees (Cont’d)

The management has successfully leveraged on the strengths of
both local Chinese employees and international expertise. The Group
also prides itself for its track record of recruiting and developing local
managerial, technical, and operating personnel. Currently above 99%
of the Group’s staff are citizens of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), including the majority of its managers.

The Group makes contributions to various pensions and pension-
related insurance plans. Employer’s pension cost charged to profit or
loss was HK$60.38 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Prospects for the year 2010

The global semiconductor business started its recovery in the second
quarter of the year 2009, since the industry meltdown triggered by the
financial crisis. Benefiting from the RMB4 trillion economic stimulus
package deployed by the PRC government, the Chinese economy
continued its strong growth. According to the China Semiconductor
Industry Association, the Chinese IC market is projected to grow
over 15% in year 2010 in terms of sales revenue. The Group is
well poised to meet the anticipated strong demand, especially in
power management, green lighting, consumer electronic devices,
communication and automobile markets, by utilizing its comprehensive
and synergetic capabilities in IC design, open foundry, testing and
packaging, as well as discrete devices. With a healthy financial position
and solid operational resources the Group aims to develop its business
to better satisfy market demand.

&S (&)
EEEARMANATEA RS RERESTNE
B AEENTHHERERERAMOEIER - &Kl
REBEETHRERIBH AKERAEAR
RN B T R/PEARKNME (THE]) BRA
7 BRSO KR

AEERERERE LRASHBRREEE
HEFR - RBEE_FTAFF+_A=1+—8H
HFE REZRTHBRNRERRERES
60,380,000/ 7T °

—E-FFEIR

BECHERERTERE  B-_TTNFHE_
FEE 2HRYEBRTXCAHER - XERF
B BT B B 0 PO B R A R AT B - AR BB AR
FRMER - BPELERITEHBERA  R=
Z-FFERBEICTHHKEERAF K EF816%
Mg - REBBEREENBERICRA - FK
A@ERT - AABERD VR ENGS
BIFRE NENFEMB DN MIERR  LEEER
B AERHA - EFHEBESRM  BAKSIED
BB - BREBROMBERALBENEEER
RES  NEBREAREEGAE FHmET
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Report from Chief Executive Officer

BEEHPTERESE

Appreciation 0 25

| would like to express my deepest gratitude to the management team AAZH QA RIEEEK L2 EE T TWME HM
and staff members for their unfailing hard work and dedication. The — & B EA R IR D60 RE A o N2 (B 45 A 4 8 8 T 3%
Group would continue to operate and develop its business so as to EATER  EAHUNBRERESNEE -
enhance its values to the shareholders and employees.

U 7/@?(

Chief Executive Officer BEHITE
Wang Guoping TE¥F
Hong Kong 9 April 2010 /R T —TFMNAANA
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREANWmR DN

TREJEBAASEEHZ _SZAFT A=+
—BIEMEFENEEXRENETEN - ZFE
o8 B RERE R A MBS HEK

The following table shows certain information relating to Group’s
results of operations for the two years ended 31 December 2009, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of the

same period:
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-_A=Z+—HIFE
Year-on-year
2009 2008 Rate
—EBENE ZTENF BEEHE
HK$°000 % HK$'000 % %
THET FHT
Turnover U A 3,036,881 100.0 3,118,692 100.0 (2.6)
Cost of sales SHER A (2,498,468) (82.3) (2,537,396) (87.4) (1.5)
Gross profit ES 538,413 17.7 581,296 18.6 (7.4)
Operating expenses: HERX
Other income/gains HibUr A/ ez 207,845 6.8 142,757 4.6 45.6
Selling and distribution HERDIHER
expenses (84,972) (2.8) (89,357) (2.8) (4.9)
Administrative expenses THRER (324,546) (10.7) (374,152) (12.0) (13.9)
Research and e &
development expenses MEER (202,322) (6.7) (187,006) (6.0) 8.2
Other operating expenses Hih & (89,198) (2.9) (117,775) (3.8) (24.3)
Finance costs BERA (43,747) (1.4) (92,293) (2.9) (52.6)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A 7S - - 84,972 2.7 (100.0)
Reversal of (loss on) closure BOEE—MEE
of a production plant T (B%) 19,716 0.6 (314,119) (10.1) 106.3
Impairment loss on AEHERE
available-for-sale investment REBE (190,000) (6.3) - - -
Loss before taxation K7 Bl E 1B (168,811) (5.6) (365,677) (11.7) 53.8
Taxation IE (13,566) (0.4) (17,242) (0.6) (21.3)
Loss for the year AFEER (182,377) (6.0) (382,919) (12.3) 52.4
Attributable to: AT TR -
Owners of the Company RRNRFEA (172,206) (5.7) (371,535) (11.9) 53.7
Non-controlling interests FEERER (10,171) (0.3) (11,384) (0.4) 10.7
Dividend declared and paid BEERESZMKE = -
Loss per share BREE
- basic (HK cents) — 2R (B (2.35) (5.98) 60.7
- diluted (HK cents) — 858 OBIL) (2.35) (5.98) 60.7
Operating Data REgE
Depreciation and amortisation — $7% K # 514,165 473,592 8.6
Capital expenditure BARY 153,618 767,571 (80.0)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Turnover

Turnover decreased slightly by 2.6% to HK$3,036.88 million for the
year ended 31 December 2009 from the HK$3,118.69 million recorded
in previous year. Such decrease was mainly due to the decline in
average selling prices of each business segment within the Group
amid the global financial crisis and economic downturn. However,
leveraging the industry recovery since the second quarter, the Group
recorded its turnover of HK$1,772.36 million in the second half of
2009, representing 40.2% increase as comparing with the first half
of 2009.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales principally consists of:

—  depreciation;
- direct materials;
- manufacturing overhead,

including utilities, spare parts, repair
and maintenance, rent, and indirect labor; and

— direct labor, including salaries for employees directly involved in
manufacturing activities.

Cost of sales decreased by 1.5% to HK$2,498.47 million in 2009
from HK$2,537.40 million in 2008. During the industrial downturn,
the Group adopted several measures to reduce the manufacturing
overhead, especially in cutting down some of major direct materials’
purchase prices and the labor cost by salary cut and temporary staff
lay-off. In addition, the closure of a manufacturing facility in last year
also reduced fixed manufacturing cost.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 8 & + B IR A

B¥H

RBE—_ZETHE+_A=+—HILEE &
¥ % 2= F #93,118,690,0005% 7T 8L U5 12.6%
%3,036,880,000/8 7T c 2 EM AL EEHR 2K
TR REERAE @WEIR%W“*BE’J
FHEERKE - A SERE_FENEX
EE AEER_TENFTHFHEBEET
1,772,360,0008 70 RZTTNF L¥FIER
40.2% °

SHERE

HEXAEEBE

- ¥E

— EEME

- REBR(H %éwkaa
HEREHEST)

Bt BIERRE -

- HEST
HrEM -

BREERZ2HENERHNEERN

HEKAAR-ZFTZT/\F H2,537,400,000%8 T T
f#1.5%% — T T N4 12,498,470,000/8 7T ° £
TEEXEE  AEEEDNSEERRERES
B HrRREZBEEIZHEEMANRBES
iR APE T KRR RIS E B MR B ITA AN - Mk
FRAM—HRETRITEETBERERK -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased slightly to HK$538.41 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 from HK$581.30 million in previous year. Gross
margin dropped to 17.7% from 18.6% mainly due to the decline in
average selling prices and low capacity utilisation rates in the first
quarter of 2009 amid severe market condition.

The capacity utilisation rates in each of the open foundry, discrete
devices and IC testing and packaging business units all dropped
significantly in the first quarter of 2009. However, with the market
recovery since the second quarter of 2009, the Group’s capacity
utilisation rates in each of the open foundry, discrete devices and IC
testing and packaging business units for the whole year increased,
to 75%, 64% and 74% respectively as compared to those of the
previous year. As a result, the gross profit and gross margin of the
Group in the second half of 2009 were HK$391.61 million and 22.1%
respectively.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of
intangible assets included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and research and development
expenses are as follows:

EH

REBE-_ZTAF+_A=Z+—HLEE  E£F
R 2= FF /581,300,000 7T i F& 2=538,410,000/%
JLo EFEAIH18.6% NEE17.7% " JhEBMH
RZZETNFE-FTHRETRERTHEET
R EREF AR TREFTER o

RZZEZNFE—F ARARERI - 58
HREXNERHFAAEBEMS BERTA
EHPRBTE - AN BZTEENFE=_Fm
HGEENR  AEERARABERI - 52
BHLERERTRAIASEBEMNNEFE
BEF P RIEET75% ~ 64%K74% > A Ik > AN £
ER_ZSTNFTHFHEFNREMNES A
391,610,000/ 7T }222.1% °

EREH

FEASHERAN - HERDHER  TRERUAL
MELFHEBERNYE  BEMRBEOFEAL
BIZEEMBEHEIDT

2009 2008

—EEhE —ZETN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERENITE 508,990 465,403

Amortisation of technical know-how AT B A e i 814 4,197
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments on b {50 FR M TR A AE & O 3 8

land use rights 4,361 3,992
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Operating Expenses

The Group took measures to cut down the staff cost after the global
financial crisis and economic downturn in 2008. The staff costs of
the Group decreased by 10.8% to HK$601.08 million in 2009 from
HK$673.65 million in 2008. In additions, as the Group experienced
the industry recovery in the second to forth quarter of 2009, allowance
for doubtful debts decreased by 56.1% to HK$4.76 million in 2009
from HK$10.85 million in 2008 and write off of inventories decreased
significantly by 96.6% to HK$2.53 million in 2009 from HK$75.31
million in 2008.

Impairment Loss on Available-for-sale Investment

The directors of the Company reviewed the carrying value of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments and determined that the
investment in CSMC Asia was impaired due to the delay in production
plan after the financial crisis. The investment was included in the
Group’s open foundry segment. The recoverable amount of the
available-for-sale investments had been determined on the basis
of their estimated present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the CSMC Asia with a discount rate
of 14% per annum. As a result, an impairment loss amounting to
HK$190 million was charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2009.

EBITDA

The Group’s EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted
to HK$389.10 million, representing an increase of 94.3% compared
with HK$200.21 million in 2008. The increase of EBITDA was mainly
due to increase in other income and decrease of administrative and
other operating expenses. Previous year’s EBITDA contained a one-
time loss arising from the closure of a manufacturing facility.

wEER
AEEBRZZETN\F 2K BE R E|RE
BERBUEIERIEE TAA - AEBENB ITKAR
—ZTE N\ FK673,650,000 7T T FE10.8%E —
T T 1,4 #)601,080,000/8 7T ° k90 » AR AR E
ERFE_STNFE_ZFNFTENEZETFE
REEEHBH =TT\ F 110,850,000/ 7T T f&
56.1% % = T T N, F 94,760,000/ 7T+ 17 & il
BRI — =T\ 4 175,310,000/ L KX iE T &
96.6% = =TT NF 2,530,000/ 7T °

ot SR ERERE

AAREZCEHNAEEAHELERENERE
B WHEEXRERLZE (N ORECEER
ERELEREENETEEMBE - KERENAK
EEARRBERISHE - Al HEREMNITI
CleBEREHRBEERLE (TN EENGE
FAIARRRERENEARETTFINEI14%TUE
7E o Bt - B{EEE190,000,000/8 T HEE =
TENF+ A=+ B LFENEREMR -

EBITDA
AEEHEZZTETNF+ZA=1+—HLEFE
HIEBITDAR3BIIOE B L WZZTZENFH
2.002118& T8 N94.3%  EBITDAE INE B MR
HpWg A RITHR R EaEE T B o KF
HWEBITDABEE —MEETRIEEEEN — XM
[E18 o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Taxation
The details of taxation charged to profit or loss for the two years ended
31 December 2009 are as follows:

REBE_ZTZEAFT _A=+t—HLMEFED
BaRAMBRHREFBOT ¢

2009 2008
—ETAF =T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET

The taxation comprises: HERE :

Current tax BN EATR 1B

PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR EATSR 22,718 23,417
Hong Kong &5 24 201
Over provision in prior year B R ARG (1,060) (3.812)
Deferred tax EEFR IR (8,116) (2,564)
13,556 17,242

On 26 June 2008 the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2009 which reduced corporate profit tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the both years.

Profits tax arising in the mainland China is calculated based on the
applicable tax rates on assessable profits.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EIT Law, the
domestic tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries obtained approval from the relevant tax bureau
and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise which would
be subject to a tax rate of 15% for the both years.

RZZEZENFRNAZ+T B BBILELAER
(ZZETNFRAEHER) - EFBIFEIRLZE
FIBHE  A175%H=165% B _EZTN\ZE
ZETNFHEFERER - Bt - EBFEHT
BAE R EF AR RS A16.5%1E °

o 7 A 50T R A SR 0k
BB -

RIBCREARKMBEREMBEOE) ([REMF
BOED) MAEEMBHEERAR) - P EMNMEB
REBZZEENFE— A~ BRIZ25%H R
BIAK -

MAMBARIE A BEANEHBEIISHE X &
BERKABRMBMEE  EARFR EFRI5%H
KEH -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Taxation (Cont’d) HIE (48)

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the mainland China were  th4h » HETRFPEAZENREAR B —EZ
exempted from tax applicable in the mainland China for two years J\FEMTFRNERCHNERNTBDLEAHNE
starting from 2008 and were granted a 50% relief for the following &% @ WA H 1% = & A] R £50%+ B > ¥ 15
three years. i o

The relevant tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for the — ZN&% @& & B B A RIEARE K FEHEBEH X

both years range from 10% to 25%. NF10%E25% T ©

Dividends e

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the EEATEHLKNBEE-_ZETTAFE+_A=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2009. IEFBEFERRE -

Loss per Share BhEE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based on  ERER K E#FEETER T &ETE
the following data:

2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET
Loss for the purposes of calculating METEERAERLEE
basic and diluted loss per share 1M & MEE (172,206) (371,535)
Number of ordinary shares
ZEREE
2009 2008
—EZThEF —EZNF
(Restated)
(E7))
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FETEFREARR
for the purposes of calculating basic BEEEMSM
and diluted loss per share ('000) i ima e B
(F5%) 7,327,643 6,211,100
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Loss per Share (Cont’d)

The weighted average number of shares in issue for the year ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 have been adjusted to reflect the rights
issue completed on 11 August 2009.

Diluted loss per share for both years does not assume the exercise of
the share options because inclusion of the share options in calculation
of diluted loss per share would result in decrease in loss per share.

The weighted average number of shares shown above has been
arrived at after deducting 100,000,000 shares (2008: Nil) held by
Restricted Share Award Scheme and accounted for by the Company
as treasury shares hold by the Company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s cash on hand was HK$1,221.09
million, representing an increase of HK$364.21 million compared with
that of 31 December 2008. Among the cash balances, 56.6%, 1.4%
and 41.8% were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars respectively.

The table below sets forth the cashflow of the Group for the two years
ended 31 December 2009, as well as the cash and cash equivalents
at the end of each of the two years:

sikEHE (&)
BE_TTNFR-_FTEN\F+-_A=+—HLt
FENMBFHERHTRNBELERAE - UK
MR —ZTZNFENAT—HEROEREE -

AEREFNEREEFBEY TRLEREDE
Tﬂi RARESRESEERT ABRES
B ZRGERE -

EXFRE) IR IR0 BB B E R - KRR A
REIER ) BB A BB B AR RIRRIEERKR
7 #9100,000,000f i fn (ZFT/\EF « &) -

REBEERELER
RZZETZNFF+ZA=+—HB  A5EFERS
£1,221,000,0008 7T E—_ZTZENF+ ==
+— B #1364,210,000/8 70 ° BB F
56.6% A AREE - 1.4% BB T R41.8%BETT °

TRIFAEEBE_ZTAF+_A=1T—H
LIREFENRERERZMEFERFRNR
ERASEEY

2009 2008

—ETAF ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ExT FHET

Net cash generated from operating activities KL EHEANIRS TR 648,660 466,600
Net cash used in investing activities REZHBHANR S FHE (392,486) (844,858)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEETHELNIRS F5E 106,842 388,089
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MR SEYREINEE 363,016 9,831
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNEE TR SR B B Ay S 2 1,196 7,836
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  F¥IR& MIREEHED 856,877 839,210
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERBEENIEESEEY 1,221,089 856,877
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Indebtedness
The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were
as follows:

&%
AEBHZ _ZTZNFEFN_ZTTNF+_A=+
—HMEEWDT :

2009 2008

—EZAF —ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FET

Secured bank loans BIKMEITER 88,961 128,603

Unsecured bank loans IR ITE 2,013,574 2,300,878
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : GBI AEE F—F

current liabilities WE|HR 2 58 (627,535) (515,891)

Amount due after one year shown as FERHEET—F&
non-current liabilities 28R 2 IR 1,475,000 1,913,590

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total bank borrowings of
HK$2,102.54 million, of which HK$627.54 million was short-term in
nature which carried interest at rates ranging from 1.03% to 3.51% per
annum. The long-term portion of HK$1,475.00 million carried interest
at rates of 1.08% to 1.13% per annum and was repayable within 4
years. Bank borrowing of HK$1,300.00 million, with maturity date in
March 2012, was guaranteed by CRH. Further more, CRH is required
to remain as a majority beneficial owner of the issued share capital
of the Company and shall maintain its management control over the
Company under the terms of the loan facilities agreements.

Capital Expenditures

The Group requires capital to build, expand, upgrade and maintain
its production facilities and equipment. The Group incurred a capital
expenditure of HK$153.62 million in 2009, mainly including HK$41.90
million spent on upgrading 6-inch wafer fabrication lines, HK$29.64
million on construction of IC testing and packaging facilities, HK$45.60
million on construction of supporting facilities and the rest on discrete
device manufacture and other facilities.

The Group will continue to implement its prudent capital management
policy and optimize the allocation of its capital resources.

RZZBEENF+_A=+—8 AEEHEFRT
% E2,102,540,000% 7T + EH627,540,000/% 7T
WERITERURF M RN F1.03E £3.51F 5
8. ° 1,475,000,0007% T & 8RR 1T B FUE F I XK
1.08EZE113EFE  WEEMNFANERE - Hf
1,300,000,000% iR 1TfE E Ty R E M £ B2 H
BR NMEAZZE—-F=H - It BEE
HEEREGER  EEERANALRRBEET
RANEZEREB A WEEBRFEARQF]
BB IR o

= ¢:NiE-

REBFEESUER B BARSBEEE
RELRE NEBR _STNFEFEAHLA
158,620,000/ 7T + £ 141,900,000/ 7T A 1A F+
MO~ G Bl A E 4R - 29,640,000/ 7T AR Mz
SRE BB R EFRE - 45,600,00078 T AR
FESIRENE SR TRBENARS IR HRER
R H A0 AR o

AEBGEENTERNENFEIHE
PREERERNE °

Wit —
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Charge of Assets BEHRR
As at 31 December 2009, certain Group’s assets with carrying values R-ZZZENF+-F=+—H  AEBREES
of HK$97.56 million were pledged with banks to secure certain 97,560,000/ CH) & T EE D KT IRITIAKER

banking facilities. ATFHRITEE -
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities RIERSAREE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEIE
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had the following RZZEZENFRZEZENFFTZA=F—
significant capital commitments: H AEBEMERERREDT
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2009 2008
—EENE —EFENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Capital expenditure in respect ERAREDE  BER
of acquisition of property, RENEARFT
plant and equipment
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERTH 247,071 356,968
Contracted but not provided for BRTHEREE 68,207 47,230
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d) RERBARERE (8)

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RIEHR - AEEN T REHCEHLIA
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable THRRFEES T HAERAT

operating leases which fall due as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—H

2009 2008

—EThEF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHERT FAET

Within one year —FR 5,525 6,218

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERT (BEEERMRT) 2,072 7,403

After five years AFi&g = 1,893

7,597 15,514

(c) Contingent liabilities (c) BREE
During the year, the Group has provided corporate guarantees FR AEECREREREEFHNEHNRY
for the down payment of loans of its employees amounting to 610,000 7t (= & & J\ £ : 1,980,000/
approximately HK$0.61 million (2008: HK$1.98 million). The L) EE A EER - EBEE EMIERE
management anticipates that no material liabilities will be arising TEEEEMERAE -

from the above guarantees.
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(d)

Financial guarantee contract

RERFIAEE (&)
(d) BMBRERREXN

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2009 2008
—genE —TI)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount IREE
Financial guarantee contract WS ERE L = 10,790

On 24 November 2008, the Group and CRH issued a financial
guarantee to the extent of US$140 million to a bank in respect
of a term loan facility agreement granted to a fellow subsidiary,
CSMC Asia of which US$26.6 million (representing the portion
of the financial guarantee covered by the Group) was attributable
to the Group. The fair value of the financial guarantee contract at
initial recognition of HK$10,790,000 was capitalised as investment
cost of the available-for-sale investment. CSMC Asia repaid the
loan and cancelled the undrawn portion of the facility during
the year. An amount of HK$1,790,000 has been released to
profit or loss up to the date of cancellation of the facility. The
remaining balance of HK$9,000,000 was adjusted to the cost of
the available-for-sale investment as return of investment since
the fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition was
previously treated as deemed contribution to CSMC Asia.

R-ZEENE+—A-+MA - AEHEE
BEBRETREAMNBARZERLZE (EM)
MEMERBEHER —BRITELRNSE
140,000,000 7T & LR & BF 5 & 4R - H A
26,600,000 7T (BRI & E 69 B IS E (R FT &
EMED) RANEBEFAE - BHREERNIE
ERE DR AF(E10,790,0008 LB E AL
RAEHERENRERAR - ZEH LE (D
M) ERFREEEFIEUE RS AR E S
19 £ %1,790,0008 L EFF AH ZEEUH Bt
ZHH/EZEERF - #2%89,000,0007% 7T ¥
AREAHIEERERAERRERE - R
AR B RERE M EERATFEERER
WRIERRIEHER L (M) FE -

Bk ESCPRIREEE S -
HARBE -

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any other A 62 B0 4% A ] E A & ok

commitments or contingent liabilities.
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Legal Liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or claim
was pending or threatened or made against the Company as far as
the Company is aware of.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies
Except for those disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the current or prior periods. The details are set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Going Concern

On the basis of current financial projections of facilities available, the
Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the going concern basis
continues to be adopted in preparing the financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group undertakes certain sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuation arises. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate. The
Group and its subsidiaries are mainly exposed to currency fluctuation
of United States dollars and RMB. The management believes that,
considering the working capital position of the Group, the Group will
have sufficient foreign exchange to meet its foreign exchange liabilities
as they become due. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purpose.

EREE
HE-_ZTZAF+_A=Z+—RHILFE  ARQF
WSS RAERERFARMTE - BRARAIF
Ao EEMEART SR EHARRRMERFL
FHR o

GREERETBRED

Brira M ISR M 2P B SN - BRI )
RIETERBMBREEL AR EERENLE
EUBBRRUBEATE - HFBERGEUH
WARME2 -

FHREE

ERBRERHRALAISHRERE - A&ER
AEAGRERRHNMBERERELE -
b GHRMBERRESEERATELEERE

S EE L b IR
AEBERESTUINEIENEER S - HEER
PE R EE B o AR BB T ) B R HME [E X1
EHERAEIERR - AEBERENBRRE
EHREITRARENEERBAR - EEER
5 ERIAEENEEESHN  AEERR
RESMNEXNEIHMINERE - REBHOBEKE
TRIEHBENMSRITERS -
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2009, the gearing ratio, calculated as net
borrowings divided by total equity was 26.5%, compared with 51.0%
as at 31 December 2008.

Other Significant Matters

On 26 June 2009, the Board announced a proposal to raise not
less than approximately HK$439.1 million before expenses by way
of a rights issue at HK$0.15 per rights share (“Rights Issue”). The
purpose of the Rights Issue is to strengthen the Company’s capital
base, augment its overall financial position, and provide more flexibility
to enable the Company to capture any development and expansion
opportunities which may arise in the future, including expansion of
the Group’s manufacturing capacity, upgrading of its manufacturing
capabilities and strengthening its technology bases. On 7 August
2009, the Company has received a total of 431 valid acceptances and
applications in respect of 5,683,244,813 rights shares, representing
approximately 194% of the total number of rights shares available
under the Rights Issue and raised HK$437.6 million.

Bfatt®x

RIZZFZFNFT_A=1T—RH ZEEFREENA
BaBETEMENAaELERR26.5% MR
ZENF+ZA=1+—HAIR51.0% °

HitbEXEIE

RZZEZENF A+ B ZEECSHREA
ZERERRGHDOASE TETHR ([HR]) M
FREE DR 4439,100,0005 7T (A 1B 48
HER) HERHNBEMNEEEERNRAANERE
W URAREEY BN WRHEXRESM -
FEARARAIAEIEBEATRELROEAER K
EREE  BEBASNSENEERS A&
HEEKTRMBEEMER - R=ZZTZLF
NALRB - RRFIEZEE P K%5683,244,813M%
TR B SR R RERE L4310 - EIR
BHREZHBRROBELN104%  WEEES
437,600,000/ 7T °
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XERMSE

HONG KONG CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Company complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SONG Lin did not attend the Annual
General Meeting on 26 June 2009 (the “AGM”) due to other crucial
business on that date. The Chairman is aware that it deviated from the
provision E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates that the Chairman should
attend the annual general meeting of the Company. However, the
Chairman has asked a Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu to
act on his behalf. In addition, the Chairpersons of Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees and the Chief Executive Officer attended
the meeting. The Company considers that their presence is sufficient
for (i) answering questions from and (i) effective communication with
shareholders who were present at the AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that, for the year ended 31
December 2009, they have complied with required standard of dealing
set out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes its responsibilities to shareholders and aims
to protect and enhance shareholders’ value through proper corporate
governance. The Group is committed to ensuring transparent, open
and accountable disclosures.

The Board continuously upholds the appropriate standards of corporate

governance within the Group, thereby ensuring that the business is
conducted in an honest, ethical and responsible manner.
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PN

ExEAWME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)

The Board understands its responsibility to prepare the financial
statements, the annual and interim reports in a balanced manner.
This similar responsibility extends to include other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures under the Listing
Rules. The Board will also report to regulators any information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.
The statement of the auditors’ about their reporting responsibility on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 85 to 87.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2009, the Board consists of eleven Directors,
including the Chairman of the Board, three of whom are Executive
Directors and members of the management. There are eight Non-
Executive Directors, of whom three are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Board benefits from the experience and expertise of
each Director. All Board members understand their duties to make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group, ensures
effective management and provides proper supervision of the Group’s
business conduct.

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed
and the Company’s strategic development. Approval of the Board
is required for the strategies of the Group, annual budget, major
acquisition and disposal, dividend policy, appointment and retirement
of Directors, remuneration policy and other major operational and
financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the Group are the
responsibility of the Company’s management.

On 29 March 2010, each Independent Non-Executive Director has
provided a written statement confirming of his/her independence to
the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered that each Independent Non-Executive Director continues
to be independent.

EEEL (8)

EXeHAOHEAEEURANST ARETBE
B FHREPHRE  WERTTEERELED
MARERN R ERE N D E R H AR5
B-EFgNenERARSRBEERER
THRENTAER - BRAZBE YT B HREOER
EERENBR - &N IE B AR ESS A £87

o

e

\

EEE

R-ZETN+-_A=+—H EFght—RE
S BREFEER  HT=REWTES
LREEEBKE BEFEBR/N\RFRTESF  H
TZERBUINTEE EFCREEEMNE
ERRIABAMEE MAEFABRABERR
TR @B EHIRTE -

EZgNIZRERREREABRRNEHE
B YHEARBHERBRE  BERAWEER
HEEERARBENEBRTR -

EX2RAEARANERNANKRER - A&
BHKEE  FERE BAMBRIEEEE K
BBR EENZEMEME  HFMBREEME
REERMKEE  HAGIESEHE - £ %
B EEEERRAAERENEE -

RZZF-FTF=ZA-1+NB EBIFRTES
EREEMARRNEAGEHEDZH - ERE
BYNARE c ARRNRBREBUIFATES
BB RSEBIIE -
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEE
The members of the Board of Directors during the year 2009 are: RZETNFEESENE S

Date Elected

Name Title Or Re-elected Period of Term Date First Elected
#E Bifu EZEREERY - BEZERE
SONG Lin Chairman/Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
PN TR/ RTES “EE\£RA-+N\E = —EE/\E=A=-1H
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu Vice Chairman/Executive Director 26 June 2009 3 years 28 January 2003
BRETF BEE/ 9ES ZZTNFERAZTRE = ZZT=F-HA-+)/\H
WANG Guoping Chief Executive Officer/ 29 May 2007 3 years 1 September 2006
FEAT Executive Director “ETEERAZTAR = Z2ERFENA—H
BRBITE/BES
ZHU Jinkun Vice Chairman/Non-Executive Director 26 June 2009 3 years 1 September 2006
Ko BER/ FHITES “EENFEAAZHRR = “EZRENA-B
JIANG Wei Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
¥z FRITES ZEE\FRAZHNAR = —ET\E=A=+A
LI Fuzuo Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
FiRiE FRTES ZEEN\FRAZHNAR = —ZEN\F=AZ1H
DU Wenmin Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
HXE FRITES “ZE\FRAZHNR = “ZEN\F=AZ1H
Frank LAl Ni Hium Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
RoutE FRITES “ZE\FRAZTN\R = —ZTN\F=AZTH
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Independent Non-Executive Director 26 June 2009 3 years 8 May 2004
BUFNITES “EENFRAZTAR = —ZTMERANA
OON Kum Loon Independent Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 8 May 2004
heE BUFHRITES ZZENFRAZFNE = “ZTWERANR
KO Ping Keung Independent Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
BRR BUFRTES ZEENFRAZTNAR = “EZ\F=A-+A
Note: FifEE -

The term of office of each Director, including Independent Non-Executve SHES BBV IEFATESMNTIHE=F  ER
Director, is for a period of three years subject to the requirement that one- — EZAR AAEGERMAIEIS 11215 (T E S AR
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general =% 7 —WE BENTEREEATAE FéfFEM - £
meeting pursuant to the Articles 95 and 112 of Article of Association of the — Bl 44 « ZF@iEd 4 « R A4 NS FeHRFER
Company. Mr. WANG Guoping, Mr. LI Fuzuo, Mr. Du Wenmin and Professor ~ AR EIEAF AS HEE » ERSHAEBREERET -
KO Ping Keung will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting but being

eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
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EXERRE

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEESSNEEZEE5E3
T

The attendance of Directors in Board meetings and Board committees R ==
meetings during the year 2009 are as follows: FHROFERAT :

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee
Board meetings meetings meetings
meetings ERZEEY FHZEES REZEE®
Name ®H EEgeR = = =
SONG Lin KRR 1 - - -
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu PR IEF 8 - 2 3
WANG Guoping FEF 8 - - 3
ZHU Jinkun R 4 - - -
JIANG Wei R 1 - - -
LI Fuzuo TEAE 5 - - -
DU Wenmin HXR 8 4 - -
Frank LAl Ni Hium* BOL 8 - - -
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA 7 4 2 3
OON Kum Loon et 8 4 2 3
KO Ping Keung mRME 8 - - 3
Total number of —ETNEFEN

meetings held in 2009 F& 4R 8 4 2 3

*  Re-designated as Non-Executive Director from Executive Director of the ~ * B-ZTNF A —BRENTEEFFHEIFHT

Company from 1 June 2009 =
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FEERBRSE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for formulating and setting Group
strategies and policies in conjunction with the Board and for
ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings and that all Directors receive complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer carries
out the strategic initiatives and decisions made by the Board, and
is in charge of the Company’s day to day management. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and not
performed by the same individual.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the term of
appointment for each of them is for a term of three years commencing
from the date of appointment.

The functions of Non-Executive Directors include the following:

e participating in board meetings of the Company to bring an
independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct;

° serving on the audit, remuneration and nomination committees;
and

e scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

EFFERERIITE

TREREREEEEEHFANE MR AEBERE R
BE UERHER2EEELAHENENEZES
RIEENFERLREBEZTEICERASEEH -
BEATERENTESTSFHARE T IR
RERABARARAEER - TFEHEFERITEN
ABDRENIFRR— AREE -

ERITES

BRIBFFATER (BEBYIINTES) NEE
Wi BERATEENIMBZEAHEN =
f'io

SEHTEENRELT -
. BRAATMEECEH - BB B -

¥E AR AR ZEZERTAER
TEfE L HI T

s RER FTHRRERZEERS K

s EEAKEREZWELRBZEKE R
R RERFRENER -
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TEXEERBE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FNESE

The primary aim of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate HMZEEMNEZEMNRALRNEE RS NHHHI
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and TFEZHEMNRFEBEE -FHNEZESNMES
compensation packages for the employees of the Group. The @ HRAEENE THEMBEBR
Remuneration Committee is also entrusted to adopt appropriate staff

development and retention policies.

it

The member of the Remuneration Committee for the year 2009 are A%
set out on page 6 of this Annual Report. wE

CTNFEHFMEEGREFBHNAF

o

5”&1 Nﬂi
/m}l

/\

The roles of the Remuneration Committee as delegated by the Board HEZEG@EEE=SR FHBIENT
are as follow:

e Torecommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure  * FE@MHFMETHE BRI T ERMEHR

for all remuneration of the Directors, senior management and other MEF AAEEBNEEZES  SRTEE
employees of the Group by the establishment of a formal and K E A & & B P77 7 BN ET SR A BOOR R 2R 1
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration MESSRDEBER

matters;

e To determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive ® AFBRITEEL SN E R BE T H T H O
directors and senior management; Gl

e To review and approve performance-based remuneration by e %“Q%Aﬁ%$@$ﬁ—?§§?&%§%ﬁ =i

reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board M HLEE R BT
from time to time; and

e To consider other relevant matters as referred to it by the o ZEZEEESHHEMNEMEBESEE -
Board.
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TEEBRBE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The member of the Nomination Committee for the year 2009 are set
out on page 6 of this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering any
nominations of new members to the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board after a due consideration to the candidate’s background
and experience. The Board will ultimately decide on appointment.

The roles of Nomination Committee as delegated by the Board are
as follow:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

e To identify individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; and

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and
the Executive Directors.

ﬂﬁfﬁ%é%@ﬁ%%% RN AL

REZESAAEZEREMKENAESRS X
REEZBREANSRLEREAESTSREM
HEEZ EFSRATTEMNRERTRE -

REZEGEEZRTHRENT :

s TEHMEMEFSNRE  RENAK - X
ERZHENPREESRHEEBES

s VEHEANAERKAEZTGNENAE
VAREFSRERRZREALTEERIR
'f/\}:&%%ﬁﬁé ;

s RELMRANKRE  FHEBIIFATES
MBI &

s HNMAMZREXREHNZIESZTNESE (FH=
ITRERHMTES) NEEAINEEEER
EFRgRftEBES
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TEXEERBE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The member of the Audit Committee for the year 2009 are set out on
page 5 of this Annual Report.

The roles of Audit Committee as delegated by the Board are as
follows:

° Review financial statements and formal announcements relating
to financial performance, and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. Review audit plans and reports
of the external auditors and internal auditors, and consider the
effectiveness of actions or policies taken by Management on the
recommendations and observations. Review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually. Review the nature
and extent of non-audit services performed by the auditors;

° Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor;

° Meet with external auditors and internal auditors, without the
presence of Management, at least annually;

e Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company at least annually;

e  Review interested person transactions;

e  The Committee shall report to the Board on material matters,
findings and recommendations;

e |nvestigate any matters within the Audit Committee’s purview,
whenever it deems necessary; and

° Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.

ERLZEQREFERTHRENT

s EHAEMMBRANUBHRRALEARSE
W E A ERM RS FI 6 - FH
SINEE A SR EM B P9 B AR BAD ) | AZ AT 8 3R
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BE B R B - ERRABAETTHISE
ZERBOEE REE

o REF - EFETERAUSIINEZEEAES
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R BEERERS
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TERERBMSE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION ZEETEN &

The Group re-appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent A& EEIEES) ¢« FHER FT S EITA ST H
auditor for the year 2009. The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche HFEMBIZEBH - R-ZTTNF > 7=

Tohmatsu in 2009 includes: g e BEMR A LFTENITHIME BIE
Service Remuneration Type (Audit Service/Non-Audit)
AR [0 BRl (RERE S EZRE)
2008 Annual Audit HK$2,900,000 Audit
ZEEN\FFEZE 2,900,000 7T %

2009 Interim Review HK$645,000 Audit
ZEZNFHEEMN 645,000/ 7T =

Tax Service HK$10,000 Non-Audit

% R 7% 10,0007 7T e

Special Project HK$422,000 Non-Audit

FFIRIE B 422,000/ 7T I

Note: B EE -

The special project is mainly for the Rights Issue announced on 26 June 2009.  H/HIEH FZHEAR_ZTNF AT HEMHER
HE o
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i

*ERWME

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board and management understand that proper internal controls
not only facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
ensuring compliance with laws and regulations, but most importantly,
they serve to minimize risk exposure for the Group. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks
associated with its business activities and has implemented practical
and effective control systems, including:

e A clearly defined organizational structure;

e Budgeting and forecasting systems for performance measurement
and monitoring of strategic business units; and

° Regular reviews of financial performance.

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining an effective
internal control system. The Company’s internal controls are enhanced
by the work done by the Company’s Internal Audit Department, which
regularly carries out internal audit reviews and reports its findings
to the Audit Committee for their consideration and guidance for
improvement to the internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

During the year, the Group has proactively enhanced its corporate
transparency and communications with its shareholders and the
investment community through its annual and interim reports.
Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the Company
maintains its website at www.crmicro.com on which press releases,
announcements, circulars, notices and financial and other information

relating to the Company and its business are disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESNEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SONG Lin, aged 47, was appointed Chairman of the Group
in March 2008 and is also appointed as directors of its certain
subsidiaries. Mr. Song is concurrently Chairman of CRH and China
Resources National Corporation. Mr. Song is also the Chairman of
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited and the Deputy
Chairman of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China.
He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Geely Automobile
Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive Director of The Bank of East
Asia (China) Limited. Mr. Song was previously the Chairman of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited and China Resources Land Limited
and resigned from such positions on 30 April 2009 and 18 June 2009
respectively. He was also the Chairman of China Resources Logic
Limited (now renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited) and
an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Merchants Bank Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Song has extensive experience in corporate management
and is currently responsible for the overall business development and
strategic planning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor
Degree in Solid Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai,
China, and joined CRH in 1985.

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, aged 71, was appointed as Vice
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Group in
March 2008. Dr. Chen has been the Chairman of CSMC Technologies
Corporation, the foundry business of the Group, since 1998. Dr. Chen
was the founder and the former Chairman of Mosel and Mosel-Vitelic
Inc. He was also the founder of Crosslink Technology Partners and the
former Chairman of the board of directors of Abovenet. Dr. Chen has
over 31 years of experience in the semiconductor industry. Dr. Chen
graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering
in 1965 from the National Taiwan University. He was awarded a
Doctoral Degree in Electrical Engineering by Cornell University in
1971.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. WANG Guoping, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from March 2008. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. He has extensive experience in semiconductor research
& development, production management, strategic planning and
business development. Before joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as
the General Manager of China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation,
the largest Semiconductor Manufacturers in the mainland China. He is
now the Vice President of China Semiconductor Industry Association
and the President of China Semiconductor Industry Association
Integrated Circuit Branch. Mr. Wang obtained a Master Degree in
Engineering from the University of Electronic Science and Technology,
Chengdu, the PRC in 1986.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG Wei, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Jiang is currently a Director,
Vice President of CRH and China Resources National Corporation.
Mr. Jiang is a Non-executive Director of China Resources Enterprise,
Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China
Resources Land Limited and China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is
also an executive director of Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Greentown China
Holdings Limited. He is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. He joined CRH in 1988. Mr.
Jiang obtained his Bachelor Degree in International Trade and Master
Degree in International Business and Finance from the University of
International Business and Economics in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESNEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. ZHU Jinkun, aged 55, was appointed as Vice Chairman and Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Zhu joined CRH
in 1991 and occupied many important positions successively since
then. He is currently Vice President of, and the Secretary General of
CRH. He also has extensive experience in semiconductor operations
and has been responsible for strategic planning, business development
and operation of the CR Logic group’s semiconductor business since
1997. Mr. Zhu graduated from the Nanjing University, the PRC and
obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from
the University of International Business and Economics, the PRC.

Mr. LI Fuzuo, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in March 2008. He is currently Vice President of,
and the Chief Strategy Management Officer of CRH, and the General
Manager of the Strategy Management Department of CRH. He is also
a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited,
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited
and China Resources Cement Holdings Limited. Mr. Li obtained
both his Bachelor and Master Degrees in Mechanical Manufacturing
Engineering from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
in 1987 and 1990 respectively.

Mr. DU Wenmin, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Du is currently Vice
President of, and Chief Human Resources Officer of CRH. He is also a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited, China
Resources Land Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited
and China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Du has his MBA Degree
from the University of San Francisco, USA.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Frank LAl Ni Hium, aged 48, was re-designated from an
Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director of the Company and
ceased to be the Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Qualified
Accountant and Authorised Representative of the Company with effect
from 1 June 2009. Mr. Lai is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
China Resources Enterprise Limited. Before joining the Group in May
2000, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings
Ltd., a company listed in Singapore and before then, he served as the
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International
Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources Gas Group Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LAl
graduated from the University of Western Australia in 1982 with a
Bachelor Degree in Commerce. He was awarded a graduate diploma in
Business and Administration from the Curtin University of Technology
of Western Australia in 1988. He is a member of the Australian Society
of Certified Practising Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mrs. OON Kum Loon, aged 58, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mrs. OON
graduated from the University of Singapore in 1973 with a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree. She was awarded the Esso
Scholarship during her tertiary education and completed her Honours
Degree in Business Administration at the University of Singapore
in 1974. Mrs. OON has approximately 30 years’ experience in the
banking industry. Over this period, she led and managed a diverse
range of portfolios in DBS Group. Her extensive experience included
credit management, capital markets and risk management. She
retired from DBS as chief financial officer in 2003. Mrs. Oon is an
independent director of Keppel Corporation Limited and Singapore
Power Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA, aged 43, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mr. YBEMA
obtained an LLM in business law from the University of Leiden in
1990 and in 1993 gained certification as corporate counsel through
the Dutch bar exam equivalent for in-house counsel. Mr. YBEMA was
part of the Corporate Legal Department at Royal Philips Electronics
N.V. of the Netherlands, focusing on its activities in the PRC. Mr.
YBEMA was first assigned to Hong Kong in May 1995 where his brief
included Philips’ Asian and PRC Mergers & Acquisitions activities.
In 1997, Mr. YBEMA joined US-based Global IT outsourcing giant
Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) in 1997 as European Counsel
in London and in 2000 returned to Asia as General Counsel for
CSC’s Asia Group. He currently has an international corporate and
cross-border M&A practice which involves acting as Asia-Pacific and
China corporate counsel to major MNCs, a venture capital firm as
well as smaller clients in a variety of industries. Mr. YBEMA is co-
founder and first (now immediate past) President of the Hong Kong
Corporate Counsel Association and was also a Founding Member of
the Singapore Corporate Counsel Association. He has served on the
Professional Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and speaks seven languages including passable
Mandarin Chinese.

Professor KO Ping Keung, aged 58, Professor KO received his
Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science from the University of California at Berkeley. He was on the
faculty of the University of California at Berkeley from 1983 to 1993,
and served as the Dean of Engineering at the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1994 to 2001. For his contribution
to the development of device models used for IC design, Professor
KO was awarded the 2002 |IEEE Solid-State Circuits Award by the
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. Professor KO is also
an independent non-executive director of Henderson Investment
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited, shares
of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was a former
Independent Non-Executive Director of China Resources Logic Limited
(resigned on 20 March 2008).

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 8 & + B IR A

E ; n‘E

BIERITESE (8)

Ralph Sytze YBEMA%4A @ I+ = W_-F
ZNFRANBEZEAEAR Tﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬁi
£ o YBEMASL AR — L NZEFE S University of
Leidenf 2 A BM - WHR— N L= F &SR
BAREAEMDEFZER - HERANIEMD
B JE - b A% B#IRoyal Philips Electronics N.V.7>
XEREIFINKE  B)XFEET - YBEMA
EER—NANEFHRNRREES  EEHRIE
PhilipsB) e M PHIE 275 - R — A EF - R
MAER AEHA 2 E AR INIRS e
Computer Sciences Corporation ([CSCJ) {EA
BUMER RZZTEZF - FERIMEFECSC

TEMEEN—REED - B ATEBRBE AR RE
EHBER JJZ‘TEEKIE&EPIE AR AD A AR
BEETENEZERARA BRERA LK

INEF o YBEMASE E%Hong Kong Corporate
Counsel Association®) 8l #if A 2 —F & £ =
& (B0 3% 3R 1T) » 1% UK /2Singapore Corporate
Counsel Associationf &K & « MEBNES
%%%FEE%HW&M HEBE  REELRBES
(PIEEBLBE)

BREBHEER  BT/\R SEERERMMER
RBETFTIRATERBMEBLEM - R — 1
N=ZFZ2-NAN=FHAMMNHERKAEHRE -
ER—NANMEE—_TE-FH/TEREAR
IRBERER - EEEE_ZZE_FH3HER
T(ERBERAE)  REMCENERRF RFTHNE
Bl RITAEREKEERBER AR REBEREKE
EERAANBIINTES  MEIFNRND

EBTEH QWIthoﬁﬁﬁiﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬂT
BYFTEFAER ENF=ZRA=-+HB#E

£

7 ANNUALREPORT2009 —ZEZ N FEFE WS



Directors and Senior Management

EESREREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YU Yu, aged 48, was appointed as a Deputy General Manager
of the Group in March 2008 with responsibility for the management of
Human Resources and Corporate Operation. Mr. Yu is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Yu joined China Resources
group since 1985. With extensive experience in international trading,
corporate strategy and investment, Mr. Yu has served many key
positions in corporate function of and the subsidiaries of the China
Resources group, including COSMOS Machinery Enterprises Limited,
the Enterprises Corporate Development in China Resources (Holdings),
CSMC Technologies Corporation as a non-executive director, and CR
Logic as an executive vice president. Mr. Yu holds a Master Degree in
Engineering in Dalian University of Technology in 1985 and a Master
Degree in Business Administration in San Francisco University of
California, USA.

Dr. CHEN Nan-Xiang, aged 48, was appointed as the Deputy
General Manager of the Group in March 2008 with responsibilities
for the group-wide strategic planning and business development.
He joined China Resources Microelectronics (Holding) Limited in
November 2002 as director and deputy general manager. Dr. Chen
was director and general manager of Wuxi CR Semiconductor Wafers
& Chips Ltd. during the period of 2004 to March 2008. Prior to joining
the China Resources Group in November 2002, Dr. Chen had worked
with the Supertex Inc located in Sunnyvale, California, the Max Planck
Institute for Microstructures in Germany; the Fraunhofer Institute of
Integrated Circuits in Germany; and the Institute of Microelectronics
of the Peking University. Mr. Chen received a Bachelor Degree of EE
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu in
1982, Master Degree of EE from Shaanxi Microelectronics Institute in
1985 and a PhD of Physics from Beijing Normal University in 1989.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-Song, aged 47, was appointed as a Deputy
General Manager of the Group in March 2008 and has been
appointed as the President of the CSMC Technologies Corporation,
the open foundry business of the Group with effect from 1 July
2007. Prior to joining the Group in August 2003, Mr. Deng was
the co-founder and Vice President of Resources and Corporate
Strategy of Ardentec Corporation, Taiwan and the Director of Liaison,
Finance and Administration of Vanguard International Semiconductor-
America, California, USA. Mr. Deng has over 20 years of experience
in the semiconductor industry and has extensive experiences in
semiconductor industry and corporate management. Mr. Deng
graduated from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan with a Bachelor
of Science in engineering degree and holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Management School of the National
Taiwan University.

Mr. ZHAO Jian-Kun, aged 43, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group and General Manager of Wuxi China Resources
Semico Co., Ltd, which is engaged in IC design business. He joined
the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1989 and has
extensive experience in managing IC and discrete devices operations.
Mr. Zhao holds a master degree from the University of Electronic
Science and Technology, Chengdu in 1989.

Mr. ZHANG Xiao-Jian, aged 48, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008. Mr. Zhang has been appointed
as the General Manager of Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech. Ltd.,
which is engaged in IC packaging and testing business. He joined
the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1979 and has
extensive experience in managing IC and discrete devices packaging
operations. Mr. Zhang holds a degree majoring in IC Processing from
the Vocational College owned by the affiliated enterprise of the Institute
of Ministry of Electronic Industries in 1984, and attended an advanced
course of Administration Management at the Remin University of China
from 2000 to 2002 and obtained his Master of Business Administration
Degree from the Barrington University, the USA in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. MA Wei-Qing, aged 44, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 and is also the General Manager
of Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma
has been involved in semiconductor’s research & development since
he joined the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1987 and
has extensive experience in manufacturing and business management
of Integrated Circuits and Discrete Devices. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor
Degree in Physics with major in Semiconductor from the Nanjing
University in 1987 and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the Hong Kong Business Administration College in 2006.

Mr. PENG Qing, aged 38, was appointed as the Deputy Chief
Financial Officer of the Group in October 2008 and re-designated as
an Assistant General Manager of the Company in August 2009 with
responsibilities for the Company’s accounting and treasury. Mr. Peng
joined China Resources (Holding) in August 1994. He has worked at
China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited as the Financial
Manager, China Resources Logic Limited as the Financial Manager,
and China Resources Microelectronics Limited as the accounting
Director of Finance & Treasury Division. Mr. Peng graduated from
the Hangzhou Institute of Commerce with the major in Accounting
and held a Bachelor Degree in Accounting in 1994. He was awarded
a Certificate of Completion in Business and Administration from the
People’s University of China in 2005. Since graduation, he has gained
extensive experience in financial, tax administration management in
Hong Kong and PRC companies.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGNREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. Daily KANG Bin, aged 33, was appointed as an Assistant General
Manager of the Group in August 2009 with responsibilities for the
Company’s capital market, legal and listing affairs management. Mr.
Kang joined CSMC Technologies Corporation in 2005 as the Senior
Director of Finance. Mr. Kang graduated from Fudan University and
held a Bachelor Degree in Economics in 1998. He worked at one of
the most famous accounting firms for many years and was the former
financial controller of a US OTCBB listed company. Mr. Kang gained
extensive experience in financial management and listing affairs.

Mr. Tim NGAN Siu Hung, aged 34, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and Authorised Representative of the Company with effect
from 1 June 2009. Mr. NGAN joined the Group in March 2008 as
Accounting Manager and acted as Senior Accounting Manager
from October 2008 until present. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the Accounting Manager of China Resources Gas Group Limited
responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting
matters. Mr. NGAN has over 10 years of experience in accounting,
financial control and corporate finance. Mr. NGAN obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1997 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

EREEE (8)

BREE  =+t=m R_ZETNF\AEEZE
RAKEBRREE  AEEAMSERE AR
HETHER - BR-_ZETRAFMAFE LERE
BRAR]  EEEBLEMEAERARERYE
BE - BEER-NANN\FEXREBERE - &
RESETEM - WERMB ST EHAEL
ZEEFTE LEEXEXEOTCBBEM AR
Btk AELENUBEEN LT ARERL

BEXBAEE =1+Wm —TTNAFA—HE
BZERRRANDAMERRERR - BAEE
RZZZENFZAMBAREE - HESFEE
H-ZTN\F+ABRESREISRGHARE - R
MBEAKEZE  REETEBERREBERAA]
MEFEE  BERERARMBRRER - A
ARG  MBERRARPBTEERR T+
FOER - BARER-NANEFRERBEIAK
B BRRLEREM - RATEEHMAGEEER
B ARGHHMAEEREE -

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 B # & + A R 24 7] ANNUALREPORT 2009 — T T N F F E W &



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company with its subsidiaries is a leading
manufacturer in the development and operation of semiconductor
business in the mainland China. Its business covers open foundry, IC
design, IC testing and packaging as well as discrete devices.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income on pages 88 to 89 to this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2009.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
company during the year are set out in note 32 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during

the year are set out on page 92 to this Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2009 amounted
to HK$2,504.06 million (2008: HK$2,376.77 million).
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive or similar rights under the Cayman Islands
law or the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 190 to 191 of this
Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company did not
purchase, sale or redeem shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS

A summary of the Directors during the year is set out on page 5 of
this Annual Report.

In accordance with Article 95 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. WANG Guoping, Mr. LI Fuzuo, Mr. Du Wenmin and
Professor KO Ping Keung will retire at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, but being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election.

Mrs. OON Kum Loon, Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA and Mr. KO Ping Keung
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. On 29 March 2010, each
Independent Non-Executive Director has provided a written statement
confirming of her/his independence to the Company. The Company
considered that each Independent Non-Executive Director continues
to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until the Company or the Director serves a written
notice of termination three months in advance during the term of the
agreement or anytime thereafter. Particulars of the service contracts of
the Directors are in all material respects the same. The compensation
of the Executive Directors is subject to review each year.

None of the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) has entered into any service contract with the
Company. Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the
term of appointment of each of such Directors is for three years
commencing from the date of appointment. The Company and Mrs.
OON Kum Loon subsequently agree that her appointment may be
terminated with immediate effect by either party.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATIONS

The emolument payable to each Executive Director is based on (i)
his relevant qualifications experience and expertise, (ii) his duties and
responsibilities and (i) performance of the Company. The current
market situation will also be taken into account.

The emolument payable to each Non-Executive Director (including
Independent Non-Executive Director) is based on the responsibilities
and undertaking to the Board.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a consultancy agreement dated 1 July
2006 with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”), which is owned as
to 50% by Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, being an Executive Director of
the Company.

Under the consultancy agreement, the Company engaged Wiston to
recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate employees of
management grade within the Group, to provide managerial services
to the Company. The consultancy arrangement was entered into by
the Group to facilitate individual tax planning of the management and
expatriate employees of the Group. The consultancy fees are subject
to adjustment depending on the number of executives providing
services to the Group. All of the consultancy fees charged by Wiston
to the Company are to pay for the remuneration of such executives
for providing managerial services to the Company. The agreement is
for a term of three years and may be terminated by either party on
one month’s written notice.

Upon recruitment of an expatriate executive, the executive becomes
a “qualified consultant” under the Wiston consultancy agreement
as well as entering into an employment/service agreement with the
Company. The Company and the expatriate executive then agree on
an appointment of the total remuneration payable to the executive
between a consultancy fee payable by Wiston and salary payable
under his employment/service agreement with the Company.

The total remuneration payable to each executive is made after
negotiation between the Group and the individual executive by
reference to the market rate.

Except for those mentioned above, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any other subsidiaries was a party, and in which any
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at any time during the year ended 31 December
2009.

EEREHHER

KRR ZFTEZESNF £ A — H HWiston
Management Limited ([Wiston]) 3] 3 —IEEA M
33 ° Wiston B AR R MITE SR EFIE %
B50%HEn °

RIEBEHE - ARFEAWistonfZfEES L
HITBRABR (REEBLMIINERE) MARA
REEERY - AEECTVERTH - LR
REBERERIIMERENBEABBEE - BERH
BRRTRAANEERERBEHITHRABASRT MU
FAE o Wistonm AR BRI BERER -
HRARZAAITBA BRI R B2 45 12 AR 7 1 B
o ZMHRABH=F WA HEMN—HREHE
H—EAEmEmBAMARL -

RIBIEINETTRA B - 1TBUA B X S Wiston
Bz (& ERER] - WERARREITEE,
MR# ek o AR AEINETTHA B ERATERA
BRMNOME AR PIERTE - BFREWistonx
TR B B R AN A BIRIBESE BRSS9
e

AERITHRABBMNEME - b2 5% E 2 E5)
TRABSEMELHEHKETE -

B btESN RBEE-_TTAF+-RA=+—H
LHFERATARR TEFETAAH  M&F
BHHNAEEXBEMEBEA - AARR - &
ERR AR SERMEMHE AR BEFT LM —T
NEARBERNEENETERREZREFEEKR

R -

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 B # & + A R 24 7] ANNUALREPORT 2009 — T T N F F E W &



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 44 to 52 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be
entered in the register of the Company referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company

(@) Shares of the Company allocated to the Directors under
the Equity Incentive Plan, Share Option Scheme and
Restricted Share Award Scheme
As at 31 December 2009, there is no outstanding shares
allocated to but not exercised by directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
under the Equity Incentive Plan, Share Option Scheme and
Restricted Share Award Scheme. No options were granted
to the directors during 2009 under the Equity Incentive
Plan, Share Option Scheme and Restricted Share Award
Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERITIETBASNEHMERS (8)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying A: REATEBTLERREBAKRGOHES
Shares of the Company (Cont’d) (&)
(b) Shares of the Company held by the directors (b) EZFENEATRKS
As at 31 December 2009, particulars of shares held by RZBEZNF+_A=1+—H BEK
Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the BEZBHNBEA (EER LMHRAD
Listing Rules), directly and indirectly, were as follows: HEERBAEFBENOROEFENT :
Approximate
percentage
of interest
Long or in the Company
Capacity short position Shares held RAD AR
Director EE 54 FERKE R G op SR
Mr. SONG Lin RS E Beneficial owner  Long position 1,245,533 0.01%
8 Z-DN e
Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu ~ BRIEFE+ Beneficial owner  Long position 39,623,200 0.45%
BExBEAA e
Mr. WANG Guoping TEFRE Beneficial owner  Long position 9,589,872 0.11%
EREAAN HE
Mr. ZHU Jinkun kembkag Beneficial owner Long position 2,669,150 0.03%
ERBEAA e
Mr. JIANG Wei BRERE Beneficial owner  Long position 537,614 0.01%
s/ 2PN e
Mr. LI Fuzuo FREERE Beneficial owner  Long position 918,000 0.01%
=t 2N e
Mr. DU Wenmin HXREE Beneficial owner  Long position 1,458,000 0.02%
ERBEAAN wE
Mr. Frank LAI Ni Hium* Lbg it Beneficial owner Long position 14,650,605 0.17%
ERBAAN 583
Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze Beneficial owner  Long position 4,000,000 0.05%
YBEMA%H  EmEAA e
Professor KO Ping Keung B REHIR Beneficial owner  Long position 2,173,458 0.02%
- 2PN 1553
Total st 76,865,432 0.87%
Notes: P EE
*  Re-designated as Non-Executive Director from Executive * ZETNFANA—BEHRTES
Director of the Company from 1 June 2009 AEFENITES
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERIETBASNREHAERS (8)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MEEATIEHTLERRBFHBRGHES

Shares of Associated Corporations

Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted RARTEE ARERAIZEBR AR ([#FEH

under the share option schemes of China Resources Enterprise, BlZ ) BT EBR LIRS K ER T 8

Limited (“CRE”), an associated corporation of the Company. HA B R A S o

Aggregate

percentage

of interest

as at 31

December

2009'

RZBERF

No. of Exercise +=A

Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =+—H

Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant HIERHELE

EERF 5% HRR KR BROBE BREZE SRTEE R A8 Btk

Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position 1,000,000 - - - 0.042%

RIS E ERBEA we

Mr. ZHU Jinkun Interest of spouse Long position 42,000 - - - 0.002%

KeELE =L TE

Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position 240,000 - - - 0.010%

BEEE E=EBA He

Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 100,000 - - - 0.004%

HXREE EnlEAA e

Notes: et :

1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary 1. WARZZETNF+_A=+T—HRBEHE
shares and underlying shares of CRE to the total issued share R T BR RABRAR D 1F 2 R (L E A
capital of CRE as at 31 December 2009. ¥EBETRAEENEL

2. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 2. REBRT  BREMFTEROERERS
options granted. 11.005 7T °
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

ESEREETHAEBNREHFMER (B)

REEATERTEERRHEMRR G ER
(%)
RARBBERREBENERAER QA
(FEBEN)) EHTEBRIRIEELBRE
At B A BB AR R My e

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B:
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (“CRP”), an associated corporation
of the Company.

60

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at 31
December
2009
R=ZEBAF
No. of Exercise +=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =+-H
Director Capacity short position shares options per share grant MERAHE
EEpE E27) HRHKE BROBE BREHE SRITEE RHAH Bk
Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position 1,386,000 814,400 2.75 12/11/20032 0.059%
RMEAE EREAA He 549,720 3.919 18/03/2005°
Mr. ZHU Jinkun Beneficial owner Long position 290,000 101,800 2.75 12/11/20032 0.008%
REtfkt EnEAA e
Mr. WANG Beneficial owner Long position 418,000 - - - 0.009%
Guoping EHEAA TE
TERFEE
Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position 840,000 203,600 2.75 12/11/20032 0.030%
BEELE BEREEA TE 366,480 3.919 18/03/2005°
Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 741,780 61,080 3.919 18/03/2005° 0.017%
FRELE ERBEAA iR
Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 297,000 183,240 2.75 12/11/20032 0.010%
HXR%E EnlEAA iR
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERTETHASNEHOERS (8)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MABE AT ST B R AR aHERS
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d) (48)
Notes: P &E
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary 1. WARZZETNF+-_A=+—HMHEE
shares and underlying shares of CRP to the total issued share HENEBREAERMDITEBELERS
capital of CRP as at 31 December 2009. HNEEITRABENET DL
2. The exercisable period is divided into 5 tranches, exercisable during 2. IR R/RAESRE B-TTWF . =T
the periods from 6 October 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 to THE  ZFTRF - ZETELFRZTT
5 October 2013. NE+ANBREZZE—=F+ARAILH
f e
3. The exercisable period is divided into 5 tranches, exercisable during 3. 1o AREEE  BIZZTT R F =%
the periods from 18 March 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 to 17 T+F ZFEN\F - ZZTTREFR=T—
March 2015. TFE=A+/\BRZE-_ZT—AF=A+tH
JJ:E@FEﬁ °
4. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 4, REBBERT  ERENTERNDERER S
options granted. 1.005 7T °

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED £ B i & + A R 24 7] ANNUALREPORT2009 — T TN FFE ® & 61



62

Report of the Directors

EETHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERITIETBASNEHMERS (8)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MNEIZATICBTELERRBARERGMERS
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d) (#8)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted RAQRHMERREBEMERAR ([FEH
under the share option schemes of China Resources Land Limited B ) BBEITEERRBEABRERT SR
(“CR Land”), an associated corporation of the Company. e AR R R A o
Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at 31
December
2009
R=BEBAF
No. of Exercise +=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date =+—H
Director Capacity short position shares options per share of grant HMEREE
EERRZ 27 HREKRE BROBE BREZKE SRITEE R AH Bl
Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position - 900,000 1.23  01/06/20052 0.018%
RIREE ExEBA He
Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position 892,000 - - - 0.018%
BEEE E=EBA He
Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 1,000,000 - - - 0.020%
FTRERE EnEAA He
Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 790,000 250,000 1.23 01/06/20052 0.021%
HXREE ExnEBA He
Notes: BMiaE
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary 1. WARZZEZNF+_RA=1+—HMKEE
shares and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share HEMTBEREEERNIFERBHERE
capital of CR Land as at 31 December 2009. HEBITRABENE DL
2. The exercisable period is divided into 4 tranches, exercisable during 2. fIEEIs AUUEEAR - BRI R ZEERF
the periods from 1 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 to 31 May ZTELF ZTETENFRZZTETAF A
2015. —ABRE_ZT-HAFRA=+—HBILHBHET
fif o
3. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 3. REBBRT  ARENMERNBRERS

options granted.

£11.005 7T °
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERTETHASNEHOERS (8)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MEEATCRTEERRERMBRMOER
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d) (48)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted RAEREEE AR ERRRE TR R
under the share option schemes of CR Gas, an associated RIFEBRET SR N BERED R -

corporation of the Company.

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at 31
December
2009'
R-ZTHF
No. of Exercise +=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date =+-—-H
Director Capacity short position  shares options  per share of grant MRERAH
EEHE 545 HrR KR BROBE BREZE SRTEE R A B
Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 51,000 - - - 0.004%
TRERE EnlEAA e
Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner Long position 54,000 - - - 0.004%
X REE E=BEBA He
Notes: BtsE :
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary 1. WARZZEZNF+_A=+—HMHEE
shares and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share HRE LB RAARGD T BB -
capital of CR Gas as at 31 December 2009.
2. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 2. REBAT  AREMMERNBERERZ

options granted. 11.005 7T °
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”), an associated corporation of
the Company.

Name of Long or No. of
Director Capacity short position shares

ESEREETHAEBNREHFMER (B)

B: MEEATERTEHERRAMRGEHES
(%)
RARRERRERORER AR ([FE
KR BEITEBBRIARBEBEER R
AR R RO RS

Aggregate

percentage

of interest

as at 31

December

2009'

R-ZBENF

No. of Exercise +=A
share price Date of =+-H
options  per share grant WEGZAE

EEpg 54 BRRKR BRHEE BREZKE SRITEE RHBAH B

Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position 3,000,000
RMFEAE EnBA e

Notes:
1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary

shares and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share
capital of CR Cement as at 31 December 2009.

- - - 0.046%

et

1. WARZZEEAF+_A=1t—BMFEE
KR E B R ARG R EEEERK
REETRABENA DL

64 CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 8 /8 & + & R /24 71 ANNUALREPORT 2009 = T T N & F E W &



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2009, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executive Officer
of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or which are expected
to be, directly or indirectly, interested or deemed to be interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company,
were as follows:

FERRNRFATN#ER

BALREEMA  RZTENF+RA=+—
B RARARDHARBERO S - HHEREZ?
K ENGBIEXVERF 2 K B30 R IR AR AR
ARBENREIAE BB LARRAREZT SR
HIE (R B £ 3365 FT 7 B M & R M AT RC 8 1O 8
HIORR AR ERNEREE IR S E
B BRFMEMBER TERRBBRRAE K&
SENEABERIRAEES%H A ERRR (T
ARBNEZREFRNTE) BT

Percentage of
Aggregate Long
Position in
Shares to the
Total Issued
Share Capital of
the Company

RERDERAE
Company Name Number of Shares ERDBERT
NEEE [y 4= BRABEE D
China Resources National Corporation® (“CRN”")
PEEBAATO ([HEZER]) 5,326,855,822 60.61%
China Resources Co., Limited™ (“CRCL?”)
EERMHABRAR ([FEERF]) 5,326,855,822 60.61%
CRC Bluesky Limited™ (“CRC Bluesky”) 5,326,855,822 60.61%
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited™
EH (K@) ARARA ([EBEE]) 5,326,855,822 60.61%
Gold Touch Enterprises Inc®. (“Gold Touch”) 5,326,850,822 60.61%
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. CRN is a state owned enterprise which is the parent company of CRCL, a
company incorporated in the PRC, which in turn is the parent company of
CRC Bluesky, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
is in turn the parent company of CRH, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. CRN, CRCL and CRC Bluesky each is deemed to be interested in
the 5,326,855,822 shares held by CRH.

2.  Gold Touch and Commotra Company Limited each directly held
5,326,850,822 shares and 5,000 shares in CR Micro as at 31 December
2009. Gold Touch and Commotra Company Limited are wholly owned
subsidiaries of CRH, therefore CRH is deemed to own 5,326,855,822
shares of CR Micro as at 31 December 2009.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the consultancy agreement as disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts”, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate turnover
attributable to the five largest customers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s total turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

FERRNAFABMER (B)

1. FEERABALCE AREBHAR (RPEHFE
MRZHW AR W AR EH2AFACRC
Bluesky (T R B R X HSFEMK LB AF) &
& 27 CRC BlueskyB E B E B (R & B
kAR MEAR PEED #HA
7] XCRC Bluesky# R AN EHEEMIFAN
5,326,855,822% i 15 i A 4 o

2. RZZEZFNF+ZA=+—H " Gold Touchk
Commotra Company Limited& B &HE D R A
=8 % & 75,326,850,822/% A% 17 X5,0000% &
% » Gold TouchXCommotra Company Limited
HEAEBSEENZENBAR - At EHEE
WRIER - EEAFE+-_A=+—BHEBEBMN
% F£95,326,855,822 % iE 17

EEEH

BREXEFREONER] —BARENER
@I - FA - WEIT LR FAEEASRARE
BN EHAEMEALSNERNITHEEN
BH -

FEERRMIER

HE_ZZANF+T_A=+—HILFE EXE
FPRIENBEXBINARELLEFEI0%

BHE_TTNF+_A=+—HILFE "AAf#H
FEE M BRBRONAKBERBEEI0% -

BEEE RENBREALTHENRR GIES
FTARAE AR A5% A EBA) RASEAKREP
S ER A s
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS

(1) Equity Incentive Plan

The Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) on

8 May 2004 by way of ordinary resolution of shareholders. The
principle terms of the Plan, total plan amount as well as current
status is as follows:

()

Objective of the Plan

The objective of the plan is to share the pride of ownership
among employees and to reward their performance and
contributions.

Eligible participants of the Plan

The eligible participants of the Plan is any full time employee
of the Company or of any subsidiary and any Executive,
Non-Executive or Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company or of any subsidiary provided always that
such term shall exclude any person who has tendered his
resignation or who at the relevant time is working out his/
her period of notice pursuant to his/her employment contract
or otherwise.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. Ralph Sytze
YBEMA (Chairperson), Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu and Mrs.
OON Kum Loon has been delegated with the power to
administer the Plan. It will, among other things, approve (i)
the total number of shares (which number shall not exceed
the total plan amount mentioned in point (d)) to be allocated
to eligible participants of the Plan, and (ii) the respective
entitlements of the participants, in each case based on the
recommendation of the Executive Directors from time to
time.

RITE™

BRRITERNFEE  ENEaMEREME
27 °

R f3 B€ Bh5t 8

(1) BRBYEERhETEN

ZIN/N

AR RIAE BARBER T AHE - R

TZMFERRNBEMNR D REFE ([
) o FTEIME 2B FrElBERB AN
WA

(a)

(b)

(c)

FHEIN B
FEMBMREEESZHAR LK
IR RR LA BME L 2R -

FENEERSEE
AHEMAER2EE RARRRHEEM
MEBRARNEIMZBES RARAH
HEMMBARNEMNITES - IFH
TEEIBIFNTES - EABKER
T BREEHEHINERRELERS
HISRE A R B RE BB A M A
+o

FHEESE

RRAFHHFME E € (ARalph Sytze
YBEMA% & (£F) « RIEFIEL KR
SELLTENK) CERETENE - £
Bgle (HPaiE) #E)D RS
BER2EENRNDBE (TEEBEET
M()VEATI R ETEIBEE) - k(B EE
WEBIE U ESEMES - HEE
WITESETRIREMEZ -
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EETHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(d)

Total plan amount and individual limit

Total number of Shares which may be allocated and issued
under the Plan shall not exceed 15% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.

Total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
the Plan in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the close of business on the
last business day of the preceding financial year.

Total number of Shares issued and to be issued to any
selected employees in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Allocating and vesting of the shares under the Plan
Among the total plan amount, as at 31 December 2009, a
collective of 160,176,294 shares had already been allocated
to the eligible participants by the Company and are subject
to a four-year vesting period in which a quarter of such
number of shares will vest each year during the four-year
period. No amount is payable for acceptance of allocation
of shares by eligible participants and HK$0.078 per share is
payable by eligible participants for subsequent allotment of
shares so vested. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
total number of shares available for allocation under the Plan
is 86,723,706 which represent about 0.99% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Rzt B€Bh5t 8 (&%)
(1) Ixf3EEEETEl (&)

(d)

(e)

s EI48 R R {8 Bl LR
RIBETEI e D B R BATHIR (D 48 2K -
EEMKBETEBREITRG B
15% « REBRFEAZSZTWNFHA/N\H
T RRERA NHEN Y ST S8
HEE 246,900,000 B 17 °

IR B A BEPMEM B BUF R ATHI AR
4% - FNEHBE L —EYRFE KR
LEARLKRAERFNSHITRNA
#13% °

RER+ - ABEARENRERED
BIOTREBRTORMD AR TEERE
BITRAD ARBREN1% o

FETRONSEREE
FEFr8l@ET  BE-_TThF+=
A=+—HARAEMAEEKSEE
5 Be +£160,176,294(% f% 15 © 2 ZE /17D
XeNUFEEY  HESFKEBA
ERZEBEED 2 — R - AERS
HEEBAEEIHEB I HHERAER
BN N E0.0788 T - MAER
HzEg e fE TUHEIENRD A
86,723,706% * {5/ A T B BEITRAAL
0.99% °
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d) R4y S8 Bh=t & (48)
(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d) (1) B sE@hETE (&)
(e) Allocating and vesting of the shares under the Plan (e) FHETRONIMRER (F)
(Cont’d)

Number of shares allocated

AEHRGEE
Balances
Balance Cancelled/ as at 31
as at Lapsed December,
1 January during 2009
Exercise 2009 Allocated Exercised the year —ZEEZENE
Date price —EERE during during FRE +=A
of grant per share —HA—H the year  the year #$/ =+-H
B A BRTEE #H ERESE ERETHE A¥ Fo353
HKS$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
BT Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk
Management and 01/10/2003 0.078 3,565 - 2,339 262 964
employees 26/01/2005 0.078 1,142 - 533 59 550
EREERES 02/01/2006 0.078 1,371 - 1,371 - -
16/05/2006 0.078 884 - 500 - 384
Total
st 6,962 - 4,743 321 1,898
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately FEEERRETEBRZITNARRK
before the date on which the options were exercised was HE IR HER0.1738TT o
HK$0.173.
() Term of the Plan (f) =HEIHR
The term of the Plan is for ten years from the date of FEIEBRERMAS (ZSTNFRA
adoption (8 May 2004), subject to early termination by way NB) BREBTF  BRAFTREAR
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in BREARG FUERRBERA NIRRT
a general meeting. The Shares being granted before the date FTE] o RELAN A BRI A AR B AR
of adoption were deemed to be granted as of 1 October RZZZ=F+A—BKH - ZtElT
2003, which was passed by way of an ordinary resolution PERME A RRREBF RS LT
in the annual general meeting of the Company on the date MRERAABA -
of adoption.
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EETHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(9)

Interested shareholders not entitled to vote

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Plan.

(2) Share Option Scheme
In addition to the Plan, the Company, as approved by its

shareholders on 27 May 2005 by way of ordinary resolution,

adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”). The principle

terms of the Scheme, total scheme amount as well as current

status are as follows:

(@)

Objective of the Scheme

The objective of the Scheme is to provide participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Scheme provided the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the participants.

Eligible participants of the Scheme

The eligible participants of the Scheme are any directors,
employees, advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service
providers of any member of the Group who the Remuneration
Committee consider, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.

Rzt BEBh5t 8 (&%)
(1) Ixf3EREETEl (&)

() HERESNRREERE
WS RBRRAERBETEINFER - RIF
BERANKRRARARBEARRRS
EMERE-

(2) FERRAESTE

Bt 85 RAREKRRR —_TZAFRA
“HEBRREBRBRT AL - RABR
RERTE ([FERERTEl)) - BT SINER
R - BB BB PR AARRIAT

(a) BRESTENEW
BREENENEN2BERHEER
ARARBEBEERDOES  ALE
28E - BENARRREROEEM
BHTE BRARBRERREREHN
@ o BREREI AR AR RE—RER
M7 REARE - BE - BE O
W} wER S RIREENT2EE -

(b) BREGBNEEKSHSE
BREFENEGEK2HEERTNESR
EEEMBATRAELLERBEALE
BMEREROAL - BEAEBTMK
BRAIMMEMES BB - FAA B
- DiEE - A8l RE4EEN - #
fER - RIE - BP  WEEH aEDE
EEBRH KRG HER
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(©)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. Ralph Sytze
YBEMA (Chairperson), Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu and Mrs.
OON Kum Loon, has been delegated with the power to
administer the Scheme. It will, among other things, (i)
consider, in its sole discretion, the eligible participants (ii)
approve the total number of shares (which number shall not
exceed the total scheme amount) to be allocated to eligible
participants of the Scheme, and (iii) approve the respective
entitlements of the participants, in each case based on the
recommendation of the Executive Directors from time to
time.

Total Scheme amount and individual limit

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company and the shares which
may fall to be issued under the Plan in aggregate must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under this Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme by shareholders.

Total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue.

Bty 38 Bhst &l (48)
(2) FERRMESTEI (1)

(c)

(d)

FMHEESY

#HEZE S (HRalph Sytze YBEMAZ
E(EXE) REFBLTRASELZ T
M) DEREERERENS - £8
efe (HhaR) ((RHBYHMISE
EZREEBBEENER  ()EDER
TRRETEEGER2EENRMNDEBE
(TS HRBERETEIEE) « R(i)ibE
SHENEBARE  HULSEMNS -
THRIEITE BT IREAEE -

BRETBAERMER LR

PRARIB BRI A2 AHE A Al
BRER IR R A ARTTE BT
BETEB A TERITORMEE - L
At Bl AT ge B TR AR BB - B L
[RAGHBBARRE D HETRMERE
#30% °

P A RIR B BT 8 R A R RHEM H At
BRI IR M B RITE
BRI FHITHRMNEE - TEEBKRR
#ERBERT EIE B ERTRD AT
10% °

AER+ @A BHERRERE S ES
HEERDNBREETEND TR
BITHRM AR - TNEBBEEITRND
HEE1% o
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EETHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

()

Granting and vesting of the shares under the Scheme
Among the total Scheme amount, as at 31 December 2009,
a collective of 17,221,051 shares had already been granted
to the eligible participants by the Company. HK$1 is payable
for acceptance of an offer of option. The subsequent price
for which share shall be no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued be the Stock Exchange on the date of grants,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately before the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a share. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the total number of shares available for allocation
under the Plan is 247,991,147 which represent about 2.82%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Rz 6y ER Byt & (48)

(2) FERRAESTEI (8)

(e) REBRETIAREROGRROER
EHERESEIRES BE-STNF
+ZA=+—8 " ARFEMBTFES
Bk mE 17,221,051 RIS - B4R
BERERAEZN VBT  HEGRKRE
B TER T =ER R = E() B E
BEEBRMDERZAERARERMI
BTHE  (NBERE 2 BRI REE %
BRMEER T ARERMYNTEY
W g RO EE - RAFEHRT
BEH - BEZTEESENRND A
247,991,147 - {EAR A FE #ITRA
#492.82% o

Number of shares granted

REMBRHEE

Balances

Adjusted Balance Cancelled/ as at 31

. as at Lapsed December

exerc!se 1January Granted Exercised during Adjusted 2009

price .

Exercise per share? 2009  during  during theyear ~ during —BERE

Date price mamw “EEAFE  theyear the year FRE  the year® +=A

of grant  per share 8 -—-A-AH ERE ERE -4 ERE =+-A

REAH BROEE TEE @ Rl e P30 s 423

HK$ '000 '000 '000 '000 '000

BT Fik Tk Fh Fix Fik

Management and ~ 08/09/2006' 0.360 0.341 15,191 - - 3,100 722 12,813

employees

ERERESR 28/05/20072 0.750 0.711 1,587 - - 300 71 1,358
Total

@at 16,778 - - 3,400 793 14,171

No shares options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2009.

BE-TTAE+-AS+—HILFE
AT B2 A (IR R -
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EEEHES

R4y 88 BT 8 (&)
(2) FERRMESTEI (48)

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(e) Granting and vesting of the shares under the Scheme (e) REBREASABERORROER
(Cont’d) (%)
Notes: Mk -

Share options granted under the Scheme in 8 September 2006
are subject to a four-year vesting period from the date of grant
in which a quarter of such number of share options will vest
each year during the four-year period.

Share options granted under the Scheme in 28 May 2007
are subject to one-year vesting period from the participant’s
employment starting date as approved by Remuneration
Committee.

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the exercise price and
the number of outstanding share options would be adjusted
upon the completion of the Rights Issue in accordance with
the requirements set out in the note to Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by
the Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005. An independent
financial advisor was engaged to provide advice regarding
the adjustments in the Scheme. On 8 September 2009, the
Board has accepted the adjustment advice and approved such
adjustments.

R-FTAEAANA - BRETE
TOHE 0 AR AR 5 R 24 e 8 1 B 05
BEEMUESES - X% R
BE—F - 52 — M RES R
RE -

RZZEZH+ERA-TNB - BRE
SHEIT X B B AR A PR A e 40 5
ZESHILH2MNERREADMNG
BEo—FREH -

RIRET B - R ARTEACR - 81T
FEINMBERENTEEREEHIE L
R A EE17.03(13) (&M s FT S B9 1R &
PN —_EERFNARBEM
W RIES|ETTAE - EEFEB LY
BEBAREARERER - B =
EZNFNANR EESCEHA
BEAWHEFREAE
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EETHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2

(3)

Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(f)  Term of the Scheme
The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the date of
adoption (27 May 2005), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting.

(9) Interested shareholders not entitled to vote
Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Scheme.

Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company, as approved by the Board on 18 December 2008
(the “Adoption Date”), adopted the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (the “New Scheme”), pursuant to which existing shares
of the Company will be purchased by a trustee from the market
out of cash contributed by the Group and be held on trust for the
relevant employees until such shares are vested in accordance
with the rules of the New Scheme. The New Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, but is a discretionary scheme of the Company. The
principle terms of the New Scheme, total scheme amount as well
as current status is as follows:

(@) Objective of the New Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of certain Employees and to provide incentives
and help the Group in retaining its existing Employees and
recruiting additional Employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long-term business
objectives of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

(b)

Eligible Participants of the New Scheme

The eligible participants of the New Scheme are any full-time
employee employed by any member of the Group (including
without limitation any executive and non-executive director
of any member of the Group).

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising Mr. Ralph Sytze
YBEMA (Chairperson), Mr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu and Mrs.
OON Kum Loon, may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion select the Selected Employee(s) (excluding any
Excluded Employee) after taking into account various factors
as it deems appropriate for participation in the Scheme as a
Selected Employee and determines the number of Restricted
Shares to be awarded.

Total Scheme Amount and Individual Limit

The Remuneration Committee shall not make any further
Award which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
awarded by the Board under the Scheme in excess of
2.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Restricted Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not
exceed 0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date.
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

()

Granting and Vesting of the Shares under the New
Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 100,000,000
shares of the Company were purchased and held by BOCI-
Prudential Trustee Limited, the trustee appointed by the
Company to the New Scheme. The shares purchased
represent 1.708% of the issued shares of the Company as of
the Adoption Date. No shares were granted to the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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employees Exchange
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Term of the Scheme

The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the Adoption
Date, unless sooner terminated as determined by the Board
of Directors by a 3 months prior notice.

Interested Shareholders not Entitled to Vote

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust (including but not limited
to the Restricted Shares, the Returned Shares, any bonus
Shares and scrip Shares).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FERXS

BIELETRUNORE  RBEE-_ZEThhF+=-A
Z+—HIFE AEEBBUTRSHIEARE
RPRIFBEEERSH T IUHETE -

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had the
following transactions, which would need to be disclosed as connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The services agreement with Fab 2

On 30 April 2008, CSMC Technologies Corporation, an investment
holding company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on
29 October 2007 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Micro,
entered into a services agreement with Fab 2, in which CRH and
the Company indirectly holds 81% and 19% interest respectively.
Under the services agreement, CSMC Technologies Corporation
agrees to provide, and/or to procure its subsidiaries to provide,
certain supporting services to Fab 2 in relation to the setup
and operation of its 8 inch facility as well as certain general
administrative support. The service agreement took effective
from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010, which is a continuing
connected transaction to the Group.

The basis of the payment for services rendered under the services
agreement by Fab 2 will be 60% of the actual costs incurred
by the Group for the above functions on its foundry operations.
This percentage has been determined by the approximate
proportionate net asset value of Fab 2 and other open foundry
operations of the Group.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2010
are HK$90,000,000, HK$100,000,000 and HK$110,000,000,
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate transaction REEZZETNF+A=+—81-HH
amount for the above amounted to HK$88,732,575. L EER HHIR 5 4 58 E88,732,575/%8
TE o
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

2.

The consultancy agreement with Wiston Management
Limited

On 1 July 2006, the Company entered into an agreement
with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”) for consultancy
agreement. Wiston is owned as to 50% by each of Dr. Peter
CHEN Cheng-yu, who is an Executive Director of the Company.
Accordingly, Wiston is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules and the transaction is a continuing connected
transaction to the Company.

Under the agreement, the Company engaged Wiston to
recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate employees
of management grade within the Group, to provide managerial
services to the Company. The consultancy fees are subject to
adjustment depending on the number of executives providing
services to the Group. All of the consultancy fees charged by
Wiston to the Company are to pay the executives for providing
managerial services to the Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2009 are
RMB5,000,000 (HK$5,674,000), RMB5,000,000 (HK$5,674,000)
and RMB2,500,000 (HK$2,837,000), respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to nil.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

3.

The tenancy agreement with China Resources Property
Management Limited

On 17 November 2008, CRM Management Services Limited
(“CRM Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tenancy agreement with China Resources Property
Management Limited (“CR Property”),
The tenancy agreement took effective from 17 November 2008
to 31 March 2011.
rent certain office premises from CR Property for its principal

an associate of CRH.

Under the agreement, CRM Management

place of business in Hong Kong. The terms of the transaction,
including the rent, were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and after making reference to prevailing open
market rents and standard tenancy agreements entered into
by China Resources Property with other independent tenants.
The transaction is a continuing connected transaction to the
Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2010 are HK$2,140,000, HK$2,320,000 and HK$2,500,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to HK$2,282,059.
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

4.

Manufacturer’s representative agreement with STATS
ChipPAC Limited

As set out in an announcement made by CR Logic dated 22 June
2006, Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech. Ltd. (“ANST”), a subsidiary of
CR Logic at that time, as manufacturer, CR Logic, as guarantor,
STATS ChipPAC (BVI) Limited (“SCBL”), as manufacturer’s
representative, and STATS ChipPAC Limited (“SCL”), the holding
company of SCBL and substantial indirect shareholder of ANST,
entered into a manufacturer’s representative agreement, in which
SCBL, should solicit orders from existing and future customers
of SCL together with its subsidiaries to be placed directly with
ANST and assist ANST in relation to promotional activities and
events. The manufacturer’s representative agreement was agreed
to be effective from 1 January 2007 and for duration from 1
January 2007 to 31 December 2009. CR Logic entered into
the manufacturer’s representative agreement to guarantee the
payment obligation of ANST; whilst SCL undertook to procure
the due and punctual performance of SCBL.

After the Amalgamation, ANST became an indirectly non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. SCL, being a substantial
indirect shareholder of ANST, became a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Thus the transaction is a
continuing connected transaction to the Company. Meanwhile,
CR Logic assigned all of its rights and benefit to the Company
and the Company undertakes to assume and perform all duties,
liabilities and obligations of CR Logic, under the aforementioned
manufacturer’s representative agreement.

The annual caps for the two years ending 31 December 2009
are HK$18,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the aggregate transaction
amount for the above amounted to HK$3,205,042.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

5.

On 14 September, 2009, Jolly China Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, together with Joyous
China Investments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, as
lenders and CSMC Asia as borrower entered into a shareholders’
loan agreement pursuant to which the lenders have agreed
to provide shareholders’ loans in the aggregate amount of
US$202,000,000 to the borrower on a pro rata basis according
their respective shareholdings in the borrower. CSMC Asia is
beneficially owned as to 19% by the Company and 81% by CRH.
CSMC Asia is an associate of China Resources Holdings and thus
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The term of the shareholders loan is 3 years commencing on
the date on which the principal amount of the loan is made
after the shareholders’ loan agreement has been approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company in shareholders’
meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules. The loan is unsecured with
interest referencing to normal commercial rate or a rate preferable
to the Company. The principal amount shall be repayable in full
by CSMC Asia in a lump sum payment, together with all accrued
interest and other moneys then outstanding, on the date falling 3
years after the date on which the principal amount of the advance
is made, or such other earlier date as requested by the lenders by
serving to the borrower a 30-days written notice. The borrower
has the option to repay the loan in full with all accrued interest
before the loan maturity date by serving a 14-days written notice
to the lenders.
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board engaged the Auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the on-going connected
transactions to assist the Board to evaluate if the on-going connected
transactions are in accordance with the requirements of rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. The Auditor has reported the factual findings
on these procedures to the Board. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the on-going connected transactions and
confirmed that the on-going connected transactions have been
entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties and on arm’s length basis;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them;

(iv) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
shareholders as a whole; and

(v)  without exceeding the relevant cap disclosed in previous relevant
announcements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SONG Lin did not attend the Annual
General Meeting on 26 June 2009 due to other crucial business on
that date. The Chairman is aware that it deviated from the provision
E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates that the Chairman should attend the
annual general meeting of the Company. However, the Chairman has
asked a Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu to act on his behalf.
In addition, the Chairpersons of Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees and the Chief Executive Officer attended the meeting. The
Company considers that their presence is sufficient for (i) answering
questions from and (i) effective communication with shareholders who
were present at the AGM.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has been in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout
the financial year. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
Group’s internal control systems and has assumed this responsibility
through formalized financial and legal procedures within the Group,
the Group’s auditors and the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 34 to 43 of this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year the amount of public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business
or interest in companies that competes, or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EETHES

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors believe that there are no significant subsequent events
to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

Within the three years ended 31 December 2009, the Company

remains appointing Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor to the
Company.

On behalf of the Board,

~

Song Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 April 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report

- .

BY %A RES

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
88 to 189 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated statement

(the “Company”) and its

of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYRHAMKES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 8 & F B R A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEHREE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9 April 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE FET FHET
Turnover WA 8 3,036,881 3,118,692
Cost of sales SHE AN (2,498,468) (2,537,396)
Gross profit EF 538,413 581,296
Other income/gains Hi A ez 9 207,845 142,757
Selling and distribution expenses EERDIHEEBR (84,972) (89,357)
Administrative expenses THEHR (324,546) (374,152)
Research and development expenses  #15% & B2 & (202,322) (187,006)
Other operating expenses B (89,198) (117,775)
Finance costs BE B AR 10 (43,747) (92,293)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 0 E W B A Rk Es 12 - 84,972
Reversal of (loss on) closure of RO REE —MAEETR (3B%K)
a production plant 13 19,716 (314,119)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A H &K &R EEE
investment 19 (190,000) =
Loss before taxation B B A S 18 (168,811) (365,677)
Taxation I8 11 (13,566) (17,242)
Loss for the year REEBRE 13 (182,377) (382,919)
Other comprehensive income Httzmu s
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETREERE K ZHE
translation of foreign operations 343 245,563
Reclassification adjustment for RHEENE R AT A8
cumulative gain included in profit or R Rt E T B AR
loss upon disposal of subsidiaries - (56,212)
Other comprehensive income FREMEE NS
for the year 343 189,351
Total comprehensive income FAZEW =BT
for the year (182,034) (193,568)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

2009 2008
—EZhEF —ETN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FExT T
Loss for the year attributable to: AT & 75 B E A& 18
Owners of the Company ViN/NE])Z DN (172,206) (371,535)
Non-controlling interests AR A (10,171) (11,384)
(182,377) (382,919)
Total comprehensive income A& 5 e
attributable to: 2R
Owners of the Company AKABFEA (172,030) (187,791)
Non-controlling interests eI R (10,004) (5,777)
(182,034) (1983,568)
HK Cents HK Cents
B AL
(restated)
(&=7)
Loss per share R EE 16
Basic A (2.35) (5.98)
Diluted 3 (2.35) (5.98)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R KR

At 31 December 2009 R=FEFEHE+=-_A=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 17 3,170,864 3,592,396
Prepaid lease payments FEftfE 18 168,570 174,906
Available-for-sale investments AIHEHERE 19 564,092 741,698
Loan receivables FEWE K 20 186,248 =
Goodwill R 21 21,024 21,024
Technical know-how AT R 5% 22 815 1,629
Deferred tax assets RIETRIE & E 30 26,700 18,589
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEmE - RE k&R
plant and equipment 13,646 21,120
4,151,959 4,571,362
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 602,850 812,721
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUGER TR~ & MIBI IR 24 996,165 876,431
Prepaid lease payments ENEE 18 4,191 4,176
Tax recoverable ERdE R 187 9,329
Restricted bank deposits ZRERITER 25 8,603 492
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRRIRE 25 1,221,089 856,877
2,833,085 2,560,026
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors and accrued charges B ERFRIEFTER 26 1,332,923 1,352,722
Government grants BT B & 39 29,745 26,308
Bank borrowings RITENK 27 627,535 515,891
Provisions B 28 25,048 39,303
Taxation Fi1E 16,016 5,088
Financial guarantee contract I ERA L 31 - 10,790
2,031,267 1,950,102
Net current assets nBEEFE 801,818 609,924
Total assets less current liabilities ZEAGRREERE 4,953,777 5,181,286
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R R

At 31 December 2009 R=—ZEZEHFE+=—_B=1+—H

2009 2008
—EZAF —EETN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{hr=s F#ExT T
Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital [N 32 878,940 585,521
Share premium and reserves IR0 (B R R 2,353,775 2,400,135
Equity attributable to owners KRABIFTE AEMLER
of the Company 3,232,715 2,985,656
Non-controlling interests RIS R 88,158 98,162
Total equity S 3,320,873 3,083,818
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 27 1,475,000 1,913,590
Long-term payables RHEIET BRI 29 15,324 59,456
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 30 4,712 4,718
Government grants NEgeR Lk 39 137,868 119,704
1,632,904 2,097,468
4,953,777 5,181,286

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 189 were HRENTNEZE—B/\THEWIGE T HRE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 9 April ERZ=ZZ—ZFWMANBEEESHEREER

2010 and are signed on its behalf by: - WHTIEZREKES
SONG Lin R#k WANG Guoping £ B
Director Z% Director %

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 & i & + A R 2 7] ANNUALREPORT2009 — T T N F FE & & 91



92

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARHEAEL
Shares
Share held for Non-
Share Share  Merger Translation  option Other award Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserves  scheme profit Total interests equity
fBRE BERR 2R
Rx  ROEE ANRE IRER R HURE HHZRG  RERA g ke RHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAr Thr TAr TEr TRz TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr TRz TAn
(Note a) (Note b)
(Brzka) (Btztb)
At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\5-A-H 579,187 2,127,924  (639,277) 419,691 10,799 164,217 - 500911 3163452 90,042 3,253,494
Exchange differences ERES = = - 239,956 - - - - 239,956 5607 245,563
Loss for the year FRER = = = - - - - (8715585 (371,535)  (11,384) (382,919
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 12) HERBAR (Hi12) - - - (56212 - - - - (56212 - (56212
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZERAGE = = - 183744 - - - (871,535) (187,791)  (5,777) (193,568)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BREEREHENRA (6,208 (8,707) - - - - - - (14915 - (14915
Shares issued upon exercise of RERARREET
options under Equity Incentive Plan RN ETRD 2,146 7,755 - - (8789 - - - 1,116 - 1,116
Shares issued upon exercise of RfrfeRETEE T
options under Share Option Scheme  MERRRER TN 0 27 - - @87) - - - 324 - 324
Recognition of equity-settled BRRALEORHEH
share-based payments - - - - 1,217 - - - 1,217 - 1,277
Shares issued to option holders of RERRRERERAA
China Resources Gas Group ([ZBRR] ABEERH
Limited (‘CR Gas’) ERAR) BREREA
(formerly known as China Resources  Z{7i&{7 (Hf3ke)
Logic Limited) (Note ¢) 10,306 51,530 - - - (61,83) = = = = =
Capital contribution by non- FERERTE
controlling interests - - - - - - = = = 14,359 14,359
Capital contrioution by CR Gas (Note o)  ZiEitRIT 2 (Fifzd) - - - - - 2219 - - 2219 - 22193
Transfers between categories AEREY = = = = - 26482 - (26482 - = -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 21 3Rz R & - - = = = = = - - (462) (462)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZE\F+-A=1-H 585,621 2,178,778  (639,277) 608,435 3,254 151,026 - 102924 2,985,656 98,162 3,083,818
Exchange differences EXZE - - - 176 - - - - 176 167 343
Loss for the year FRER = = = - - - - (172206) (172,208)  (10,171) (182,877)
Total comprehensive income for the year £R2ERALE = - - 176 - - - (172,208) (172,030)  (10,004) (182,034)
Shares issued upon exercise of AR HREEEET
options under Equity Incentive Plan MBRER LR AT 1,652 - - (1,757) - - - 369 - 369
Recognition of equity-settled BARAEEN R TR
share-based payments - - - - 568 - - - 568 - 568
Purchase of shares under BERR RS
Share award scheme (Note 33) BER{ (M3kas) - - - - - - (19,465) - (19,465) - (19,465)
Shares issued under allotment BREREERROETRA
of Right Shares 292,945 144,672 - - - - - - 437617 - 437617
Transfers between categories AEREY = = = = - 13517 - (18517) - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZZBNFTZA=1-A 878,940 2,325,097  (639,277) 603,611 2,085 164543  (19.465) (62,799 3,232,715 88,158 3,320,873
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

Notes:

(@)

The exchange differences arose from translation of assets and liabilities
of foreign operations and respective group entities’ functional currencies
into the presentation currency.

Other reserves comprise general reserve, statutory surplus reserve,
enterprise expansion fund, statutory public welfare fund and discretionary
surplus reserve of subsidiaries established in the mainland China and
deemed distribution to and capital contribution by CR Gas. General
reserve was appropriated each year on the basis of 5% to 10% of the
profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries as determined by their board of
directors in accordance with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries.
This reserve should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into
capital and expansion of production and operation.

Amount represents deemed distribution to CR Gas for cancellation of CR
Gas options in exchange for shares in the Company to CR Gas option-
holders at no consideration or exercise of CR Gas options to be settled by
the issuance of shares of the Company pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement of the semiconductor businesses of CR Gas.

Amount represents capital contribution by CR Gas to the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company prior to the date of completion of the acquisition
of semiconductor businesses from CR Gas.

FHEE -

(@)

(b)

(d)

EXEREREBNEBNEEREBERSEEE
BHNEERRESSREBMAELNERE

Hit @ EEN P RAERIANE R RN K
[ EERGBFE CETRES FEEAR
T RBEAKREE R EREERRIELNDIK
REFRRNOLE - —RFEEIDSFEE THIE
NRIB R BE I MIEE% E10% B EED AL - W
ZENESERESMNEAREASREARATT
EE - ZHEBHERBAEER  BRERNRERLE
ENREBZA -

ZEBIEREREBRRERN IR - BIRIRE
ERRNFEREGREREREATRESALQA
Pefn M BN R B R B A AT HE B
RBREXEBETARARMN SEBRRBER
TR A AT WA RAE A -

ZEBERNUBEEBRR L ERBEB KB H
Al EERRAARRERENNE R MEL
A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZNF+—_HA=+—HILFE

2009 2008
—EENEF —ETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl zE FTHT T
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation MRAR A E 1B (168,811) (365,677)
Adjustments for: FHELATIER :
Finance costs BERA 43,747 92,293
Interest income FEYA (11,121) (35,641)
Government grants recognised ERABFHE S (35,979) (30,481)
Income from release of financial RIS R R B BRI U A
guarantee liability (1,790) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT M ES = (84,972)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E S A R EEE
investment 190,000 -
Depreciation of property, Yz - BE M EITE
plant and equipment 508,990 465,403
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BB &
equipment R EEE 13,138 223,169
Amortisation of technical know-how TR0 S £ 814 4,197
Impairment loss on technical FilT AR EBE
know-how - 2515
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SEANEiEk: 3 4,361 3,992
Write off of inventories FEME 2,534 98,398
Allowance for doubtful debts RERTEEE 4,761 10,851
Share-based payment expense AR 1< R 2 568 1,277
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment BlolE (12,968) (1,408)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & AT i E I E Mk ES
investments (840) -
Write back of provisions (net) BE# R CFE) (8,633) -
Operating cash flows before movements BIEE S BRI
in working capital KEReRE 528,771 413,916
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (3Eh) 207,337 (63,394)
(Increase) decrease in debtors, FEWHRSRR - e Kk
deposits and prepayments FEfTRIE (3Eh0) md (116,759) 22,471
Increase in creditors and accrued charges  FEATBR 7N M E =8 & N 56,009 127,028
Utilisation of provisions B (5,621) (3,219)
Cash generated from operations QIR E IR S 669,737 496,802
Profits tax paid EASAIEHL (1,612) (30,202)
Payment for purchase of shares for AR D 2B
share award scheme 2 BRI 5K (19,465) -
Net cash from operating activities BEERELENRES FE 648,660 466,600
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

2009 2008
—EENE ZTENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HsE BT FHIT
Investing activities RETE
Payments and deposits for acquisition BEWE BEK
of property, plant and equipment BRGNS & sn (222,949) (574,360)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BARMNHES - (13,382)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEYE - BEK
plant and equipment REPTEROA 34,255 5,698
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR 12 = (22,711)
Additional contribution to the available- AMEHERENREINEE
for-sale investments - (281,282)
Loan advanced to a fellow subsidiary AR XM B AR R HE R (206,248) =
Proceeds on disposal of available-for- HER TSR EMSIE
sale investments 1,446 _
Interest received B & 9,121 35,641
(Increase) decrease in restricted bank SR AIRITER (380) SRl
deposits (8,111) 5,638
Net cash used in investing activities REFEEANE S FHE (392,486) (844,858)
Financing activities RMEEE
New bank loans raised FEERITER 519,491 1,942,337
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (846,437) (1,250,163)
Net proceeds from rights issue WA PTIS SRIA 5 437,617 -
Repayment of long term payables EERIAEMNER (11,316) (12,739)
Repurchase of shares %15 O] B8 - (14,915)
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries ERRRAWBARFIE - (291,223)
(Repayment to) advanced from (1B88) RIRMWBARTENRK
fellow subsidiaries (7,577) 16,846
Capital contribution by CR Gas ERRREE - 22,193
Interest paid EASFIE (42,885) (88,090)
Government grants received BB & 57,580 48,506
Exercise of share options FTIE B AR 369 1,440
Dividend paid to minority shareholders ENHEA R HIRERE
of a subsidiary - (462)
Capital contribution from minority B AR LT IEE
shareholders of a subsidiary - 14,359
Net cash from financing activities RMEFTBAEREFHE 106,842 388,089
Net increase in cash and ReERRSEEYEMNTE
cash equivalents 363,016 9,831
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January, R— A —HHRERREZEY 856,877 839,210
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R FE R 1,196 7,836
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-A=+—HWESE
31 December, representing bank EREEEY
balances and cash BRITABRES 1,221,089 856,877
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s parent company is China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the
People’s Republic of China. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the introduction to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 40.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
and the presentation currency of the financial statements is Hong
Kong dollars as the directors consider that Hong Kong dollars
is preferable in presenting the operating and financial position of
the Group.

—R&EH
ARABNFEEHEEMAZNERRER
DR HROREEBERSAERRQ A
(MBEprl) £ ARAWNE QA R/EER
(£E) BERAR ([FHEE])  —MARE
ABEMKZ AR - EREERARSHE
FRAAR ([FEFEEF])  —HRPEAR
HMBEKZE AR - RABE MM ERE M
iR BEE MR FHRAME

ARRA—REEERAT  HTBHBA
£ TSI EE40 ©

ARANEEE RETMPBHRERNZT
ERRAET ARESRR/ETARHNZ
PIAER B R & R B RS AROR, ©
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 &

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(FRIC) - Int 13
HK(FRIC) - Int 15
HK(FRIC) - Int 16
HK(FRIC) - Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 B i & + & R 2 A

Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments
Classification of Rights Issues

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs Issued in
2008, except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 that is effective for
annual periods beginning or after
1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs Issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

FE R TET R AR ISR T & B I B & A

REFE AEBECEERBEEGFMAE
(TEREGEAE ) B TIIHE] REE
FIZER - BRI KRR ([ 5] REIERI B AR

BREEA]) -

BRI EREH
(ZEELFEER)

BAGRERE235
(BT LEEBIT)

BB SERES25 R
155 (B3] A)

BANHREEER
REBGHEETHR
({EFTA)

B REERE2%
({E3TA)

BAMBREERETH
({E3TA)

BASIERE325
({E3TA)

B (BEmEsHRERE
ZE%)- REFEORR
BB ERHERIZE39%
({B3TA)

5% (BBHKRERE
ZEE)- REE18H

5% (BBHERERE
LEE)- REE155

&% (BRH 2R
ZE®)- REFI6H

B (BEHsRERE
ZEE)- RES168%

BAN RS £
({E3T )

BEMBRE L
(BFTAK)

SRABHRE
EEKA

AREERTAR
REREBELNEL

RIBAR - KREHER
TR ENANRERA

BRI RS
ARSI ANERE
S8

RAATETA

EFBHEE

Bl EREHZ
BRI EHREFR
BRFEARE

H-ZT\ERANFEY
BREERMNLE - £F
AU REERF5HH
BETRIN - BEERTR =
TENFLA-REZK
FiNFRERRER

H_ZTNERMOEEN
BREEANRE - IR
BEA G ERE0%E
0B ER]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FEA#H:IREEITEEMBEREEA

98

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and changes
in the format and content of the financial statements.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The amendments
also expand and amend the disclosures required in relation to
liquidity risk. (see note 31)

In addition, the Group has elected to early adopt the HKAS 32
(Amendment) “Classification of Rights Issues” in advance of its
effective date. In the past, rights issue in a currency different
from the functional currency of the Company were required to
be accounted for as derivative financial instruments. However,
under the amendments to HKAS 32, rights, options and warrants
otherwise meeting the definition of equity instruments in paragraph
11 of HKAS 32 issued to acquire a fixed number of an entity’s
own non-derivative equity instruments for a fixed amount in any
currency are classified as equity instruments provided the offer
is made pro-rata to all existing owners of the same class of the
equity’s own non-derivative equity instruments.

Except as described above, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior periods.

(%)

R G ERFE1R (ZTTLFLKERT) 3
AZEMEES (BRETYHHRERTER)
R BHERBRARATNEE

BB ME R ETHRAIETIE AR @A
AFEFENSR T AR AT EFENHE
BE o ZIERTMBARETERRBE SR
SEHE o (RPIFE3T)

SEAN - AEEDEERE AN A PR R
MEB G ERIEI29 (BRI A) [HARER
D] BE - NEAKRRFNEEETED
ERFHENHBRARITESR T AR - A
- REHEE G ERFBI2RMER - [
EEBEHEAERRERESTIATE
A BTHEZEESR (MMERAERE)
WE—HXEBAEN - TEE M EER
TRMERN - BERENMRBRER R BAE
BsTE  EARLAAZERRBEA BN
ARG TENEBRBHERERS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 19

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'
Eligible Hedged Items'

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopers?®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-Time
Adopters*

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments®
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments*
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FEA#H:IREEITEEMBEREEA

100

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d) (&)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and
1 January 2010, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008) may affect the
accounting for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
The Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows and (i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured in fair value. The application of
HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets.

The management is assessing the impact on the consolidated
financial statements upon the application of the other new revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

In 2008, the Company acquired the semiconductor businesses
of CR Gas, its former immediate holding company, by the
issue of 3,050,581,517 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (the
“Amalgamation”). Details of the Amalgamation are contained in
the Company’s composite circular dated 16 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Amalgamation, CR Gas transferred all the
equity interests in Oriental Gateway Enterprises Limited, CRL
Management Services Limited, CRL Finance Limited, Semicon
Technology Company Limited, Kope Microelectronics Company
Limited, China Resources Smartech Company Limited, Wuxi
China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited, CRC
Microelectronics Company Limited, Fortune Property Limited and
Well-Known Property Limited and their respective subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Combining Companies”) held by CR
Gas to the Company. The Combining Companies together with
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
regarded as continuing entities as both the Combining Companies
and the Company are ultimately controlled by CRH prior to and
after the Amalgamation.

The Amalgamation has been accounted for as a combination
of entities under common control by applying the principles of
merger accounting in accordance with the Accounting Guideline
5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) since the directors of the Company consider that the
semiconductor businesses of the Company and those held by
the above-mentioned entities are continuing entities under the
common control of CRH. Accordingly, the financial information
of the Group has been prepared as if the Company has always
been the holding company of the Group or since their respective
dates of incorporation or establishment where this is a shorter
period in accordance with the respective equity interests in the
Group entities attributable to CRH.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FETHBR

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the REVBHRRDIBEELENAZERE S

102

historical cost basis and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired (except for those which are
regarded as continuing entities which are accounted for as a
combination of entities under common control) or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Non-controlling interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the non-
controlling shareholders in excess of the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of
the Group.

Business combinations
Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition of businesses which are not group reorganisation
involving entities under common control is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of non-controlling interests in the acquiree is initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FETHBUR (&)
Business combinations (Cont’d) A0 (8)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities
under common control

In applying merger accounting, financial statements items of the
combining entities or businesses are presented as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial information
are presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined
at the previous end of reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Goodwill (Cont’d)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EEFHFBUR (8)
Property, plant and equipment W -« RERRE
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for Mz BRERSZE (BEBERREEEY

use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and
equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item
is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The costs of prepaid lease payments are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the relevant lease terms and
the operation period of the entity which incurred such payment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of wafer products.

Costs incurred in the acquisition of technical know-how are
capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of four
years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible
and intangible assets below).

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred, except for
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project, which
are anticipated to be recovered through future commercial
activity, such costs are recognised as intangible assets. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FETHBUR (&)
Borrowing costs BERE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to ready for their
intended use or sale, and added to cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systemic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of
the related assets. Other government grants are recognised as
revenue over the periods necessary to match them with costs
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purposes of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit and loss except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity separately.

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 2 B i & + & R 2 A

4.

EFREBE (8
BIE (&)

BRENRANDEAFERERFENE -
FERR B0 )it M B AR & 2 T W 2 R P ER B 1)
[ - ThERRATE N BEE M FE N ERTK
ARAMBAX - TABREBARRENTE
ABNIAR - ARENRBTRABARS
ML —ERAAERRBOREAE -

REMBRRNEENRBBREERAERE
st MR REMERNER - LAR
EHERBELRE - EXHAERE RN
BRERANEFEZERR  MEEHEEE
Ty B Rl B R B st M FR E RS EE R M
R - WEREERREFAERERITE
RGN K EHENNRZFOEMEE
HEE (XAt - T SRR EHE
ERBEERAE -

EEBRBER BN B AR 2IRE 2 R
MEREZEBER  EEANKE A EH T
MEROBLREREZRAETSNA L
A B AR SN ©

EFETR IR B EMREERSE RS BRIER
& WHETARIBER & 5 R B F AU =
2 AR D B ERETA -

ELEBBNEBARAEREREEZRY
REAMHERGE - RERBARBER PR
R MR E R 2 RS B RN s
ROBEEBAR RUBERT - BEHRIEA
B RIREM 2 EK s ERNERER o

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 — & F /L & F & 3| &

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4, EEstlk (&)
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
The costs of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise of loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of which are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Effective Interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including loan receivables, debtors, other receivables, loan
receivables from fellow subsidiary, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or held-to-maturity
investments. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, available-for-sale equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EEFFHEUR (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) £RMTH (8)
Impairment of financial assets TREERE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e when it becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of debtors where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Financial liabilities, including creditors, borrowings, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries and a group company of a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary, and long-term payables, are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
subsequent to initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EEFFHEUR (&)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) £RMTH (8)
Effective interest method BRFEE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly from equity. No gain or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing for proceeds
received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
directors’ best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation
where a provision is measured using a cash flow estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of these cash flows (where the effect is material).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leasing (Cont’d)

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the relevant lease term.

Where the Group is the lessee, operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the translation of assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations (including translation from a group
entity’s functional currency) into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & — &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition prior to 1 January 2005 is treated as
non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and reported
using the historical exchange rate prevailing at the date of
acquisition.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapsed or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Share award schemes

The fair value of the service received, determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the grant dates,
is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period,
with corresponding increase in share award reserve. The cost
of acquisition of the Company’s share held for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for share
award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares are vested,
the amount previously recognized in the share award reserve and
the amount of the relevant treasury shares will be transferred to
retained profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of award shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment losses of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future in preparing accounting estimates. The resulting accounting
estimates may not be equal to the actual results. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both the current and future periods. The key
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {&stFAHBEZENETERR (8)
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(Cont’d)
Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful lives are based on the expected
lifespan of those property, plant and equipment. The useful lives
of property, plant and equipment could change significantly as a
result of technical obsolescence. When the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment due to the change of commercial
and technological environment are different from their estimated
useful lives, such difference will impact the deprecation charges
and the amounts of assets written down for future periods.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment, in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on value in use calculations. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the actual cash

W  BE KRR B A FER e

EEEMYE  BELREHBFES -
BEFAAFHRZEDE - BERRENHTE
AATRERAEE - ME - BERRBOHA
FFHR e AR LB IR EAREE o
W% BERERENERTBFHERR
REMBRELMANNGEFIRAES &
MERNGTERRGENTEER KA
HEEEBR ©

W - BERREHETRE

AEESFREMBSTERIEDE B
ERhREALGLREMABMETR - W% K
FERhEENARESEREEREEERE
ZEAERAEERHAREERSRER
FITER P B RA3R A h I B R (A 5T - W ERRIR
ERERFREET TN - MESEAIEELEAN

B #eh °

==
flows is different from the original estimate, a material change in
the amount of impairment may arise.
Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investment o] &R SN et E

The Group assesses annually whether available-for-sale investment
has any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amount of available-for-
sale investment has been determined using a discounted cash
flow analysis based on the estimated future cash flows. These
calculations and valuations require the use of judgment and
estimates on present value of the future cash flows expected to
be generated by the investee and discount rate adopted. In the
current year, an impairment loss of HK$190,000,000 has been
recognised in relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investment
(see note 19). Where the actual cash flows is different from the
original estimate, a material change in the amount of impairment
may arise.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5.

(Cont’d)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts of HK$4,761,000
in 2009 (2008: HK$10,851,000) based on an assessment of the
recoverability of debtors. Allowances are made on trade debtors
whenever there is any objective evidence that the balances may
not be collectible. The Group makes judgment in assessing the
collectability based on observable data including creditworthiness
and payment history of the customers (for details please refer
to Note 24). When objective evidence for allowance exists, the
amount of allowance is the difference between the carrying
amounts of the debts and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of the debts is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amounts
of debtors and doubtful debt expenses in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$21,024,000 (2008: HK$21,024,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 21.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {&stFABEZENETERR (8)
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(Cont’d)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of reporting period,
and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
As at 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of provisions is
HK$25,048,000 (2008: HK$39,303,000). Details of the estimation
of the provisions are disclosed in Note 28.

e

MAEBRERAREHAERET - BAE
BB BARITEMR - ABEREE - &
BREENRENREBETREEEHMER
SR EEMET - MERHFEEA - ABER
FRE RZTZEAF+=ZA=1t—H ' &
EEBENIREEA25,048,0008 T (=ZF
=\ : 39,303,000) ° {HEFBEMFEBER
BisE28iRHE °

Allowance for inventories HEEE
The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an REBRBEENERFENGTIELHEER
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances Bl - MR BEHNIBE RSB~ A] B F

are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories
requires the use of judgment and estimates on the conditions
and usefulness of the inventories. As at 31 December 2009,
the carrying amount of inventories is HK$602,850,000 (2008:
HK$812,712,000).

BERFEKRAE  AIgUFEHELEE - &
EFENBEZEREFEENRR K AEEL
B REET - RZEENF+A=+—8 -
A& B 7 'R/ R H {E 2602,850,000/% 7T
—ZFT)\F :812,712,000) °

Income taxes Friss
As at 31 December 2009, a deferred tax asset of HK$26,700,000 RZZTEZNF+ZA=+—H BEM
(2008: HK$18,589,000) has been recognised in the Group’s 15 & 26,700,000 L (=Z & T )\ &F :

consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the period in which such a reversal
takes place.

18,589,000) EE’\\$'§IE’J?$E\.EM’1#E?%
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to maintain a balance between
continuity of cash flows from operating activities and the flexibility
through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors the
current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure that sufficient working
capital and adequate committed lines of funding are maintained
to meet its liquidity requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
include borrowings, bank balances and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, management considers
the cost of capital and the associated risk, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the extinguishment of existing debts.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. &ftTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &BITEIER

2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Financial assets SREE

Loans and receivables ER kIR (B

(including cash and cash equivalents) R4 RIRESZEY) 2,329,797 1,627,519
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 564,092 741,698

Financial liabilities = =R
At amortised cost LA SH R AN 5T 3,377,619 3,789,042
Financial guarantee contract ERERSH = 10,790
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, debtors, available-for-sale investments, bank
balances and cash, creditors, borrowings and long-term
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts certain sales, purchases and funding
transactions in foreign currencies, i.e. United States dollar,
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, hence is exposed to foreign
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group currently has not entered into
any foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency risk. Management will consider hedging
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. LETAH (&)
Market risk (Cont’d) HiSEE (48)
() Foreign currency risk (Cont’d) (i) IERRE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and T AAREERSRE BIAINE (BIE
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, i.e. SEER2UEEEUINNER) JIE
currency other than the functional currency of the respective NEBEERERGE (EZREWER
group entities which are mainly debtors, creditors, bank o EAER - ROETFRBITER)
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting dates are HIRREE :
as follows:
2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHTT
Assets BE
United States dollar ET 481,491 150,222
Hong Kong dollar BIT 34,032 37,145
Renminbi AR 93,899 131,111
609,422 318,478
Liabilities a8
United States dollar ETT 18,384 33,212
Hong Kong dollar ABIT 9,186 702,070
Renminbi AR 279,426 517,558
306,996 1,252,840
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase in the functional currencies of the Group
entities, mainly Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar,
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates an
increase in loss for the year when the functional currencies
strengthens against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 5%
weakening of the functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies, there would be an equal but opposite
impact on the result for the year.

TR (&)
miSER (48)

U]

SMERBR ()
IMNEHBEE D HT

TRAIAEEERNINGEEE (X8
/RARE TARK]) kET) LHHE
SNEE | FE%E BREE © 5% A B R B
T EANRARAEZEERASRSEI
R B TR NS [ R AT BE
B EEHNTE - QURESTER
EHARLBEAINEDERN EHIRE I
RERBENNERNEFHEHES -
fHIIBE B ¥ L AERESNE L7 - RITHIE
BERTEFNERIEN - WHEEE R
HEINE TERE% - Al @ HFRREEAE
EHRFERARNTE

2009 2008
—EENEF —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
United States dollar EpH
Result for the year FREEE (15,997) (3,954)
Hong Kong dollar BT
Result for the year FEEE (1,024) (1,339)
Renminbi AR%
Result for the year FEXEE 7,885 (17,075)
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group’s sensitivity to the change in United States
dollars against Hong Kong dollars is low as Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to United States dollar. As a result, the
above sensitivity table does not include the impact of such
change.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows of
the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s floating rate borrowings and loan
receivables from a fellow subsidiary. It is the Group’s policy
to maintain its borrowings at floating interest rate so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point
(2008: 200 basis points) increase is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
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&RTH (8)
HiZEE (48)
(i) F==EpE (8)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7.
Market risk (Cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

At the end of reporting period, assuming the bank
borrowings outstanding at the end of reporting period had
been outstanding for the whole year, if interest rates had
increased by 200 basis points (2008: 200 basis points) and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year would increase by approximately HK$11,304,000
(2008: HK$18,676,000). In the opinion of directors, sensitivity
analysis is not presented for a decrease of interest rate
because a further decrease in interest rate is unlikely to
occur.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of London interbank
offered rate (“LIBOR”), Hong Kong interbank offered rate
(“HIBOR”) and People’s Bank of China lending rate arising
from the Group’s United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi denominated borrowings. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent cash flow interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure for the whole year as a result
of the repayment of a substantial amount of the Group’s
borrowings during the year.
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130

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of unrecognised portion of liabilities in
relation to financial guarantees issued by the Group disclosed in
Notes 31 and 35. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
has policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
searches on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once
a year.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of each individual
debt on a regular basis to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Group considers that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with credit standing.

Other than concentration of credit risk on loan receivables from
a fellow subsidiary, the Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.
No single trade debtor outstanding at the end of reporting period
exceeds 5% of the total balance of trade debtors.

However, the Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk by geographical location as 80% (2008: 79%) of
debtors are mainly in PRC within the high-technology industry.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2009, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$1,975,567,000 (2008:
HK$1,086,580,000). Details of which are set out in Note 27.

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
in accordance with the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. &8TH (&)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) RENELREME (8)
Total
0-180 181-365 1-2 2-3 Over 3 undiscounted Carrying
days days years years years  cash flows amounts
KBRS

0-180F  181-365H 1-2F 2-3% 3ENL RES REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
TEL Tan ThEx TEx TAL TEL TEL

As at 31 December 2009 W-EEhE+-B=1-H
Non-interest bearing 45

Trade creditors ERESHT 922,973 - - - - 922,973 922,973

Other payables HipEMER 319,751 - - - - 319751 319,751

Long-term payables REEMER 17,036 - 17,036 - - 34,072 32,360
Variable interest rate instruments  FEF|EIA

Bank borrowings HITEHR 483,113 170,264 337,985 657,224 501,446 2,150,032 2,102,535

1,742,873 170,264 355,021 657,224 501,446 3,426,828 3,377,619

As at 31 December 2008 RZEE\&t-R=1-H
Non-interest bearing %5

Trade creditors b ES 910,696 - - - - 910,69 910,696

Other payables AR 380,947 - - - - 380,947 380,947

Long-term payables R fTER 6,165 6,165 11,526 11,526 50,659 86,041 67,918
Variable interest rate instruments ~ J¥E1R|= T A

Bank borrowings RITEH 342,924 39,865 455,780 338,667 1,189,767 2,337,003 2,270,591
Fixed interest rate instruments AEFEIE

Bank borrowings AR 88,639 75,735 - - - 164,374 158,890
Financial guarantee contract HREREH 206,248 - - - - 206,248 10,790

1,935,619 121,765 467,306 350,193 1,210,426 4,085,309 3,799,832

The amount of HK$206,248,000 included above for financial RZZBZNF+_RA=+—H  stAL#MH
guarantee contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2008 are RS K H) R B 8 FL18206,248,000/8 7T
the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle RAEBERIBEA R EEERRIBNZHE
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that AENNESESE (NZSEHERNYEF
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. The FHERE) - BRE{E10,790,0007% 7T JH IR &
carrying amount of HK$10,790,000 is based on the fair value of PERNYEERAFETE (B2 AN
the financial guarantee at initial recognition as referred to note 31) c BERMEBRIELMTER - AEE
31. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the RARIE L BET] R B R IA RS AT -

Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The fair value of the financial guarantee is determined using
valuation model where the main assumptions are the probability
of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from market-
based credit information and the amount of loss, given the
default.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost and
financial guarantees in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising on sales of goods of
HK$2,411,320,000 (2008: HK$2,518,973,000) and rendering
of service of HK$625,561,000 (2008: HK$599,719,000) for the
year.

The Group determines its operating segments based on resources
allocation with reference of products or services, for the purpose
of reporting to the chief operating decision maker (the Executive
Committee).

TR (&)
AFE

BREERAENRNEREENERBERN
RFERBERTEREREDTORRE
EBRAEE -

TRERNAFERAGERAEE  ME
E2BERBBREMSEEEREHOFEYF
TEDONAREEREBRER THEESK
B o

EERR BEVBBRTREFKAET
EONTREERERABRVBERNER
EEEXNFHERS °

WA R 5 BB E ¥

WAIEARFE R B HEEEmA2,411,320,000
BT (ZZZE )\ : 2,518,973,000% 7T) M
IR R 625,561,000/ 7T (— 2T )\ -
599,719,000/ 7T ) HyUkEs ©

AEENREBERKRBZERDEETH
B WREBEERRE (KRRAW
HITRBEE) ®E -
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

e  Open Foundry

e Integrated Circuits (“IC”) Design

e |C Testing and Packaging

8.

ARG EBEF (&)

AEBRBEEEVEREEAFESI 27K
A RE D EBHINOT

R RERT
o ERER (JIC)) &5

o ERERAANIE

e  Discrete Devices o SN
e Supporting Function o  IRIRF

The segments are managed separately as each division offers
different products and services.

The activities of these divisions are as follows:
Open Foundry — open foundry for manufacturing of wafers with
technical platforms, such as CMOS, BiCMOS, DMOS, BCDMOS

and Bipolar

IC Design — design and development of semiconductor IC
products

IC Testing and Packaging — provision of IC assembly and testing
foundry services

Discrete Devices — manufacture of discrete device wafers and
finished products for energy saving lightings, home appliances,

industrial control devices and personal computers

Supporting Function — provision of utilities and other supporting
services

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED # 8 8 & F B R A

D EBERIZ S
RER -

EBFIER A R 2 am e AR5 10 9

ZEEFRERIAT ¢

AR RERT — AREREREFRRAA
TR - HEHMCMOS - BICMOS * DMOS -
BCDMOSKk &ERETHFE G

£REHRE - RAtRATLERS
B

SRERAFELEE - RHERERHER
RITRIF RS

DUBI — BERRGEEN  RAEE
TEEHESNEASHBE 02 RS
&EZDD

SRR — RREKE R EA SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2000 HZ —EZENF+_A=+-HIFZE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARSEBEHR (&)
Information regarding these segments is reported below. EAZEDENEREIIAT o
Year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZZAF+-A=+—HLEFE
Open IC Testing&  Discrete Supporting
Foundry IC Design Packaging Devices  Function Total
Rt RREER SHER
SEAT #it WERREHE AUBEH  XERE CE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT
Turnover from external customers ~ REMNBEEHZ£%E 964,572 589,210 625,561 795,250 62,288 3,036,881
Intersegment turnover RS E R 155,286 4,368 44,739 25222 308,273 538,388
Segment turnover DEE 1,119,858 594,078 670,300 820,472 370,561 3,575,269
Interest income FEUWA 4,644 58 160 248 5,504 10,614
Finance costs BB 6,681 - 3,844 1,927 2,041 14,493
Depreciation and amortisation & R 244,551 14,549 105,159 89,362 60,345 513,966
Impairment of assets BERE 198,791 - 4,347 - - 203,138
Reportable segment (loss) profit AREHE (B8) 58 (170,534) 11,475 (17,003) 43,459 19,876  (112,727)
Reportable segment assets AREDEE 2,527,787 395,123 965,080 1,202,924 1,779,828 6,870,742
Reportable segment liabilities REL AR 491,084 208,851 452,381 393,821 180,446 1,726,583
(Reversal of) allowance for R (BE) B
doubtful debts (3,154) 5,376 309 2,170 60 4,761
Additions to property, plant and ME  BERRERE
equipment and prepaid lease REMEE
payments 41,902 12,981 29,639 23,497 45,599 153,618
Addition to deposit for acquisition of BREBENE « KE
property, plant and equipment RR GRS EM 753 10,126 26 - 2,741 13,646
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARSEIPEE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTZ)\GF+_A=1+—HILFE
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Open |C Testing & Discrete  Supporting
Foundry  IC Design  Packaging Devices Function Total
I &MEER  SRER
RERT R OARREE SuRH  ERE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET THT TR THT
Turnover from external customers ~ RENBEPH L £%E 956,580 692,081 599,719 808,067 62,245 3,118,692
Intersegment turnover DERfE & A 208,988 15,026 64,867 83,235 359,633 731,749
Segment turnover NEE ¥ 1,165,568 707,107 664,586 891,302 421,878 3,850,441
Interest income FEdA 3,814 182 174 156 26,094 30,420
Finance costs BB 26,135 6,058 7,384 8,131 7,156 54,864
Depreciation and amortisation e R 247,114 14,166 73,098 80,347 58,664 473,389
Impairment of assets BERE 255,684 - - - - 255,684
Reportable segment (loss) profit EJ*&:. M (E518) %A (367,007)  (15,087)  (36,107) 23,708 38,416 (356,027)
Reportable segment assets BEDBEE 2,902,448 515,064 1,018,720 1,160,790 1,301,047 6,898,069
Reportable segment liabilities ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% 671,526 183,659 508,195 461,313 194,115 2,018,808
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE A 3,014 6,983 276 567 11 10,851
Additions to property, plant and 0¥ BERIERE
equipment and prepaid lease LEAHEE
payments 345,437 42,863 223,856 123,864 31,344 767,364
Write down of inventories to WRFEZE5RFE
net realisable value 55,455 24,298 5,951 12,506 188 98,398
Addition to deposit for acquisition of FREBENE « BE
property, plant and equipment R ERReEm 3,488 - 859 - 16,773 21,120
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+ _-_A=1+—HItFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 4. Performance is measured based on segment
(loss) profit that is used by the Executive Committee for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance. Taxation is not allocated to reportable
segments.

The turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group
are allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before taxation, excluding
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated corporate
finance costs from borrowings raised by headquarters
and other corporate expenses (mainly including staff costs
of general management and other general administrative
expenses).

Reportable segment assets exclude tax recoverable, deferred
tax assets, unallocated bank balances and cash held by
headquarters and unallocated corporate assets (mainly
including prepayments and deposits of headquarters).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude taxation, deferred
tax liabilities, financial guarantee contract, unallocated
bank borrowings raised by headquarters and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly including accrued charges of
headquarters).

8. WARSEBEH (&)
(@) FIHE D EATERA R & SRR T EHT

AR AR R E A &S BERAAR - KB
DRBARBNRITREGANIEE
RS BREN D (BER) &
AE BRSO EEA mENE ©

AEBENKBA - B BERAER
DENRGEEDE -

A ¥R 2 BB A A BRR AR R - B
BHEMBARMNKE - BEMEEE
ENRDECEBMERANEMPES
HEE2eR-REEBNEIKRAR
HAh—MRITHBFA) °

ARED R EENBIE AU B -
ELBIAEE - HARRFANRDER
THRHEIREUARRDECEEE (X
ZERABOBENFTARES) °

AHRENMOBETERERE - BTN
HAE  UBERAQ  BEAEEN
APBERTEERARADIECEAE (E
ZEFERTNETER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. WARSEREE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover, (b) TIRESEBUN - B - SERAEREN
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ¥R
Reportable segment turnover, profit or loss, assets and AREDIRA - B  BERBEH
liabilities are reconciled to total assets and total liabilities of AEBEERBERBEBENEED
the Group as follows: T~
Turnover WA 2009 2008
—EENF T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Reportable segment turnover AR S o R A 3,575,269 3,850,441
Elimination of intersegment turnover i o =AY A (538,388) (731,749)
Turnover per consolidated statement of R4R& & U R R
comprehensive income | =R A A 3,036,881 3,118,692
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage 53 B 8 & AR A A I — FE L K 2 F)
profit mark-up. e °
Profit or loss B 2009 2008
—EEAE —EEN\EF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reportable segment loss AR E D S EE (112,727) (356,027)
Unallocated amounts: RO ERFIA
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKTE A R Ad S - 84,972
Release of financial guarantee liability — EEBRIISIEREE 1,790 -
Unallocated corporate finance costs ROBEERE KA (29,254) (69,678)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBELERS (28,620) (34,944)
Loss before taxation RErE 2HKERTIFHRE
per consolidated statement of MAIE R
comprehensive income (168,811) (865,677)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #ZE2 —ZEENE+-_A=+-HILFEE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8.

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover,

WARSEBE (&)

(b) TTHRESBMKA « B3 - EERBED

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Cont’d) AR (88)
Assets BE 2009 2008
—EBNF T NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Reportable segment assets Al¥RE DAL EE 6,870,742 6,898,069
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE
Tax recoverable AU eI 7 IE 187 9,329
Deferred tax assets EETIAE EE 26,700 18,589
Unallocated bank balances and cash ROBIRITESR LIRS 80,317 197,352
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMBFEEE 7,098 8,049
Total assets per consolidated statement 4R & B SR R 1|5
of financial position MEERE 6,985,044 7,131,388
Liabilities afE 2009 2008
—EENF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Reportable segment liabilities AsEDEEE 1,726,583 2,018,808
Unallocated liabilities: AOBLAME
Taxation TIE 16,016 5,088
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIRE A 4,712 4,718
Financial guarantee contract B ERE R = 10,790
Unallocated bank borrowings RAOFRIRITIER 1,900,000 2,000,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROREEEE 16,860 8,166
Total liabilities per consolidated RERE B IS AR R R 51 =R
statement of financial position iRk 3,664,171 4,047,570
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

WA RSEBEF (&)
(c) bEHHER

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8.

(c) Geographical information

140

(d)

The following table provide an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical market attributed to the group entities’
countries/regions of domiciles (i.e. People’s Republic of
China (the “Mainland China”) and Hong Kong) and attributed
to all foreign countries. All the non-current assets other than
available-for-sale investments and deferred tax assets are
located in the entity’s countries/regions of domicile.

AT RAEEZMETSEINEEE
BAAEBER E (BhEARAME
[PER| REE) MFAEINEREEE
HIHEROITR - 2HMIFERBEE (7]
HHERE MELEHRBEERIN) B
NERIERK, & -

2009 2008
—EENF T NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Domicile countries/regions FTERR  Hhlm
Mainland China R B At 1,742,353 2,205,453
Hong Kong BB 16,016 8,516
1,758,369 2,213,969

Foreign countries/regions: SNED R

Mainland China A A 3h, 8,505 6,140
Hong Kong BB 505,607 273,194
Taiwan ae 210,317 188,729
United States ESE 332,801 311,331
Europe B 17,901 90,378
Others HAh 203,381 34,951
1,278,512 904,723
3,036,881 3,118,692

Turnover is analysed on the basis of the customer’s
location.

Information about major customers

In 2009 and 2008, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group’s
revenue.

WATHEE PR DT -

EEEFEH

RZZZNER-ZZZTNF  KEAEAE
ERAEFPHEmEEARERENTE
10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

9. OTHER INCOME/GAINS

9. HfleA iz

2009 2008
—EENE ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FABT
Included in other income/gains are: STAEAMUA S WEREIER &
Interest on bank deposits RITF A E 7,925 35,641
Interest on loan to a fellow subsidiary B 2B AR ERF & 3,196 -
Income from release of financial RS EREENBA
guarantee liability (Note 31) (F7E31) 1,790 =
Government grants (Note 39) BT e (FizE39) 35,979 30,481
Net gain on disposal of property, plant ~ HE¥% - BEX
and equipment HER W R 12,968 1,408
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & Al S 1R A R WS
investments 840 -
Supporting and administrative B —RERZH B AT
service income from B SZ 1R AT R AR 75 A
a fellow subsidiary (Note 38) (F#E38) 88,733 57,058
Tax refund on re-investment of FEMEA RN BEEE
profit of PRC subsidiaries HR TR 12,302 -
Write back of provisions (Note 28) B (FizE28) 9,625 -
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. RRERE
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FABT
Interests on: FE
Bank loans wholly repayable within AR AFRBHEZED
five years RITER 42,885 88,090
Long-term payables R ARFE T AR 5K 862 4,203
43,747 92,293
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION 11. HIE

2009 2008
—gENE B0
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&xT FH&IT

Current tax BV EAF I8
PRC Y 22,718 23,417
Hong Kong B 24 201
Overprovision in prior year BAFERERE (1,060) (3,812)
21,682 19,806
Deferred tax (Note 30) EEFTE (FTFE30) (8,116) (2,564)
13,566 17,242

On 26 June 2008 the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2009 which reduced corporate profit tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Profits tax arising in the Mainland China is calculated based on
the applicable tax rates on assessable profits.

R-ZZBEZNFENA-+B BELESE
BCEEENFRAKOIER) EFBE
BB ZEFSTHEE  B17.5%HE16.5% *
BE_ZENE_ZTTNFHFEREK - A
It - BAENESRIIEAER EFREETER
TR FEN16.5%5T & -

B A A B R TS AR T AR R e AR B i A
RERBERGTE -
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11. TAXATION (Cont’d)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EIT
Law, the domestic tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain subsidiaries obtained approval from the relevant tax
bureau and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise
which would be subject to a tax rate of 15% for both years.

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
were exempted from tax applicable in the Mainland China for two
years starting from 2008 and were granted a 50% relief for the
following three years.

The relevant tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for
both years range from 15% to 25%.

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

11.

BIE (&)

REBHFEARXMBECEMAETOE ([BEAHA
BHED REEAETOEERMAR - PEMH
BRAMBEAREE —_ZTN\F—-H—Bi
B R25% °

MAMBARC B A BRGHEBEGHE
YEBRKARARMEE  ERFREF
5% R

AN ETRPEAEENME LT R
ZTN\FEFMFHRERRBRERNF
BEEMEH - WRER=FA B %250%
REIERAEN o

RZMEFER  AEEFRENEAQAAHE
AT RN F15%E25% N -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZNF+—_HA=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION (Cont’d) 11. 1B (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before TFNFLIE ST AT B R A R ES 1R SRR AN ¢
taxation as follows:

2009 2008
—EEAF —ETNF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FEx T

Loss before taxation B ATE B (168,811) (365,677)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 15% Z15%H)E AR R E IR

(2008: 15%) (Note) —TTNEF : 15%) (MfsE) (25,322) (54,852)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible e ATIE B B

for tax purpose BT E 39,053 16,553
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax T aEAFIIAH A RF AU A

purpose RIS 2 (10,619) (19,085)
Overprovision in respect of prior year E B EE (1,060) (3,812)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  ARASHERM T IBE BTS2 9,240 18,820
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RIEREM AR TR =R

differences not recognised R TR TS 5o & 2,918 59,763
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR R ERERM T IAEE

recognised (910) (633)
Utilisation of other deductible temporary B 4t Bl R FE R A E A

differences previously not recognised AR ERER (190) (822)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to A B K REAS & B[ B A 7

subsidiaries operating in FTEFRIER N2

the Mainland China (2,065) -
Income tax at concessionary rates REFHEFENMER = (4,460)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FF Bl A FEAR & B i B A &)

operating in the Mainland China EATRBERNTZE 1,080 401
Tax effect of withholding tax on R K g M FE R A 7 75 5 22

undistributed profits - 4,712
Others HAth 1,441 657
Tax charge for the year FEHIBZ M 13,566 17,242
Note: FieE -
The rate represents the tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established ZRMEERPBRARERZREZEWHERT AR
in the Mainland China which are regarded as High and New Advanced R ERNE R EEA TR E -

Technology Enterprises by the local tax bureau.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 March 2008, the Company and its indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary, Jolly China Investment Limited entered into
an agreement with CRH and its wholly owned subsidiary, Joyous
China Investments Limited for the formation of CSMC Asia
Limited (formerly named as Asia Champion Investment Limited,
hereinafter referred to as the “CSMC Asia”), pursuant to which,
the Company disposed of its entire interest in, and shareholder’s
loan to, Qualibest Enterprises Limited to the CSMC Asia for a
consideration of approximately US$58,444,000 (equivalent to
HK$455,779,000 which was satisfied by the issuance of shares
by the CSMC Asia to the Group, amounting to 19% equity
interest of the CSMC Asia (which is classified as available-
for-sale investments, see Note 19). The consideration was
determined based on the net liabilities of Qualibest Enterprises
Limited as at the date of disposal adjusted for the market value
(net of deferred tax) of land use right owned by a subsidiary
of Qualibest Enterprises Limited based on an independent
professional valuation at that date and the shareholder’s loan
assigned by the Group to the CSMC Asia of HK$457,772,000
(to be capitalised as capital contribution of the CSMC Asia). The
disposal was completed on 30 April 2008. The principal activity of
Qualibest Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries are to engage
in wafer fabrication in the PRC.

The fair values of the land use right had been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out as of that day by CB Richard Ellis,
an independent qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties.

12. HEMBAT

RZZFZENF=A+1B ' ARARIREME
2EMBAREERERRAFEEHEE
REZ2EMBARNERERR D RKILE
BLEZE (M) BRAR (AIBRHFEIRERR
AR [EBLEE (EMN)]) T — B -
BIEZWE - ARRIMEREE (SM) B
EERNBREXBRARAPHDHPERRF
THRAEBEERAAMNBREER  RELD
#358,444,000% 7T (18 & 7455,779,000/%
Jo) c BEUAER EE (BN mASE T
MR ZAT - (hEEE 2 (D) RAER
19% (D AAIHEERE - RKMtE19) -
ZREDNBERLERHBREEERA
AN B EFE (WRERZ BB L EE
BUHBEREELXERATNBARNEAN L
HERAENTENREEHEELARE) &
AEEEETERLE (DN ORFER
457,772,000 7T (&b AZERE L2 (%
M HMEREHE) BE - ZHETR=ZZZT
NENA=+HZEKX - BREEERAAR
HMBARFZENFENERERE -

T ARERZ AN FESRIEHE R
B (BAKEEBENBLSERERD
BED) ETHBEMER - Z[EDHLSE
Mg ERUMENRIIR ZERMKRZER
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

12. HEMBATE (4)
ROENEREXARARLRENBATRN

12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

The net liabilities of the Qualibest Enterprises Limited and

146

its subsidiaries disposed of at the date of disposal were as HE QBB aEREnT
follows:
HK$’000
FTER
(unaudited)
(REER)
Property, plant and equipment Vs - R Rkt 649,176
Prepaid lease payments TEHEE 4,682
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUER -~ e RTEIFIA 181,372
Bank balances and cash RITHBR RIS 22,711
Creditors and accrued charges R ERF R BT & A (360,255)
Shareholder’s loan IRRE (457,772)
Bank borrowings RITIE (77,404)
(37,490)
The effect of the disposal is as follows: ZHOERTENT ¢
HK$’000
FTER
(unaudited)
(REER)
Net liabilities disposed of HEMNEEFE (37,490)
Loan to Qualibest Enterprises Limited assigned BREEARATNEREET
to CSMC Asia = EEE (M) 457,772
Translation reserve realised BB IR B 5 R (56,212)
364,070
Gain on disposal & W Es 84,972
Unrealised gain attributable to the 19% interest REBIEEM19%Em PTE
held by the Group HARER Y= 6,737
Total consideration, satisfied by equity interest in Ut ARIEEERER
shares of CSMC Asia recorded as available- =R EE (M) BRI HEES
for-sale investments IRt B RE 455,779
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELMIRSRL T
Bank balances and cash disposed of KHEMRITERRES (22,711)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. EREE
2009 2008
—EEhE —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT THT
Loss for the year has been FREEE MK
arrived at after charging (crediting): (Gt A) -
Staff costs EEKA
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) EEZME (fisk14) 4,631 9,814
Other staff Hith{E 8
~ Salaries and other benefits — ¥ REMBR 535,501 605,785
- Retirement benefits schemes — RIKE G I 3%
contributions 60,382 56,773

Share-based payment expense e 568 1,277
Total staff costs BB AL 601,082 673,649
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 2 3,000 3,500
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BE KR ERESE

and equipment 13,138 5,415
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREREITE

plant and equipment 508,990 465,408
Amortisation of technical know-how Rim#EEE Gt ATHER)

(included in administrative expenses) 814 4,197
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A 8 55 4,361 3,992
Total depreciation and amortisation FrEREHBE 514,165 473,592
Write off of inventories (included in FEME GrAEMAS)

other operating expenses) 2,534 75,311
Cost of inventories recognized as expense  BRER AR HNFEENR A 1,911,069 1,984,841
Allowance for doubtful debts RERRHE 4,761 10,851
Operating lease rentals in respect of FEEMFE ML

rented premises HEHS 8,624 6,454
(Reversal of) loss on closure of a production  (#[8]) BRI — M 4£E T

plant (see notes a and ¢ below) 1Bk (R xkzFake)

- Impairment loss on property, plant - W%  BERRERE

and equipment g = 217,754

— Impairment loss on technical know-how — R AR EEE = 32,5615

- (Reversal of) employee severance —(BE) EEEHEI L

payment expenses (9,628) 16,812
— (Reversal of) compensation to —(BmE) HEER
landlord and supplier Mg PR B (E (2,344) 16,302
— Write off of inventories — FEM = 23,087
— Write off of other receivables — H A fE R IE M 5 (7,744) 7,649
(19,716) 314,119
Loss on suspension of production BERX
(included in other operating expenses, (GIAEMEZEER -
see note b below) RT3kt sED) 42,055 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE —FEEAF+—A=+—HIFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Cont’d)

Note:

(@)

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED 25 B # & + A R 24 7]  ANNUAL REPORT 2009

At 31 December 2008, the directors reviewed the carrying value of
the Group’s manufacturing assets, and determined that a number
of those assets were impaired due to the plan for relocation of the
production line to a new plant in another area. The assets were
used in the Group’s open foundry segment. The existing production
was ceased in December 2008 and the relocation of the production
line would commence in January 2009. Therefore, impairment loss
of HK$111,072,000 in respect of immovable property, plant and
equipment had been recognised in prior year. Furthermore, the
Group planned to modernise production and would introduce new
product lines after the relocation therefore, certain items of property,
plant and machinery, technical know-how, inventories were identified
as obsolete and impairment losses in respect of those assets had
been recognised. The recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment had been determined on the basis of their value in
use. The discount rate used in measuring value in use was 11% per
annum.

In addition, employee severance payment and compensation to
landlord and suppliers, which were assessed in accordance with
the relevant rules and regulations and the agreements with the
counterparties, were expected to be incurred for the relocation of
the production line.

As a result of the financial crisis in the second half of 2008, the
Group’s open foundry business has been adversely affected and
the Group temporarily suspended certain production units during
the year to reduce operating losses. The loss on suspension of
production mainly includes depreciation of production facilities
which has been included the total depreciation expenses separately
presented above. The Group has resumed these production since
March 2009.

During the year, the Group has reached agreement with dismissed
employees on severance payment and negotiated with landlord
on early termination leases in connection of the relocation of
production line mentioned in (a) above. Upon settlement, a reversal
of HK$11,972,000 has been recognized in current year, In addition,
other receivables previously written off of HK$7,744,000 has been
recovered.

13. ERESHE (8)
BEE

(@)

R-BENFE+_A=+—0 E=ZCEH
AEENEELEENKRAE  TRERZE
BEERSBIPEESREES —HE
i R E o %ﬁFmF$E§%ERIA
HoBELEDR-_ZEENE+_AE
HEESRBEER-_ZTNF— Hﬁ%
I EEEERTEME - BE KK ﬁﬁm
BB E18111,072,000/8 7 © BN © AEE
AEETEALCEET R IRBRIETE
Ei o Bt - BETYE - BERKEER -
BITAERFEDERABRE - WHZEE
EERREEE - ¥ KE RRH AU
El&EEBBEEGERAEBRETE - ARET=6E
REENBFNEER11%

AN - EBAEEGBRHELREENER
HETREERBNEE  DTREAEMRNR
R A K B 75 FRAT AL B R T A5 o

HR-ZEENF X FHEREY  KAEH
MamERTEBRZITMNEE  AEERF
NEEE TEEEMARERERR - FE
BRAIEEEEERGNE  BEstALXE
BEINTEREE AEEER-_TF
ﬂiiﬂﬁ%@%ﬁ$§°

RERN - ANEEEBERESMERBEXH
B FE _ES () B TR B A ER R
EERERIERLY - WEMNBEERIER - &
[ 3B 11,972,000/ 0 B A A FEIERER ©
BESN - 4 B S B9 E 4th 8 U 5K 187,744,000
ELE U E o

SERASEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EEM2 R AR S HES

EMPLOYEES
Directors =
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors are as follows: EffsENESMEEHTIAT :
2009 2008
“BENE ERN\E
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes
Name of Director Note Fees benefits contributions Total Total
EEpe (if:d Be  HERHEMER RABAGELER st @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THT TATL
Executive directors YTES
SONG LIN R 70 - - 70 70
WANG GUOPING TET¥ 70 575 26 671 1,351
CHEN CHENG-YU, PETER  RIEF 70 1,760 - 1,830 3,198
FRANK LAI NI HIUM Rk a 70 1,107 - 1177 2,938
DENG MAQ-SONG, ELVIS ~ EBf&#A b - - - - 1,013
Non-executive directors 3 #{TEZ
ZHU JINKUN Kat 50 - - 50 84
JIANG WEI kR 50 - - 50 50
LI FUzU0 TR 50 - - 50 50
DU WENMIN YR 50 - - 50 50
ONG THIAM KIN, KEN TR © - - - - 30
YUYU aF c - - - - 113
CHEN NAN-XIANG R c - - - - 138
KUM LOON OON neE d 233 - - 233 230
RALPH SYTZE YBEMA RALPH SYTZE YBEMA  d 264 - - 264 261
KO PING KEUNG BRA d 186 - - 186 187
MARK HUSE CHI NAN amE e - - - - 51
1,163 3,442 26 4,631 9,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EEMaRARESHES (&)
EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

Note: MizE -

(@) Mr. Frank Lai Ni Hium had resigned as executive director and was (@) BLHEHRERZZTZTNF A —BHEENT
appointed as a non-executive director on 1 June 2009. EZWEZERIENTES -

(b) Mr. Deng Mao-song, Elvis had resigned as executive director on 20 (o) EEMRAEERZZTENF=RA -+ HEEH
March 2008. 78S -

(¢)  Mr. Ong Thiam Kin, Ken, Mr. Yu Yu and Mr. Chen Nan-xiang had () EABELE -  AFEERREALER-Z
resigned as non-executive directors on 20 March 2008. SNF=A T HEEFERTES °

(d) Independent non-executive directors and members of the Audit (d) BIUFERITESHREZZEGKE °
Committee.

(e) Mr. Mark Huse Chi Nan had resigned as an independent non- () FTAMEER-ZTENF=A-_THEIE
executive director on 20 March 2008. TIEHITES ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

o

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EEMaRANRSHES (&)

EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)
Employees EBS

AEELBREFALTERE B (ZFTN
FMA) ATEF RENMESFERR
EX - REEEBKOER (ZTTNF  =F)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2008:
two) executive director, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2008: three)

highest paid employees of the Group are as follows: e EENESOT ¢
2009 2008
—EEAE ZETNF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FE&T FH&TT
Salaries and other benefits e R E AR 6,532 5,714
Performance related incentive payments &3 iE4 936 1,825
7,468 7,539
The emoluments of the above employees are within the following FiiEERNME s BRI TER :
bands:
2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE A BB AE
HKS$ BT
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0012%1,500,000 - =
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,00122,000,000 3 -
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,00123,000,000 - 2
15. DIVIDEND 15. &8

RAFEARERN  ERIFKRE - EF
PEBRN -_ZTNFREARS -

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for both years.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for 2009.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIRESHE

152

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following data:

BREANEEERDENTIEEAE

2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Fax FHET
(restated)
(g &%)
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic RERTE BIRER R EE
and diluted loss per share BB E1E (172,206) (371,535)
Number of shares: BRGEE -

Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

The weighted average number of shares in issue for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 have been adjusted to reflect
the rights issue completed on 11 August 2009.

Diluted loss per share for both years does not assume the
exercise of the share options because inclusion of the share
options in the calculation of diluted loss per share would result
in a decrease in loss per share.

The weighted average number of shares shown above has been
arrived at after deducting 100,000,000 shares (2008: Nil) held
by share award scheme trust under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme as set out in Note 33 (iii) and accounted for by the Group
as treasury shares held by the Group.

RIEtEBREARLEE
EIRH) IR B (D 88 B

7,327,643,487 6,211,099,863

REBE-_STTZNFR_ZFTZENF+_A=1+
—BIEFEERITHMNEFL SR EE &H
BEURMR_ZEZNENA+— B ERAHE
A% o

AR EEREEEESERERERR
Do WA EZMEFENSREEERRY
ERRITIEREARE -

EXFURM ISR BB B &
B ea A0 B2 Bt 8IS REAR SR MY RE33(iih) E S &Y
PR I 1E A 0 22 B AT 81358 B i AR R BIRFRE
JEs 77 A% 3 A Bk #9100,000,0000% iz f7 (=&
TNFEE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERRE

Furniture Machinery
Leasehold and and Motor Construction
buildings fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
HEET GFEREE HBERRE RE EEIE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx
COST BA
At 1 January 2008 RZZEE)\F-H—H 399,008 149,413 3,149,648 50,375 1,267,217 5,015,661
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 25,834 9,087 221,501 3,178 63,139 322,739
Additions RE - 11,802 21,007 1,887 719,493 754,189
Disposals irf= (5) (3,503) (25,871) (3,365) (506) (33,250)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (745) - (908)  (648,245) (649,898
Transfers between categories DEBRER 34,397 39,972 942,467 1,239  (1,018,075) -
At 31 December 2008 W_EE\F+-A=1+-H 459,234 206,026 4,308,752 52,406 383,023 5,409,441
Exchange adjustments R (67) (28) (986) (8) (56) (1,145)
Additions RE = 1,742 698 Ie3! 150,437 153,618
Transfer to vendor (Note 29) BYEH (fi:329) - - (155,140) - - (155,140)
Disposals/write-off e /W (14,205) (11,276) (63,020) (2,676) - (91,177)
Transfers between categories PEHEE 56,548 34,073 357,010 652 (448,283 -
At 31 December 2009 R=ZZAF+=A=1+-H 501,510 230,537 4,447,314 51,115 85121 5,315,597
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT &R E
At 1 January 2008 RZZET\F-H—H 75,873 53,832 915,319 28,239 - 1,073,263
Exchange adjustments B 3 AR 5,240 3,096 74,741 1,815 - 84,892
Depreciation provided for the year 4 RiTERE 21,121 31,975 405,767 6,540 - 465,403
Impairment loss recognised in ER B R
profit or loss REERE - 2 223,167 - - 223,169
Eliminated on disposals T 6 e (1) (3,134)  (22,996) (2,829) = (28,960)
Eliminated on disposal of R EHB A R i
subsidiaries - (279) - (443) - (722)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZZE\F+-A=1—H 102,233 85492 1,595,998 33,322 - 1,817,045
Exchange adjustments B i AR (16) (36) (258) ) - (314)
Depreciation provided for the year FRITEREE 21,912 33,028 448,384 5,666 - 508,990
Impairment loss recognised in EREGE 2 ARG RERL
consolidated statement of REER
comprehensive income - 3,762 9,376 - - 13,138
Eliminated on transfer to Y E DS
vendor (Note 29) (Ki5E29) - - (130,036) - - (130,036)
Eliminated on disposals/write off &M / #iH (4,935) (7,294) (49,727) (2,134) - (64,090)
At 31 December 2009 R-EEAE+-A=1t—-A 119,194 114,952 1,873,737 36,850 - 2,144,733
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2009 R-BEAE+=-A=1t—-H 382,316 115,585 2,573,577 14,265 85,121 3,170,864
At 31 December 2008 W_EE\F+-A=1+-H 357,001 120,534 2,712,754 19,084 383,023 3,592,396
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E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 17. Y% - BERRE (8)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than Lt - BE REHE (EEIERIN) &
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated BE AT et REGFRERUER
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual EREE10%FTER T LATE -
values, ranging from zero to 10%, using the straight-line method,
as follows:
Leasehold buildings 25 to 40 years or over the HEEF 25F A0F S i% A A HH Af
relevant lease terms, if shorter (HAEEEE)
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years REREKEE 5&10%F
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years Has Rt 5& 104
Motor vehicles 5 to 6 years RE 5E6F
In addition to disclosed in Note 13, impairment losses of BREFFISFIIRBEE I HRERBERR
HK$13,138,000 (2008: HK$5,415,000) has been recognised in TR FAERYE  BEREBER
respect of property, plant and equipment due to physical damage 13,138,000 7T (Z T T )\ £ : 5,415,000
and technical obsolescence during the year. BTT) ROREEE -
The Group’s leasehold buildings are situated on land: AREBWMESEFAALAT M :
2009 2008
—EZhE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Outside Hong Kong on EBIZEHN
medium-term lease — RERFEAY 382,316 355,403
In Hong Kong on BB
medium-term lease — R HERFE Y - 1,698
382,316 357,001
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. LB E
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of land situated: AEBWBEN I HBEEEBREMNIA T
i -
2009 2008
—EENEF —ET)N\F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Outside Hong Kong BB
on medium-term lease — RHEFA A 172,761 177,142
In Hong Kong B
on medium-term lease — R ERTE Y - 1,940
172,761 179,082
Analysed for reporting purposes as RBERABRMOWA :
Non-current assets JEmENE E 168,570 174,906
Current assets MENEE 4,191 4,176
172,761 179,082
19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. [t EiRE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EET)N\EF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost RETRAIZE - LKA 754,092 741,698
Less: Impairment loss recognised W BEERREBE (190,000) -
564,092 741,698
The investments mainly comprise of the Group’s 19% equity ZEREBETERFEAREBNER L2 (SM)
interest in CSMC Asia as detailed in Note 12. CSMC Asia is a B W19%#E (FEHNHFE12) o ZEE £
company incorporated in Hong Kong which is principally engaged ZE (M) A—RBREBEMAZHAF
in manufacturing 8 inch wafers in the PRC. Such investment is HXrBEKANRPREEIETHE - AR
carried at cost less any impairment loss, and is not carried at fair RNATIEER AT EHAEREN AL
value since the directors of the Company are of opinion that the B BB KA B R EEESEE
fair value of the investment cannot be measured reliably. MIELA A FEFIER
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZNF+—_HA=+—HILFE

19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Cont’d)

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments and determined that the investment in CSMC
Asia was impaired due to the delay in production plan after the
financial crisis. The investment was included in the Group’s open
foundry segment. The recoverable amount of the available-for-
sale investments had been determined on the basis of their
estimated present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the CSMC Asia with a discount rate
of 14% per annum. As a result, an impairment loss amounting to
HK$190,000,000 was charged to profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2009.

19.

o it SR\ ()

B EHASEHEERENEREE -
WHEERERLZE (EM) HIEEEESR
BB AR EETEEEMBE - %IBARE
BRERAEBRBARERISE o AJ#H
ERENAIWE SECIRBHGHER L2
(M) EARMESARARRERENGETER
BEEFHEI4%TINET - Bitt - BEEE
190,000,000 TREEZE—_ZEZENF+ =8
=T —HIEFEMNERRH o

LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. FEWERR
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Variable-rate loan receivables KRR RHEBRARZEEER
from a fellow subsidiary 186,248 -

On 8 September 2009, the subsidiaries of the Company and
CRH as lenders and CSMC Asia as borrower entered into a
shareholders’ loans agreement pursuant to which the lenders have
agreed to provide shareholders’ loans in the aggregate amount
of US$202,000,000 to CSMC Asia on a pro rata basis according
to their respective shareholdings. As such, the subsidiary of the
Company will provide 19% or US$38,380,000 and the subsidiary
of CRH will provide 81% or US$163,620,000. The loan is
unsecured interest bearing at LIBOR plus 1% and repayable at a
fixed maturity of 3 years. The fair value on initial recognition has
been determined based on an effective interest rate of 5% per
annum and the fair value adjustment was adjusted to the cost of
the available-for-sale investment as deemed contribution.

RZZFZAFNAANEB  KARHMB AR K
EHEE ((FEREXRF) HER LE (M)
(ERMEBRA) ST ERE R BE -« Hut -
EXFREREBESAREELAIRERLE
#= (25 0) 32 4 48 %8202,000,0003 T H9 A%
BB - Bt - AR EIMEB AR EIRE19%
5¢38,380,0003% 7T + FE M EE 1R {81%3K
163,620,000 7T - ZE R A EER - &im
HARTT R ZEHF Boh01 E &1 B30 FE FA B iE F 5
“FRNEE - RUBERAFEDNREERSF
MESEETBEAFEA FTABRERIEHRR
Rt ERE A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #ZE2 —EENE+-_A=+-HILFEE

21. GOODWILL 21, BE

2008 & 2009
—EENER
—EERF
HK$’000
F#T

CARRYING AMOUNTS BRI B
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRER+ZH=+—H 21,024

The goodwill at 31 December 2009 arose on acquisition in 2002
of subsidiaries engaged in semiconductor business. The Group
determines that the goodwill, which had been allocated to two
cash generating units (“CGU”), including two subsidiaries engaging
in IC design and IC testing and packaging business amounting
to HK$7,539,000 and HK$13,485,000 (2008: HK$7,539,000 and
HK$13,485,000), was not impaired by comparing the carrying
amount of the CGU including the goodwill, with its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU had been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation use cash flow projections which were based on
approved financial budgets covering a 5-year period, and the
discount rate of approximately 14% (2008: 14%). Zero growth
was projected for cash flows beyond the 5-year period. The
projected growth rate did not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for relevant markets. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations included the budgeted sales and gross
margins, such estimations were based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market’s development.
Management believed that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the CGU.

RZBENF+T_A=+—HNEEIKE
R-ET - FREREFEEEBNNEA
Al AEEBEESELEN (BEFE) W
AREESEEANE S BIERLRE - BED
REMERSEEEMN (BEMRLEEK
BRI RENERHSBEBOKBEAR)
B ELIERE MERSELESN
®I 78 2 5 Bl A7,539,0005 Jt K 13,485,000
B oo (Z & F )\ F 7,589,000 7T K&
13,485,000/ 7T ) °

HERSELBMNAKRESECIRERE
BEfEEET - FREEFEERARSR
=788 - B ETER TR R R E 7 FHA R
BIBERBIERL14% (ZTT)\F : 14%)
E - AFHN MBS RERERBA A
TR EBLABATSHNRS
T RE - FREBETEEZNEMEER
HREBANEEERENE  ZE5HD
REBEXRBREEEBYHMISHRENTELE
to BEERE  ZESBINTMEEARE
SEHTSERFCELEVNRALERLS
ZHESEEBMMIESEEAEE -
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hE MR RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #; &

22.

23.

TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW

— ==

NF+ZA=+—RHIFE

22, FATHIEE

2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&xT FHETT
COST A
At 1 January Rn—H—H 44,389 41,404
Exchange adjustments P& i R (6) 2,985
Transfer to vendor (Note 29) BYER (F17E29) (40,925) -
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H 3,458 44,389
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 1 85 ROMAE
At 1 January Wn—H—H 42,760 5,726
Exchange adjustments b A2 (6) 322
Provided for the year FNREE 814 4,197
Impairment loss recognised in BB R R
profit or loss (Note 13) BEEE (FizE13) - 32,515
Eliminated on transfer to vendor 8 T 85 5 B sE (40,925) -
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 2,643 42,760
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 815 1,629

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of four years and included in administrative

expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

BT IRE G T ERFRAF UERRR
e Wt ASRAEHRERNITHRERA °

income.

INVENTORIES 23. &#&
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Raw materials R 164,707 248,987
Work in progress TR M 243,174 261,124
Finished goods BUAK T 194,969 302,610
602,850 812,721
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=1+—HItFE

24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 24, FEWERTR « IRERTAFRIE
2009 2008
—EENF T NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Trade debtors 2 5 EUWBR X 928,168 798,039
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables o EUCRBRBE (36,314) (34,273)
891,854 763,766
Deposits and prepayments e RIE R 104,311 112,665
996,165 876,431
The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to REFBKLTFTHEZEPHEEH KR A30K
90 days to its trade customers, which may be extended to 180 FO0K ' AR HZEH A IEE 180K -
days for selected customers depending on their trade volume and BIESENXHIEREEGRRNE - Ris
settlement terms. The aged analysis of trade debtors, including HRIEZRZANE B RERENEZE SEIK
notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented BB (BEERERE) MR T :
based on the invoice date of the end of the reporting periods is
as follows:
2009 2008
—EBNEF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
0 - 60 days 0Z260X 549,424 339,130
61 — 90 days 61ZE90K 103,753 108,013
91 — 180 days 91 180K 227,562 295,096
Over 180 days 180K 11,115 21,527
891,854 763,766
Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$14,267,000 AEBEWRERBREAEENASELA
(2008: HK$6,384,000) due from fellow subsidiaries arising from BHRETHORZMESDNEWR XS
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of the A Al K IE14,267,0008 L (Z T T )\ F -
Group. These amounts were unsecured, interest-free and are 6,384,000/ 7L) - ZERIEAEER 28
repayable within the credit periods similar to those offered to its FMAERBERTEREFPHEAENEEHRANEE -
customers.
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24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 24. FEWERE: « & RFEAMRIE ()

160

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$85,052,000
(2008: HK$144,522,000) which are past due at the reporting
date but are regarded as not impaired as there has not been
a significant change in the credit standing of the debtors. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these receivables.

Included in Group’s trade debtors are notes receivables with the
carrying amount of HK$363,947,000 (2008: HK$351,895,000), in
which HK$88,961,000 (2008: HK$128,603,000) are discounted
with full recourse to obtain general funding. The amounts are
unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period of 180 days.

The credit quality of trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant defaults in the past.

90% (2008: 81%) of the debtors are neither past due nor impaired
and have either been subsequently settled or maintain active
trade business relationship with the Group.

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables with carrying
amounts of HK$49,018,000 (2008: HK$60,785,000),
HK$74,702,000 (2008: HK$119,663,000) and HK$21,615,000
(2008: HK$20,310,000) which are denominated in United States
dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the
foreign currency of the respective group entities.

RNEBA KRR BIERIRE B g SR
H & U7 BR 385,052,000/ 7T (Z T T )\ &F ¢
144,522,000/ 7t) - R E® AR5 Ak
A EERNEE) - AU ZERBRER AR
B o NEEN Eh % SRR A E T
e

AEEMNEBESRUEREEERRE
/363,947,000 & L (= T T /A F:
351,895,000% JT) H) fE W =E & - H
#88,961,0008 (= T T N &F:
128,603,000/ 7T) JhAMT B 2 HERIED
FALFT ARG —REEE - ZRELAEK
- BB ER180KANEIH -

HABH AW ERENE ZREERNER
BRI Z2EHFHBEHERLERERR
EHEHE - RABF I RBELESNIER
FOER ©

90% (ZZEZ)\4F : 81%) HIEUBR 20 14 &
BMEBWERNE  BEERERENSEFS
—HHEAEERBERESEBBE -

AEBEBMNREBKEREEEETDAEA
49,018,000/ 7t (ZZZ )\ 4 : 60,785,000
7 JT) ~ 74,702,000 T (= & T )\ F ¢
119,663,000/ ) K&%21,615,0007% JT (=
TT)\4F : 20,310,000/ 7T) B EWER R -
DRIAET - ARBRABTABEMN (AIEE
SEERBHINE) -
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24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Aging of trade debtors which are past due but not

24. FBWARRR « IMERFEFNRIE (&)

ESRA{E KR ER E 5 AR AR S

impaired
2009 2008
—EENF —ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 - 60 days 0ZE60K 66,056 99,632
61 — 90 days 61290K 6,436 14,212
91 — 180 days 91E 180K 10,250 19,868
Over 180 days 180K A 2,310 10,810
85,052 144,522

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group
considers whether there has been adverse change in the credit
standing of the debtor from the date credit was initially granted.
The concentration of credit risk is limited as the Group’s customer
base comprises of a large number of customers. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision required
in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts already provided
for in the consolidated financial statements.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired receivables due from certain trade debtors with an
aggregate amount of HK$36,314,000 (2008: HK$34,273,000)
which have either been placed under liquidation or are in financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
receivables.

RETRUEREE A KRER - NEEZE
BEBANERRAERIRLEERRER
LBEERMINES - R AKEN TS ER
BRAEEF BEERARETAR- -
It EERRREESRAMBREMELOR
FREEIN  BAFHBIMEERME -

RIEBEBERYCE TESEBH ARERR
EERE KA 36,314,000 7T (Z T )\ £F :
34,273,000 70) - ZEEHB A EH BB
BR i B IR R 2 o 786 B30 K 3t 7% 5 FE AR 3K
BAETMERR -
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24.

25.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

24,

FEMRRRR « IRE& RFAMRIE (&)

2009 2008

—EENF —ET)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Balance at beginning of the year FEERR 34,273 22,189

Exchange differences [ =% (5) 1,415

Amounts written off as uncollectible 6 1 BT Y =] 4 58 (2,715) (182)
Increase in allowance recognised A 25 0 e /Y B 45 45

in profit or loss 4,761 10,851

Balance at end of the year FIREERR 36,314 34,273

The Group did not pledged notes receivable (2008: HK$4,998,000)
to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group at the
end of reporting date.

BANK BALANCES/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0% to
1.98% per annum (2008: 0% to 1.35% per annum). The restricted
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.01%
to 2.79% per annum (2008: 1.15% per annum).

Restricted bank deposits of HK$8,603,000 (2008: HK$492,000)
were pledged to banks for long-term payables (Note 29), letters
of credit and guarantee issued by those banks for the Group and
for employees’ mortgage loans.

Included in the Group’s bank balances are balances with
carrying amounts of HK$432,473,000 (2008: HK$89,437,000),
HK$19,197,000 (2008: HK$11,448,000) and HK$12,417,000
(2008: HK$16,835,000) which are denominated in United States
dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the
foreign currency of the respective group entities.

25.

AEBTEZSRERERE(ZZZT )\ F:
4,998,000/ T) F1EIEIF © UERNIRE B
KEFAEBHNE TRITEE -

RMITHEER  ZRHFRITER

RITHEMIETISFEENTOEE1.98E (=&
TN\F  FROEZE1.352) 8 ° ZRHIE
TEFERTBERVOIEE2.79E (ZEF
J\EE : R 15E) 518 o

5 IR %I $8 17 77 38,603,000 7T (ZZEZE N
F 1 492,000/ 7T) Bt RAEMBRR (M5
29) - RITALREEL AMNEHBERERMN
KB BRIBER MK FZFRIT -

AREEBMNROTEBEREERDEAR
432,473,000% (= T T J\ F:
89,437,000/ 7T) * 19,197,000/ 7T (= &
T )\ £ : 11,448,000/ 7T) KX12,417,000
BT (ZZZ)\F : 16,835,000/ 7T) K45
8 DRIAET ARBRBITAEMN (B
SEEEEBHIINE) -
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26. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 26.

The aged analysis of trade creditors based on the invoice date
which are included in creditors and accrued charges at the end

of the reporting date is as follows:

R R R FERT & F

RS B RN R KRB RS 2EH
HEAHNESRMNERROREDNTAT

2009 2008
—EZhE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 60 days 0E60X 632,185 397,681
61 — 90 days 61Z290K 92,278 166,120
91 — 180 days 91 £ 180K 156,311 313,228
Over 180 days 180K 31,862 33,667
912,636 910,696
The other creditors and accrued charges mainly include: HitENERRREFTERAEERRE :
2009 2008
—EEAE ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FABT
Payables for acquisition of property, G ES =
plant and equipment KB BRI 87,024 123,618
Accrued staff costs FETE B Ak A 81,360 58,174
Deposits received Blize 54,026 43,712
Current portion of long-term payable K HARE S BR A BN EA SR (9
(note 29) (Ffi5E29) 17,036 8,462
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEASt [R) 22 B B 1 R FUR 9,269 16,846
Amount due to a group company of Rt —Z B A A
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary VYRR EE R B FIE 152,435 182,309
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26. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Cont’d) 26. FEFTBRFRESTER (&)

164

The amounts due to a group company of a minority shareholder of
a subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free
and are mainly repayable within the credit periods similar to its
suppliers.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 7 to 180
days. The notes payable have maturity period of 180 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Included in the Group’s trade creditors are notes payable with
a carrying amount of HK$357,444,000 (2008: HK$475,829,000)
which are unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period of
180 days.

Included in the Group’s creditors are creditors with a
carrying amount of HK$18,384,000 (2008: HK$33,212,000),
HK$133,492,000 (2008: HK$290,378,000) and HK$9,186,000
(2008: HK$2,070,000) which are denominated in United States
dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the
foreign currency of the respective group entities.

BN —RMBARDBBRNEE QR KA
A BARFRESSERR - RERAEBN
AREAREHERMEAENEEHRE

som

R ©

EBEEMNFTHEERATE180K « ENE
BER180RKREIH - REE B HEE B ER
BEER  WERMEEMERAREESHA

f&

= ©

Al

AEENESENEREREERE
/357,444,000 (= T & N\ F:
475,829,000/ 7T) W EN R - EAEIK
A 2B RR180KABIE -

REE R EN R B IEIREE 418,384,000
B o= T F )\ F: 33,212,000/
JT) + 133,492,000 L (= & & )\ F:
290,378,000/ 7t) }%9,186,000/% 7T (= &
=N\ : 2,070,000/ L) KRR © 95l
ET - ARERETREN (ASEEE
FREAINE) o
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27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE

2009 2008
—EENE ZETNF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FBT T
Bank loans IRITER
Secured Vgt 88,961 128,603
Unsecured e 48 2,013,574 2,300,878
2,102,535 2,429,481
Carrying amount repayable: JE(EEFIARMEE
Within one year —F R 627,535 515,891
More than one year, but not LN —FETBAME
exceeding two years 325,000 438,590
More than two years, but not ZRMEETBRBRF
exceeding five years 1,150,000 1,475,000
2,102,535 2,429,481
Less: Amounts due within one year shown & : REIBE TR
under current liabilities R—FAEIER 8 7R IE (627,535) (515,891)
Amount due after one year shown ERBABEMIN—F1E
as non-current liabilities EHAR IR 1,475,000 1,913,590
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Note:

(@)

The bank loans include Hong Kong dollar revolving credit and term
loan facilities of HK$1,300,000,000 (2008: HK$1,300,000,000),
which carry interest at floating rate based on HIBOR plus a margin.
The average interest rate for the year is 1.39% (2008: 2.9%). The
loans have been guaranteed by CRH since 19 March 2008. Under
the terms of the loan facilities agreements, CRH, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, is required to remain as a majority
beneficial owner of the issued share capital of the Company and
shall maintain its management control over the Company. The loan
has maturity date on 14 March 2012.

The bank loans included United States dollar and RMB fixed rate
borrowings of HK$158,890,000 as at 31 December 2008 which
carry interest rate ranging from 5.02% to 6.85% per annum and
were fully repaid during the year.

The bank loans include United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar
and RMB floating rate borrowings of HK$802,535,000 (2008:
HK$970,591,000) which carry interest based on LIBOR, HIBOR
and People’s Bank of China Lending rate plus margin. The effective
interest rates ranged from 1.15% to 3.51% (2008: 0.99% to 4.78%)
per annum and have maturity date ranging from on demand to four
years from the end of reporting period.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had unutilised bank loan facilities
of HK$1,975,567,000 (2008: HK$1,086,580,000).

Included in the Group’s bank loans are loans with a carrying
amount of HK$113,574,000 (2008: HK$227,180,000) and Nil (2008:
HK$700,000,000) which are denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollar respectively, being the foreign currency of the respective
group entities.

27. RITIEE (&)
WEE -

(@)

ROTERBEETBREEREHERE
F3 #81,300,000,0005% T (= T T N\ 4 :
1,300,000,000% 7T.) (3% & A iR 17 R 347 8
BB LUZEF R E) o FARFSF R
£1.839% (ZZTZEN\F :2.9%) c ZEERK
BE-ZZNEF=ATNBEHAEREHRE
R IREBEERBEBEIER - AQRIWZR
RREREEEREEANAREBITRA
MAZHESEBA  WEERBRFHAR
RIMEERGIE BRI HRA-T——F
=A+MA -

RIBZNF+ZA=+—H RITEEL
FEETT M AR KB E H X4 5158,890,000
BT BRJVRFRE.02EE6.85E5E - I
NERTHER -

RITEARBIEUARBIRITTRERE - B&F
BRITRAEFERFRARBITEENER
MEABEENETL BLRARKZEHF
% f& §802,535,000/ L (= T T )\ F ¢
970,591,000%7T) - BERAENF1.15EE
351E (ZTZT/)\F : 0.99EZE4.78E) » I
IR B R E AR E AR MEREIE o

R-ZETAFE+-_A=1+—H AEEKK
EFRRITIEE A1,975,567,0008 T (—EF
J\£E : 1,086,580,000/87T) °

AEENRTERREEEREEDEA
113,574,000 wT(=Z= T T )\ £F:
227,180,000% ) REAB T (ZTT/)\F :
700,000,000 7T) BEK * hD I AR
kA TREN (ASEASEERINE) -
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28. PROVISIONS 28. &

Staff Employee

housing termination
benefits benefit Total

BT E&
FEERA BERIER et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET TET

(Note a) (Note b)

(Mf7Fa) (PFF3ED)
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—H—H 31,392 10,791 42,1883
Exchange adjustments P& i R - 339 339
Utilisation of provisions BREE (2,188) (1,081) (3,219)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF 29,204 10,099 39,303

+=—A=+—H
Exchange adjustments [ 5 = (1) (1)
Provided for the year FARE - 992 992
Utilisation of provisions B FREHE (1,876) (3,745) (5,621)
Write back of provisions s EEE (9,625) - (9,625)
At 31 December 2009 R=ZZNEF 17,703 7,345 25,048
+t=A=+—8H

The amount includes provision for staff housing benefits and
provisions for employee termination benefit.

(@) The provision for staff housing benefits represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of housing
allowances available to the remaining eligible staff for the
purchase of residential properties, based on the local
government policy in this regard. The outflow is expected
upon the receipt of application to be submitted by the
eligible staff for such allowance.

ERcHRREMEIERBAEERESE

BtE IR -

(@ BIEEBHNIIEHREEBRITBA
MAE BIER - sLE T BRSS9 Y
BRAREENAERBETIRHBAL
EMENER RN B TIEHARER
Ao REESEREINARER R
R BFR - EFERAANHESHE -
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28.

29.

PROVISIONS (Cont’d)

(b) The provisions for employee termination benefit represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities in relation to
restructuring activities of subsidiaries which are to be utilised
to meet restructuring expenses, including staff redundancy,
in accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when
such subsidiaries were acquired in prior years. The outflow
is expected within the next twelve months from the end of
reporting period.

During the year, management reconsidered the staff housing
benefits and, as a result, determined that the provision for staff
housing benefits to the extent of HK$9,625,000 (2008: Nil)
previously made is no longer required. Such provision has been
written back in the current year.

LONG-TERM PAYABLES

In previous years, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment and technical know-how and incurred long term
payable which were repayable over a period of 10 to 12 years.
Due to the relocation of manufacturing facilities in prior year,
certain of these assets have been impaired as at 31 December
2008. In the current year, the Group entered into an agreement
with the vendor of these assets to revise the terms of the
outstanding long-term payable and reduce the amount due to the
vendor to HK$45,430,000 by transferring the related property,
plant and equipment and technical know-how with a carrying
amount of HK$25,104,000 back to the vendor. The revised
payable is non-interest bearing and repayable by installments in
three years commencing from October 2009. The present value
of the revised amount is HK$42,814,000 estimated using an
interest rate of 5.40%.

28.

29.

#w (&)

b) EEBEMNIDEAEEEHHELF
ERRBERNARIFELOREMDT
BESREATFREREZSHE QR
BATRANEAAEMBAE - UXNE
HER (BHEEBREME) - BHRE
SHRREF T —EARNE SR -

FN - EEEEVERESRINEEEF -
At RETBRTEZAHREEERFEET
5T 12 /9 # 59,625,000/ 70 (ZZ Z )\ F ¢
) c RIEREERAFERD -

R FE AR IE

RBEFE  AEBEEME  WERKE
AREMAMZTEEEN+ZEF ZFHEE
BRORAAEMERE AR E—FERERE
WE FTZEEEER_ZZT/\F+_A8
=+—HBE - RAFE  AEEEZEE
ENERI L —DHE - BT REERD
JE < AR TE A & SR 335 1R #2 AR TE {8 25,104,000
BT EBYE - BEREE RN AH
e TES  EmEEMERRBERZE
45,430,000/ 7T © &SR] BN RIB R R B
BAZZTTNF+ABR=ZFALHEE - A
42,814,000/ 7T B & 5] SRIBIR B J5125.40
ERFERGE -
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29. LONG-TERM PAYABLES (Cont’d) 29. REAFE(TERIA (48)
At the end of reporting period, the carrying amount of the RBEEHEBAR RTREASRLRE A
outstanding consideration with an aggregate undiscounted 34,072,000/ ¢ (ZZFZ J\F : 86,041,000
principal amount of HK$34,072,000 (2008: HK$86,041,000), BIT) MTETEREREBNEREERAT :

which are non-interest bearing, are as follows:

2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
The present value of long term RAEERFOBELAT
payable is as follows:
Within one year —F 7R 17,036 8,462
More than one year, but not ZR—FETBBWE 15,324 8,760
exceeding two years
More than two year, but not ZIRMEENBBRFE - 26,282
exceeding five years
More than five years ZRAF - 24,414
32,360 67,918
Less: Amount due within one year included & : EfBRR KR fEST & AT (17,036) (8,462)
in creditors and accrued charges BIENR—FEAZH
shown under current liabilities HIFRIE (B AR ED
BEET)
Amount due after one year shown R—F & EHRNFRIA 15,324 59,456
as non-current liabilities (FIEIEREIBE)
The present values are based on cash flows discounted using REDRERESNERSA0E (ZEZN
a rate based on the borrowing rate of 5.40% per annum (2008: F: FHE585E) MEEENERBERT

= o
Eal

5.85% per annum).
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EEHIIA
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets NTAAFERBAFEEHANEEZRT
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior HIE (BE) BEREES :
years:
Withholding
taxon  Accelerated Other
undistributed tax Provisions temporary
profit depreciation on assets differences Total
RDREF & HitE &
MEMBE REHE BERE HER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THET THEx THER THEx
At 1 January 2008 RZZE\FE—H—H = (©6) 8,050 2,842 10,886
Exchange adjustments [ 5 5H % - - 421 - 421
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ~ A1Ba5H (1K) A (4,712) - (1,167) 8,443 2,564
At 31 December 2008 RZEZNE
+-A=+-A (4712) 6) 7,304 11,285 13,871
Exchange adjustments ERTIE LS - - 1 - 1
Credit to profit or loss REZFEA - 6 2,649 5,461 8,116
At 31 December 2009 RZBERE
+=B=t—-H (4,712) - 9,954 16,746 21,988
Other temporary differences mainly includes deferred income on HhERMEEZEFE0EEEE TR/
certain government grants which has been taxed upon receipts. BRI A (RUERR 2 8FT) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & & — &

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes.

FNFET-A=13E F FE

30. BMEHIE (48)

UTRAMBEREELNRTEHBLESRD
#r

2009 2008

—EERF —EENEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET AT

Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE = 26,700 18,589
Deferred tax liabilities RIERRIBEE (4,712) (4,718)
21,988 13,871

At 31 December 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$363,781,000 (2008: HK$304,447,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Losses of HK$118,895,000 and HK$87,870,000
will expire in 2012 and 2013 respectively. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2009, the Group also had other unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$483,390,000 (2008:
HK$459,468,000), mainly arising from impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, technical know-how, write down
of inventories to net realisable value and allowance for doubtful
debts. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared and distributed in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from January 2008 onwards to non-PRC
residents. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$115,146,000 as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

A—ZTTAF+_A=+—8 AEEEX
&) A % 78 85 18363,781,0008 7C (—Z T ZE N
F : 304,447,0007% 7T) A] 4K 85 R 20 A o
AP R A e F A TE R - AU G B B 18
ERELEFEE E - E518118,895,000/8 7T
587,870,000 T A RIR T —=—F K=
T—=FFH HtEEna A LE&E B
FEHARR o

R-BBNFE+-A=+—0 A=ERH
EM%E%ﬂWﬁ%%%%%w&wamo
BT (ZZ T )\ 1 450,468,000/ 7))
ZEME - BWE & - Hmﬂ%mﬂﬁ%
B WRATEENERFERRERENE
4 o MR AR REE LR NF T =58 ]
REEINERBOER - R ERZF AN
TR E R TEERBEE -

BREFBRCEMBSRE B=ZTTNF—A
— B#EFT - Bt BB A & B B EUE R A JE
FEERER LD IKAREENSIEM
FR P 7K 52 [ AT 49 o) 48 [0 ET B 1 = R ) B RS
BEREEZERLBRETSHE - WiE
RPBEMNBRARREEF BT =
115,146,000/ TL N bR & B 75 3R 3= 1E H IR T
FRIER A -
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E R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & —ZZENF+=-A=+—HILFE

31.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

On 24 November 2008, the Group and CRH issued a financial
guarantee to the extent of US$140 million to a bank of a term
loan facility agreement granted to a fellow subsidiary, CSMC
Asia of which US$26.6 million (representing the portion of the
financial guarantee covered by the Group) was attributable to the
Group. The fair value of the financial guarantee contract at initial
recognition of HK$10,790,000 was capitalized as investment
cost of the available-for-sale investment. CSMC Asia repaid the
loan and cancelled the undrawn portion of the facility during the
year. An amount of HK$1,790,000 has been released to profit or
loss up to the date of cancellation of the facility. The remaining
balance of HK$9,000,000 was adjusted to the cost of the
available-for-sale investment as return of investment since the fair
value of financial guarantee on initial recognition was previously
treated as deemed contribution to CSMC Asia.

31. PBREREH

NRZZEENFE+—A=-+WMB A&EER
EBRERARKRTRARMBAR (AR LE
(M) T E B E Haam —MRITIE
4 4 %83%140,000,0003 7T B B 7 HE1F - H
#26,600,000% T (FE R AL B FTEH A
B FSE IR EB ) AN EAE - ZIBMSIE
RE LR F) 2 1R A A F{E10,790,000
BITHENML A HEHERENRERKA -
ZPHEE (DM BEEEERITEUEFEAN
AEFAREND - HEBUERMEBRR - AH
1,790,000/ T D KRB st AR
BRA - AR ZEVKERRVITSERENA
FEEANEAGERZERLZE (BM) FE
HI|BR - TR EE9,000,00058 7T 2 1E AR A M
WA EEA M HEREK AT -

32. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 32. RATFKRAE
Number of shares Nominal value of shares
RIBEE RAEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZENE —TENE “ZEhE “EEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL
Shares of HK$0.10 each ZR0.10E THR 7
Authorised: EE
At beginning of the year REA] 10,000,000,000  10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Increase during the year ERNEN 10,000,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
At end of the year REL 20,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000
At beginning of the year REA] 5,855,209,864 5,791,872,096 585,521 579,187
Shares repurchased and cancelled R &S] (62,080,000) - (6,208)
Shares issued to CR Gas option-holders ~ IZEEMTEBRIEA
BBAETORR 103,058,493 - 10,306
Shares issued under allotment BB AR AR 2 TR D
of Right Shares 2,929,447,319 - 292,945 -
Shares issued under Equity Incentive Plan 1887 2=t 2]
BIRRG 4,744,775 21,459,275 474 2,146
Shares issued under Share Option Scheme 1R 15 kgt 2
BIMRG 900,000 - 90
At end of the year RELR 8,789,401,958 5,855,209,864 878,940 585,521
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #ZE2 —ZEENE+-_A=+-HILFEE

32. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

1.

Pursuant an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 20 August 2009, the authorised
share capital of the Company had been increased from
HK$1,000,000,000 to HK$2,000,000,000 by creation of
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

To strengthen the Company’s capital base and working
capital position, the Company raised approximately
HK$439,417,000 before expenses of HK$1,800,000 by
way of the rights issue of 2,929,447,319 rights shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.15 per rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares.
The proceeds from the rights issue were applied towards
payment to finance the operating and capital expenditure
for CSMC Asia and used in capital expenditure and working
capital of the Group.

In the sale and purchase agreement relating to the
Amalgamation in 2008, CR Gas has offered to its
option-holders for cancellation of their options by issuance
of the Company’s shares at no consideration or exercise
their options to obtain the Company’s shares on the basis
of 180 shares in the Company for every 100 shares in CR
Gas held at the date of completion of the Amalgamation as
if original share options were exercised. On 5 March 2008,
46,707,693 shares of the Company were allotted and issued
to the relevant accepting option-holders and 56,350,800
shares of the Company were issued to the option-holders
of CR Gas who exercised the options.

32. XAEMF (&)

1.

ES NG E 9 hi)\ﬂ_
+EILiBH’J—IEjEt.L/9% -V
/) 0% TF R A # #2 2%10,000,000, OOOHQ

BREMBECIOETHEBR (EFTAE
FEYEARARBERNZERSE
#) © §1,000,000,0005% 7T #& 0 =
2,000,000,000/8 7T °

RERR AR ERNER R & BEA;K
o Zkﬁﬂ‘ﬁiﬁbxfﬁﬁ“fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁa%
— AR R R B IR R BB T AR AR

% £70.157% 7T ft §%2,929,447,319% it
A% A% 19 % % 49439,417,0007% JT (30
K B9s2 1,800,000/ T AT) ° L#Hﬁﬁﬁ?%?k
BEARAERLZE (M) NEE
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂi%&@tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé?ﬁ%@mﬁ$
A REEER -

BEEA S NFEHEENEER
= EERRAEREREARZER
NZEREBFHITARARG AFHESH
BRI IRN A fFEIETK B B E
R 1 00[% % 1 7T #2 B AR 2 7]1808% A
MITERERNBERERSAQ RN
M RERECETE - RZTTN\F
=AEA  HEERESEABRER
% 1746,707,693 A R Al iR 0 - ZEH
MRITEBERENRERE AEET
56,350,800 A&~ &A% 1D °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE —ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

U]

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted an “Equity Incentive Plan” (the
“Plan”) on 8 May 2004. Under the Plan the Company may
allocate the Company’s shares to full time employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and the directors (the
“participants”). The objective of the Plan is to share the pride
of ownership among the executives and employees of the
Group and to reward their performance and contribution.
The term of the Plan is 10 years from the date of adoption.

Under the Plan, the total number of shares which may fall
to be issued must not exceed 15% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.
Furthermore, The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued to any Selected Employee in any twelve (12) month
period pursuant to any Awards shall not exceed one (1) per
cent. of the total number of Shares in issue.

In general, the shares allocated under the Plan will vest in
equal portions over a period of four years commencing from
the date of the grant or in such other proportions as the
Remuneration Committee may otherwise specify. Shares
allocated will only be issued once they vest and formal
applications from the respective participants are received.
An administration fee of US$0.01 per share is payable by
the participant upon application. Such vested and applied for
shares will be issued to the participants as bonus shares.

No shares were allocated under the Plan in the year 2009
and 2008.

33. Kz 21893 5

(i)

Rz 3 2& Byt &l

AABBERR-_ZZEWNFAANRE
BEBRBR - HOERS [ I BB E
g (Tar &) - RIFFTE - ARA AR
ARABREMBARNEZREELE
= ([28EF]) pRARAMERD ° 5
FEEBRASENTHAERREB UK
RENHZEEKR - LEHRFFNHER
BEER - 58 B RA B ML AH+
£ o

RIBFTE] - AIBEH T RITHARM BT
SHBARR TR ETRNNI5% °
NEAEEBRERLRRNR _ZETNF
AANBEBEBRZRILERTE R
246,900,0000% © LEAI » 1R 55 {E fa] 22 B
PR+ Z(12)fE A B 2 317 i T
BT TEAEETERENBRMDESE - T
SERACSBTRNARNAED Z—(1) -

mIEmE - RIBET & D MM B %
B ERAEET #O 0 F IR AR R 12 58 3k B
ZEERENLHIES - EDEHRD
RERZERECEBERALTRZTR
EUWEBAR2ERENEXRFRI AT
LAZETT - 2EENREABRENER
0.01XTTHITHERM - ZFCREB M
REBRZFORMDGALRA XK T LM
% o

R-ZZNFR-_ZTN\F  AERE
st EIACE AL
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For the year ended 31 December 2000 HiZ —EENF+_-_A=+-HILFZE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. LI X8RS (&)

() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d) (i) RxiYEEENETEl (&)
Details of the shares under the Plan are as follows: FFEIETHROFBAT
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
at  Allocated  Exercised Lapsed at 31 Exercise
1 January during during during  December price Exercisable
2009 the year the year the year 2009 (in HK$) Grant date until
RZBENE
R=280E t=A
-B-H ERE  =t-H (il iy
WAEE FACAR FREME HE/AXN HABE (Ex) RAES A1 A
'000 '000 000 000 '000

TR TR TR TR TR

3,565 - 2,339 262 964 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013

Z22=f ZB-=f

tA-A LAtH

1,142 - 533 59 550 0.078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013

“22Rf CZB-Zf

-B=txR  EAtH

Management and employees ~ EEERES 1,371 - 1,371 - - 0.078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013

ZEERE  ZB-ZE

-A=H LAtA

884 - 500 - 384 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013

ZEERE  ZE-ZF

RAtAA RAtA
Total By 6,962 - 4,743 321 1,898
Exercisable at the end of the year  EEA/TIERE 1,648

Weighted average exercise MEFHTER

price (HKS) (BT 0.078 - 0.078 0.078 0.078
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. KA X {F8932 5 (&)

() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d) (i) RxiEEENETEl (&)
Qutstanding Cancelled/  Qutstanding
at Allocated Exercised Lapsed at 31 Exercise
1 January during during during  December price Exercisable
2008 the year the year the year 2008 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZEENE
RZZEN +=R
£-A-H FRE  =1-H ke BEff:
WAGE FAEAE  FRBAE  HE/AXR BAEE (A7) ks &R
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
Tk Tk Th T Tk
Directors EZ
- Peter CHEN Cheng-yu -REF 2,330 - 2,330 - - 0078 1 0Qctober 2008 7 May 2013
“EE-F  CZ%-ZF
tA-A LAtA
~ Frank Lai Ni Hium o v 1,400 - 1,400 - - 0.078 1 Qctober 2003 7 May 2013
Z22-F  ZEB-CF
tA-A RAtA
18,453 - 14,888 - 3,565 0.078 1 Qctober 2003 7 May 2013
ZE8SF  CZE-=F
tA-H BAtA
Management and employees ~ EEERES 2,309 = 1,089 8 1,142 0.078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013
“EERE  ZB-ZF
-A=1AR BAtA
2,544 - 770 408 1,371 0.078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013
ZBRRE  ZE-CF
-AZH LAtA
1,202 - 318 - 884 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013
ZEERE  ZE-=F
LATAA LAtA
Total o 28,238 - 20,795 481 6,962
Exercisable at the end of the year  FE A TERE 5,526
Weighted average exercise MEFHTER
price (HKS) (#71) 0.078 - 0.078 0.078 0.078
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=+—HItFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

In respect of the shares allocated under the Plan during
the year, the weighted average share price at the date of
exercise is HK$0.17 (2008: HK$0.38).

Share Options Scheme

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way
of ordinary resolution, adopted a “Share Option Scheme”
(the “Scheme”) on 27 May 2005. Under the Scheme, the
Company may issue options to the directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, service providers of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Scheme participants”). The objective of
the Scheme is to provide the Scheme participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage the Scheme participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
term of the Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

The exercise price is determined by the Remuneration
Committee, a committee of the Board comprising two
independent non-executive Directors and a non-executive
Director as established by the Board, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion and notified to the participant in the
offer and shall not be less than the higher of:

— the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on the date of grant;

—  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

33. Uiz X893 5 (4)

(i)

(ii)

Ry E&Bh=t & (48)

REA - SLRE SRR DM
5 RITEE A IR AP A E 2017
BIL(ZZETN\F :0.388BTT) °

jill

o

g

RARNBIRRAEBRBRTAME
ARRAR_ZEZAFHEA_+EAK
IR TRERCERT 81 - IRIBRE AT
g ARBAAAREREMBAR
EENEE  URARBREKBAT
METAERER - BAE - 2iHE - &8
meABRLEER HER RKEF
P BxEREH  a2EEXBHRIRKE
e ([H32aE)) ROERE- B
BEFEIMBAERSTESEEEHRE
BRARRINMAEED - WeEE
SLEEHNBARB REBRROEER
SEFAARBREROHEE - BEE
RN F R A B R BRI+ o

TEEAREZTEB ITNFMEZEE T
BRERELHNSEZHONREE - 1T
EENFERATEEPHRSE

REHBPEERERZABERRD
Al % H B |K PO AI AR (5 M
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. KA X {F8932 5 (&)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (i) FEBRHERTEl (48)

178

Based on the approval of Remuneration Committee, the
share options granted under the Scheme on 8 September
2006 will vest in equal portions over a period of four years
commencing from the commencement of the “Vesting Date”
as approved by the Remuneration Committee. Share options
granted under the Scheme on 28 May 2008 subject to
one-year vesting period from the participant’s employment
starting date as approved by Remuneration Committee.

No option was granted during the year.

The number of share options and exercise prices were
adjusted during the year due to the rights issue at the
subscription price of HK$0.15 per rights share on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares. The
exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.36 and HK$0.75
to HK$0.341 and HK$0.711 respectively.

REFHZESOHAE  R_TTXRF
NANBRBEBAERT 8% e B
REFMEESHEN HEA S &
FHNERRERLAIEE - R-FF
NEFERAZTN\B - REERE R
HEBEREZRN A mEME B2 mit
FEHS2EREZEARRGBTEN—FR
EH

F A TR EIRBAE -

FR - BRUEMKREERMDELE —K
AR AR (7 B B IR R B E T R AR (0
0158 #EITHAR - FULIERESE &
TEE TLAFE - TTEEH0.36/ET &
0.75%8 T Al #8% £0.341 37T % 0.711
PETT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & Z —ZEZNF+_-_A=+—HItFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. LIRS (&)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (i) BRR%#ERTE (48)
Movement in the number of share options outstanding and m R 5B M BB RS = AR TR ER
related exercise price are as follows: BEpmT

Cancelled/ Adjusted

At Granted Exercised Lapsed Rights At31  exercise
1 January during during during issue  December price Exercisable
2009  theyear  theyear  theyear adjustment 2009 (in HKS) Grant date until

I

B Z2E0E e

ZBENF £ £ FRE ik 128 1t fif

-A-H BRiH BT &#/ %X A% =1-H (#x) RiAH ]
000 000 000 000 000 '000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Management and employees EBEKES 15,191 - - 3,100 722 12,813 0.341 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
CEERE CE-pE

ABNB  ERZtAA

1,587 - - 300 i 1,358 0.711 28 May 2008 26 May 2014

it JIC -

EA=tAR ER=tAA

Total 22 16,778 - - 3,400 793 14,171
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FEATERE 12,205
Weighted average exercise METHTER

price (HKS) (&72) 0.38 2 2 0.38 038
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE —FEEAF+—-A=+—HIFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. LA X {F8932 5 (&)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (i) FEBX#ESTEl (48)
Cancelled/
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 Exercise

1 January during during during  December price Exercisable
2008 the year the year the year 2008 (in HK9) Grant date until

S

N ZTTN\F
“EENE £ R ERE 24 (5154 AT

-A-B BEM  BAE mE/RK St-B (B0 AMAM #uA
000 000 ‘000 ‘000
" TR TR TR

Management and employees EEEREE 18,341 - 900 2,250 15,191 0.

(o)

6 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
ZZENE  ZE-QE%
MANR EAZ+AA

1,687 - - - 1,587 0.75 28 May 2008 26 May 2014
“FF\F —E-OF
RAZ+NB BAZT/H
Total g 19,928 - 900 2,250 16,778
Exercisable at the end of the year & AI{THEREN 10,455
Weighted average exercise MELSITEE
price (HKS) (E7) 0.39 - 0.36 0.36 040
No share options were exercised during the year. The FR - BEBREETE RNEE-F
weighted average share price at the date of exercise was ZENF+-_A=Z+—HLEEFE  B1TE
HK$0.42 for the year ended 31 December 2008. Z BV RR(E R0.42/8 T ©
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recognised REEZEZZTZNF+_A=+—H 1J:¢
the total expenses of HK$568,000 (2008: HK$1,277,000) B REE 5 AR 6B RE ER
relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions i sE EARN ZNHRZH 4 Eﬁ S‘Z
in respect of the share options granted by the Group. 568,000/ 7T (ZZ = /)\£ : 1,277,000
/%7[3)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #ZE2 —EENE+-_A=+-HILFEE

(iii) BRI A% 13 € b=t &1

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(ili) Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme
on 18 December 2008. The objective of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to provide incentives and help the Group
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased by the trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
and be held on trust for the selected employees until such
shares are vested with the selected employees. No restricted
shares will be granted if the aggregate number of restricted
shares awarded throughout the duration of the scheme
to be in excess of the 2.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date of the scheme. The
number of the restricted shares which may be awarded to
a selected employee under the scheme shall not exceed
0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
adoption date of the scheme.

As at 31 December 2009, a total of 100,000,000 issued
shares were purchased from market at cost of approximately
HK$19,465,000 shown under shares held for award scheme
in the equity. No shares award has been made to eligible
employees up to the year end date.

ARBR_ZFZNEFE+ = A+/\BRH
PR I ME A £ B2 BT &) o PRI MR 0 22D
AR ERHER LB ARERE R
RAREMFEEZESR @ YlEBIA
AAMEHNHERERARSREERL
B o

IRIB IR B MR AD BERDAT 8 - FEARIA
REBEFR E’Jﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁ%i%)\ﬁ@ﬂ
BERD  WAGEEANBELER
RERA  BHEERFERN 3%%7@%@%&

BERE /L - WEZEBEART
PR Bl £ A 0 AR BB B AN A B % AT &l
R H B2 BITIRAR2.5% 0 AR
SROEMZREIID - AIREZET S
BT ER S & EERBIER DR
TRBEXRRRNZTEFAR AN
BEITIRAH0.25% °

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H ' &AQ

Lxﬁlzwm9,465,000%M£€m%ﬂ%@é
$£100,000,0008% B #1710 (5] A+F
ERBFTENRHOEET) EEFEE
ZHH - WEELROHERDTEERE

=
B o
=
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 34. BAREFITE

182

Hong Kong

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the
MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group based on a specified percentage of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. No forfeited
contributions were utilised in this manner for both years.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employees.

At the end of reporting period, there is no amount of forfeited
contributions to reduce contributions payable in the future
years.

Mainland China

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
local government in the Mainland China. The Group is required
to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

FiE
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HAAEIE
Other than disclosed in Note 31, as at 31 December 2009, BRITESIFMEEEI RZEZENF A
the Group has issued guarantees of HK$606,000 (2008: =t+—8 A&EEER—ZKHBRAREERE
HK$1,984,000) to a bank in respect of the mortgage loans ARIZRIBEF - M —KRIT1EH606,000/5
borrowed by the employees of a subsidiary. Management T (ZZZN\F : 1,984,000 70) FELR °
anticipates that no material liabilities to the Group will arise from EREEEAAEETeRZEEREAER
such guarantees. BfE -
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. FEHE
The Group as lessee AEEEBRBEAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments RI|BERER - NEBEB T AIHEELEHELD
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AIE - ZEAERAT B E A A R R I
operating leases which fall due as follows: SRRAE -
2009 2008
—EENF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Within one year —F R 5,525 6,218
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFRTF
(BEERREEAN) 2,072 7,403
After five years AE% - 1,893
7,597 15,514
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KERNTRDIEREE A EREE D
for office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals ¥WENES  MAKENR—Z2=F8K
are fixed for term ranging from one to three years. EEHE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZE—ZZNF+_—_A=+—HILFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER 37. EXREREMbZH
ARRANGEMENTS
2009 2008
—EENE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Capital expenditure in respect of BRAWEBYE BEK
acquisition of property, plant and RN ERF
equipment
Authorised but not contracted for EREERFTH 247,071 356,968

Contracted but not provided for (Note) B ET4VBREME (Mizh)

Note:

Pursuant to an agreement entered into with a company related to a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary (the “Vendor”) in 2006, the Group has
undertaken to make incentive payment of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$38,769,000) to the Vendor in the event that the cumulative revenue
from the assembly and testing services provided by the Group arising
from orders placed by customers of the minority shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries for the years 2007 to 2010 exceeds an agreed amount.
However, no fair value was ascribed to the undertaking as at the end
of reporting period, as the directors consider that the agreed amount is
unlikely to be achieved based on the Group’s assessment.

68,207 47,230

BIEE

REBEE-—RMBRARNDERROBELR ([H
A RIBERFITUN—HHZE AEEK
O RTERLFE-_T-TFH - —BAKH
Hz L S8R RKEAEMNERRNE S B HET
B8 i 4R 44 BRI AR 75 10 R 5t Uk &R B 1 E AR
Al & m & 5 x ¥ % £5,000,000% 7T (18 & R
38,769,000 7T) « AT - RIFEA K BE T
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. FAEALRS
Transactions with related parties EREAEAN LTI S
In addition to the related party transactions set out in other BRERE M B mMAREMMTMEMNEEALR
notes to the consolidated financial statements, during the year, S9N - REBERFRNEEEATHIT NIIE
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with AR

related parties:

2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETRZRKEA R 2,717 13,080
Rental expenses paid to a fellow subsidiary 2t —% F ZME A 78
HERxX 2,329 2,636
Commission paid to a subsidiary of a B —xKEAFH
minority shareholder of a subsidiary DERREAHE A RS 3,205 9,760
Subcontracting income from a RKE—RFAZRHB AT
fellow subsidiary nBHA - 1,346
Purchases from a fellow subsidiary M— XA RN B R ERE 2,434 3,586
Consultancy fee paid to a company A—XBAARE—UESE
controlled by a director of the Company THN AR ERER - 3,417
Supporting and administrative service fee &K 8 — K A Z i B A 714
income from a fellow subsidiary (Note) X RATERFS & A YA
(FfH5E) 88,733 57,058
Interest income from a fellow subsidiary RE—KRBERHBR AR
FEHA 1,196 =
Rental income from a fellow subsidiary e —KREZXKE AR
HeKA 657 490
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment U & — = [ Z KT B A 7l
and inventories from a fellow subsidiary ME BEMEENEE - 17,285
Additions to property, plant and equipment KB —XKHE A T4
from a subsidiary of a minority F NN
shareholder of a subsidiary Y BERRERORE = 76,843
Expenses related to the Group borne EE N EPNEIES
by fellow subsidiaries REEMEBERZ - 3,749
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. FEANTRS (B)

186

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

Note:

In 2008, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered into
an agreement with a fellow subsidiary to provide certain research and
development and general administrative supporting services to the fellow
subsidiary from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010. This subsidiary
provides supporting and administrative services to the fellow subsidiary
as well as other group entities. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
will charge the fellow subsidiary service fee income based on an agreed
portion of the actual costs incurred by the Group.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with the parent company and its subsidiaries which
have been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group also conducts businesses with entities
directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
in the ordinary course of business. The directors consider those
entities other than the CRNC group are independent third
parties as far as the Group’s business transactions with them
are concerned. In establishing its pricing strategies and approval
process for transactions with other state-controlled entities,
the Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is
a state-controlled entity or not. The Group is of the opinion
that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate
and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions in the
consolidated financial statements.

BEEATHIRS (&)
P EE -

RZZZBNF  AEEZF R B2 ENE QR =
—HBERMBARLGZ 8 —TT/\FHA
=tEEE-_Z-—TF+_HA=+—HILAZH
RIEB A AR HEE T3 RATBUE 2 X 45 R 7S o
ZHBARIARZRM B AR ARE R TR
HXFREERY - REZWHE  AEEBRIE
AEBERAEERANZESDARRMER
AIWEURTS & -

HEEMBERIEFNERNRZS SR

AEEARE BTEEE (ZAF AT BERA
2H]) ET—ERARREENKE - BiR
B BWMR AR L& R F R EN
BARETHRZI  AKRETEARE
5 3B 72 A B e B T B % sl P 9 R A s A
MEBERBETEGER - EXRA > SLAKE
HEFETHRZME - RhEEBFEESN
MZEERARBIUFE =T - REEMER
S B R R X 5 M b E € ERE R EREF
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38.

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. FEALTRS (&)
Key management compensation FEEHERHN
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FBT T
Short term employee benefits HHESRT 3,468 8,570

The remunerations of the Group’s key management personnel
include those of the executive directors of the Company only,
which are determined with reference to the terms of remuneration
committee, are disclosed in Note 14.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants liability of HK$167,613,000 (2008:
HK$146,012,000) represent subsidies granted by PRC
governmental authorities for the purpose of financing (i) the
purchases of machinery and equipment of HK$148,240,000
(2008: HK$124,782,000) and (i) relevant expenses for the
development and production of new products of HK$19,373,000
(2008: HK$21,230,000). The amounts of HK$59,172,000 and
HK$16,525,000 (2008: HK$44,266,000 and HK$8,519,000)
received are repayable if the production facilities do not meet the
standard specified in the grants or the production volume of the
new products do not exceed the specified volume required in the
grants. The government grants recognised as income for the year
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy amounted to
HK$35,979,000 (2008: HK$30,481,000).

39.

ARBEEERAR (BERFEARARTE
) M2 EHMEBRNEREE - R
141 -

B AT B &

BB € & £167,613,0008 T (=2 F
J\EF 1 146,012,0005% 7T) &+ B BT B @
B RRHENER - H(i)148,240,0007% 7T

—ZTF)\F : 124,782,000/ 70) BREE
1 22 K7 5% 45 2.(i1)19,373,000/8 7t (ZZTZ )N\
4 : 21,230,000/ 70) ARAZRMERNE
FAAX o WMEERETTES MBS R TENZT
L E MM ES RN €T M EE
= - AIfE SR E B WELA 5RI859,172,000/8 7T
116,525,000/ 7T (ZZZ )\ : 44,266,000
75 7T 28,519,000 L) - RIE A &£ B &
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35,979,000/8 7L (ZZFZ J\F : 30,481,000
MBI o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 HZ —ZZNF+—_HA=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. TEMBATEH
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid share/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
ERTR
HEMRL, BERE ArEEES
g NG FR Lt 2 R BEREEZEIL TEEHK
2009 2008
—ETRFE ZZTTN\F
% %
FEHYEEFEEIR AR Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Design and sales
China Resources B8 HK$1 of integrated circuit
Semiconductor T BAR1STT Fat KHESEKE K
International Limited
HEEE YL E AR (2Y]) Mainland US$1,800,000 100 100  Design of wafer
ERAR (BIFEREYIZERD China 1,800,000% 7T FatenlE

MR ETFARAR) B KR
*China Resources

Semiconductor

(Shenzhen) Limited

(formerly known as

Shenzhen China

Resources Semico

Microelectronics Co., Ltd.)

HEEBRERMET ORI Mainland US$10,000,000 100 100  Testing and
ARAE (RIEER China 10,000,0003 7T packaging of wafers
HETF ORI BRAR)  HEKRE AR R E R E

*China Resources Semicon
Microelectronics
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as
CR Microelectronics
(Shenzhen) Limited)

HESERMEFER AT Mainland RMB570,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and
#Wuxi China Resources China AR#570,000,0007T sales of integrated
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. AR EIARE circuit, packaging

and testing of
integrated circuit,
investment holding

SUERHE SR B -
HERAAEKE
B AR

MRS EHW RN E T Mainland RMB65,000,000 91.76 91.76  Design, testing and sale
BRAF] China AR#65,000,0007T of integrated circuit
“Wuxi China Resources B K BE products and chips
Semico Co., Ltd B E Fizh
ERERERRTH
o BB EHE (L§) Mainland US$3,000,000 95.83 95.83  Design and sale
BRAF] China 3,000,000 75 of integrated circuit
8CR PowTech (Shanghai) Ltd A7 B A BE HET RHESE K E R
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40. PARTICULARS OF

(Cont’d)

Name of subsidiary

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. X EMBASEE (&)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued and

fully paid share/
registered capital

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

Principal activities

BETR
MR BEREK,/ rEBFEE
il NGRS FX AL it B AR AR BREEEZEAL FTEER
2009 2008
—EEhE —TTN\F
% %
ompEHERMNE Mainland RMB335,000,000 99.662 99.662  Manufacture and sale
BRAF] China AR of integrated circuit
@Wuxi China Resources CalETpN 335,000,00075 HEREEEKER
Huajing Microelectronics
Co., Ltd
G5 R T Mainland RMB330,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and sales
BERAT China AR of integrated circuit
“Wuxi CR Semiconductor lEipN 7 330,000,0007C ERHEEK SR
Wafers & Chips Ltd.
HE SRR R Mainland RMB320,000,000 75 75  Testing and
BRAF] China AR packaging of wafers
“Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb el N 320,000,00075 Y ES BT
Tech. Ltd.

HEHEEE FEE LB Mainland US$109,844,153 100 100  Manufacture and sale
BRAF] China 109,844,153 7T of integrated circuit
*CSMC Technologies alEy N and related products
Fab 1 Co., Ltd BUERHEEKER

KAARE @
—EENF+ A=+ B ERFEAEHE

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
31 December 2009 or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

& Equity Joint Venture

i Wholly Foreign Owned enterprises

—77

CEEEE O

%‘;o

ABEMETEINERE

BEERR - LRAVNAARMERBEAK
SENEENEERAEEEARE - ES

R BIEMHBRARNFESS

BRI °

@ A
=

Bz

Y NBEELE

K&
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Five-year Financial Summary

T FEFBEME

(Note2) (Note1) (Note1)
(P5E2) (P&E1) (P=E1)
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

—BRAFE _—TT/\F _—TTLF —TTNF _—TTIF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FRT FET FET FHET FHT
TURNOVER YA 3,036,881 3,118,692 2,991,625 887,955 607,407
EBITDA EBITDA 389,101 200,208 702,369 266,312 134,113
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR €& (E518) & H (182,377) (382,919) 231,653 49,454 (53,213)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO : AT & 75 FEAh
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY  Z&RAFIEEA A (172,206) (371,535) 231,253 49,454 (53,213)
NON-CONTROLLING IR
INTERESTS (10,171) (11,384) 400 - -
(182,377) (382,919) 231,653 49,454 (53,213)

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENE —ZTENF ZTTtLHF —_EERF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT FAT FABT FAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBNE E 4,151,959 4,571,362 4,187,968 1,427,871 1,250,867
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E 2,833,085 2,560,026 2,652,539 542,293 487,439
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3ERBHEE (1,632,904) (2,097,468) (1,339,524)  (120,475) (71,580)
CURRENT LIABILITIES MEEE (2,031,267) (1,950,102) (2,247,489)  (518,498)  (449,144)
TOTAL EQUITY S EER 3,320,873 3,083,818 3,253,494 1,331,191 1,217,582

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO A2 &HEA A

OWNERS OF THE FEfh e

COMPANY 3,232,715 2,985,656 3,163,452 1,331,191 1,217,582
NON-CONTROLLING IR

INTERESTS 88,158 98,162 90,042 = =
TOTAL EQUITY HEmAREE 3,320,873 3,083,818 3,253,494 1,331,191 1,217,582
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I F BB E

Notes:

1. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006 and 2005 were not restated for merger accounting. The presentation
currency was changed from United States dollars to Hong Kong dollars,
with exchange rates by the end of respective years.

2. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 were restated for merger accounting and change in presentation
currency after the Amalgamation. Details are set out in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2,

BHE_ZTEFER-_ZTRAF+_A=+—AH1
FEZEAVERRITERESHSIAETE
P o 2 EBEEFFRNERAETLLIAAS

JC °

HE_ZZ+E+-_A=1+—HIEFENGEY
BHRERDNBHFREZAHEHARZINEEE
EmMTES - FHEHN AP ERERMES
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Shareholders can obtain copies of Annual Report by writing to:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

If you are not a shareholder, please write to:

China Resources Microelectronics Limited
Rooms 4003-05, 40th Floor

China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attn: IR Department

This annual report is also available online at
http://www.crmicro.com

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Our enquiry hotline is operational during normal office hours:
Telephone: +852-2299-9128

Facsimile: +852-2299-9300
Email: ir.crmicro@crc.com.hk

AR AT R FTF A 1 B A T b IE A BRIS SF 3R B -

BEEPREFSECARDA
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B
EEKBER1835%
BRI

181&
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fid PN IIEARER - AL T AL -

EHMEFBRAAF
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BB 265
EHRE
40%£4003-05%F

B REEBIERE

REFZREIFATR A TAUE -
http://www.crmicro.com

B RERE

AR R E AR — AR A A AR TS
TaE  +852-2299-9128

HH : +852-2299-9300
TEF A ¢ ir.crmicro@crc.com.hk
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